
LICENSING 
COMMITTEE

________________________________________________

Wednesday, 7 September 2016 at 2.00 p.m.

Council Chamber, 1st Floor, Town Hall, 5 Clove Crescent, London 
E14 2BG.

The meeting is open to the public 

Members: Ward Represented

Chair: Councillor Rajib Ahmed Lansbury;
Vice-
Chair: 

Councillor Peter Golds Island Gardens;

Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed Bromley North;
Councillor Amina Ali Bow East;
Councillor Sirajul Islam Bethnal Green;
Councillor Mahbub Alam St Dunstan's;
Councillor Shah Alam Mile End;
Councillor Dave Chesterton Blackwall & Cubitt Town;
Councillor Suluk Ahmed Spitalfields & Banglatown;
Councillor Denise Jones St Katharine's & Wapping;
Councillor Harun Miah Shadwell;
Councillor Md. Maium Miah Canary Wharf;
Councillor Joshua Peck Bow West;
Councillor Candida Ronald Blackwall & Cubitt Town;
Councillor Vacancy

[The quorum for this meeting is 3 Members]

Contact for further enquiries: 
Antoinette Duhaney, Democratic Services, 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG
Tel: 020 7364 4120
E-mail: antoinette.duhaney@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee

Scan this code for 
an electronic 
agenda: 



Public Information

Attendance at meetings.
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis.

Audio/Visual recording of meetings. 
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page.

Mobile telephones
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting. 

Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.     

Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall. 
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place 
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall. 
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf .
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm)

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx) 

Meeting access/special requirements. 
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda. 

Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned.

Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.  

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date. 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, Apple and Android apps.  

QR code for 
smart phone 
users

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 
4)

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 
Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer.

PAGE
NUMBER

WARD(S)
AFFECTED

2. RULES OF PROCEDURE -  LICENCES FOR 
SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 

To note the rules of procedure relating to determinations of 
licenses for sexual entertainment venues.

5 - 8

3. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

3 .1 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 (as amended) Application for a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for White Swan 
(Majingos), 556 Commercial Road, E14 7JD  

9 - 130 Shadwell

3 .2 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 (as amended) Application for a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for Club Enviee 
(Flamingos), 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA  

131 - 284 Whitechapel

4. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS URGENT 

Next Meeting of the Licensing Committee
Tuesday, 13 September 2016 at 7.00 p.m. to be held in The Council Chamber, 1st 
Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:-
Melanie Clay, Corporate Director of Law, Probity & Governance & Monitoring Officer, 
Telephone Number: 020 7364 4800

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Approved 16.06.16

LICENSING COMMITTEE

RULES OF PROCEDURE

GOVERNING APPLICATIONS FOR

SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCES 

UNDER SECTION 2 OF AND SCHEDULE 3 TO 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS 

PROVISIONS) ACT 1982

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Approved 16.06.16

1. Interpretation

1.1 These Procedures describe the way in which hearings will be conducted under 
section 2 of and schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 as amended.

2. Composition of the Licensing Committee

2.1 The Licensing Committee will consist of fifteen (15) members and no business 
shall be transacted unless at least three (3) members of the Licensing 
Committee are present and able to form a properly constituted Licensing 
Committee.  The Chair shall have a second or casting vote.

3. Procedure

3.1 The hearing shall take place in public save that the Licensing Committee may 
exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it considers that, on 
balance, it is in the public interest to do so.  The parties and any person 
representing them may be excluded in the same way as another member of the 
public.  Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to 
the Licensing Committee in writing, any information which, they would have 
been entitled to give orally had they not been required to leave. Where there 
are a number of items on the agenda, the adjournment of that item for a short 
period, whilst another item is heard, may allow this process to be carried out 
effectively.

3.2 The Chair will begin by asking the parties to identify themselves and confirm 
whether or not they are represented.

3.3 The Licensing Committee should always satisfy itself that sufficient notice of the 
hearing has been given to all parties and if not satisfied, then the Licensing 
Committee should take such steps as it thinks fit to deal with that issue before 
reaching its determination and this could include adjourning that application to a 
later date.

3.4 The Chair will explain how the proceedings will be conducted, and indicate any 
time limits that will be imposed on the parties.  In setting time limits, the 
Licensing Committee will take into account the importance of ensuring that all 
parties receive a fair hearing, and the importance of ensuring that all 
applications are determined expeditiously and without undue delay.  Further the 
Licensing Committee should allow each party an equal amount of time.

3.6 If a party considers that any time limit is not sufficient then they should address 
the Licensing Committee and which will determine accordingly.

3.7 If any party has informed the Authority that they will not be attending or be 
represented at the hearing or any party does not give notice that they will not 
be attending but fails to attend and is not represented, the Licensing Committee 
may proceed in their absence or adjourn the hearing. 

Page 6



Approved 16.06.16

3.8 If the Licensing Committee adjourns the hearing it should specify the date, time 
and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.

3.9 If the Licensing Committee holds the hearing in the absence of a party, it will 
consider at the hearing the application or objection given by that party.

3.10 The Chair will invite an Officer of the Licensing Section to present the report by 
briefly summarising the application and the number and type of the 
representations as set out in the papers circulated.  The Officer will also advise 
of any discussions held with the parties; any amendments made to the 
application; any objections withdrawn; and any agreed conditions that the 
Licensing Committee is being asked to consider.  The Officer shall not give any 
opinion on the application or ask the Committee to make an inference based on 
such an opinion.

3.11 Members of the Licensing Committee can then ask questions of clarification of 
the Licensing Officer or seek legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the 
Licensing Committee if they require in respect of matters raised during the 
presentation by the Licensing Officer.

3.12 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee will then give any relevant legal 
advice that the Licensing Committee need to take into consideration.

3.13 The Chair will then ask the applicant or their representative, if present, to state 
their case.  This should avoid repetition of material already available to the 
Licensing Committee in the Officer’s report or otherwise, and include any 
reasons why an exception should be made to the Sex Establishment Licensing 
Policy, where appropriate; address, where appropriate, the matters stated in 
the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy that the Licensing Committee will take 
into account when considering applications; and respond to the written 
objections received.  The submission may be followed by the evidence of any 
person who is giving supporting evidence on behalf of the applicant or who has 
made a representation in favour of the application.

3.14 The application is to be presented within any time limit that has been set.

3.15 Where an applicant is unrepresented and having difficulty in presenting their 
application then the Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask 
questions of the applicant so that the relevant points are addressed and 
clarified for the Licensing Committee.

3.16 The objectors (or their representative) will be invited to question the applicant.

3.16 Members of the Licensing Committee may ask questions of the applicant and/ 
or their representative as well as any other person who has spoken in support 
of the application.  Members can also ask questions of any other person 
present for the applicant who they consider can assist.

3.17 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask questions for the 
purpose of clarifying points for the Licensing Committee.

Page 7



Approved 16.06.16

3.18 The Chair will then ask objectors against the application to state their case 
within any time limit that has been set. The objectors should not repeat what is 
already set out in their objections. In stating their case, the objectors should 
provide clarification on any points previously requested by the Council.  The 
submission may be followed by the evidence of any person who is giving 
supporting evidence.

3.19 The applicant (or their representative) will be invited to question the objectors.

3.19 Members of the Licensing Committee may then ask questions of the objectors 
and any other person who has spoken given evidence in support.  Members 
can also ask questions of any other person present who they consider can 
assist.

3.20 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask questions for the 
purpose of clarifying points for the Licensing Committee.

3.21 Petitions will be considered but Members should proceed with caution when 
relying upon petitions used as evidence due to the structure and wording used.

3.22 The Chair will intervene at any stage of the hearing to prevent repetitious or 
irrelevant points being raised.

 
3.23 The objectors (or their representative) will then be permitted to “Sum Up”.

3.24 The applicant (or their representative) will then be permitted to “Sum Up”.

3.25 The Licensing Committee will consider its decision in private save that the 
Legal Adviser and Democratic Services Officer will remain with them.

3.26 The Licensing Committee will normally return to open session to announce its 
decision but where they consider it appropriate for the determination to be 
given at a later time then the Chair will advise the parties present that the 
decision will not be announced then but that the determination will take place 
later and that written notification will be dispatched to all parties advising then of 
the determination.

4. Exclusions

4.1 In addition to any exclusion under paragraph 3.1 above, The Licensing 
Committee may require any person attending the hearing who in their opinion is 
behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may refuse to permit 
the person to return; or allow them to return only on such conditions as 
Licensing Committee may specify.

4.2 Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the 
Authority in writing, any information which, they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave.

Page 8



Committee :

Licensing Committee

Date Classification

Unclassified

Report No. Agenda Item No.

Report of :
David Tolley
Head of Consumer and Business 
Relations

Originating Officer: 
Andrew Heron 
Licensing Officer

Title:
Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) 
Application for a renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for the White 
Swan, 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 
7JD

Ward affected: 
Shadwell

1.0 Summary

Applicants: David Tumner 
Name and White Swan
Address of Premises: 556 Commercial Road

London
E14 7JD

Licence sought: Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) 
Application for a renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence

Objectors: None
  

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and then 
adjudicate accordingly.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97)
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT

Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 
register

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder

File Only Andrew Heron
020 7364 2665

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.1



3.0 Background

3.1 This is an application made by David Tumner for a renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence under Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by reg. 47 (4), 
Provisions of Services Regulations 2009 ‘the service regulations’) and 
the Policing and Crime Act 2009 for the White Swan, 556 Commercial 
Road, London, E14 7JD.

3.2 A licence from the Council is required for the use of a premise as a sex 
Establishment. A sexual entertainment venue is any premises at which 
relevant entertainment is provided before a live audience for the financial 
gain of the organiser or the entertainer. 

Relevant entertainment means:
 any live performance; or 
 any live display of nudity;

which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must 
reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for 
the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the 
audience (whether by verbal or other means).

3.3 The premises is currently granted a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Licence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 (as amended).  A copy of the existing licence is enclosed as 
Appendix 1.  The licence consists of the basic licence, plus additional 
conditions relevant to that premises only.  In addition, the Tower Hamlets 
Standard SEV Conditions also apply and for part of the licence.

This licence was in force up to: 31st May 2016 or during the time that the 
licensee(s) is/are the occupier of the premises, whichever is the shorter 
period, or unless sooner surrendered or revoked.

The hours permitted are:
 Sunday to Thursday from 09:00hrs to 03:00hrs (the following day)
 Friday to Saturday from 09:00hrs to 05:00hrs (the following day)

The named management responsible for this premises are:
 Munir Grami - Manager
 Francisco Jose Hilario Afonso – Duty Manager
 David Tunmer – Manager / Owner
 Cheryl Tunmer – Manager / Owner

This licence is granted subject to conditions as follows:

1. The Standard Conditions of the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets made under paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as revised on 
23rd June 2015 and sent to the Licence Holder as part of the 

Page 10



Decision Notice dated 17th July 2015.  It is the duty of the licence 
holder to be aware of and abide by those conditions;

2. The following additional conditions specific to this Premises:

42. No more than 300 persons shall be allowed on the Premises 
at any one time. 

3.4 The current renewal application is to permit the premises to operate as a 
sexual entertainment venue with opening hours as follows:  

 Sunday to Thursday from 09:00hrs to 03:00hrs (the following day)
 Friday to Saturday from 09:00hrs to 05:00hrs (the following day)

3.5 The premises also holds a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 that. A 
copy of the existing licence is enclosed for Members’ information as 
Appendix 2.  The licence was granted on 3rd December 2015.

The licence granted the following licensable activities:

The Supply of Alcohol (both on and off sales)
Monday to Sunday from 09:00hrs to 04:30hrs (the following day) 

The Provision of Regulated Entertainment (indoors), in the form of Films, 
Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance and anything of a 
similar description

 Monday to Sunday from 12:00hrs (midday) to 04:30hrs (the 
following day)

The opening hours of the premises:
 Monday to Sunday from 09:00hrs to 05:00hrs (the following day)

3.6 A copy of the application is enclosed as Appendix 3. 

3.7 Maps of the premises location are available in Appendix 4.

3.8 Members should note that the two regimes run concurrently therefore 
the premises licence granted under the Licensing Act 2003 could 
effectively run without the SEV in operation, if alcohol and regulated 
entertainment was solely taking place. 

4.0 Layout of the Premises

4.1 A layout plan of the premises is available in Appendix 5.  The premises 
was visited on 17th June 2016, attended by Andrew Heron, Licensing 
Officer and the premises’ Manager of Operations.  The layout of the 
premises was confirmed to be the same as contained in the application.  

Page 11



In addition, a checklist of questions was completed.  A copy of the 
checklist completed during that visit is available in Appendix 6.

The checklist covered the following points:
 The Code of Conduct for performers
 The House Rules
 The Performer Safety Policy
 Retention of performers’ personal details
 Details of Door Staff attending each evening
 The venue interior and exterior (for example, whether the interior 

of the premises is visible from the outside)
 Public access areas and approved access to dressing rooms
 CCTV Coverage
 Functionality of the CCTV
 Advertising, both externally to the premises and online
 Information on tariffs, including both dances and beverages

4.2 In conclusion from those visits, the Licensing Officer was fully satisfied 
that all conditions of the licence were met.  Management were fully 
cooperative, records were kept in excellent working order and there are 
no concerns moving forward with the renewal of the licence application.

4.3 Members may wish to note that the premises is split into two.  To the 
western side of the premises, the White Swan is a bar aimed at the gay 
community.  The eastern end of the premises is a strip club.  There are 
different access entry points to each venue.  Please see the plan of the 
premises.

4.4 Photographs of the premises are available in Appendix 7.

5.0 Adverts and Flyers

5.1 No adverts or flyers used to promote the premises have been included in 
the application; however, Management informs the Licensing Officer at 
the inspection that adverts are placed in ‘The Wharf’, a newspaper which 
circulates around Canary Wharf.  In addition, the venue has both Twitter 
and Facebook accounts.

5.2 The premises two website: http://www.bjswhiteswan.com/  in relation to 
the gay venue, and http://www.majingos.net/ in relation to the strip club.

5.3 There is no external advertising at the premises.

6.0 Standard Conditions

6.1 The Council has adopted Standard Conditions that were revised on 23rd 
June 2015, which act as default conditions that are attached to all 

Page 12

http://www.bjswhiteswan.com/
http://www.majingos.net/


Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences.  These are available as part of 
the licence in Appendix 1. 

7.0 Codes of Conduct and Policies 

7.1 The applicant has provided Codes of Conduct and policies as required 
by the Standard Conditions, see Appendix 8, namely:

 Code of Conduct for Performers (there are separate documents for the 
White Swan and Majingos sides of the venue)

 Code of Conduct of Customers
 Dancers’ Welfare Policy 

7.2 During the compliance check visits, the Code of Conduct for Customers 
was available throughout the premises.  The Code of Conduct for 
Performer and the Dancers’ Welfare Policy was available in the dressing 
room. 

7.3 If the application is granted subject to the Standard Conditions, the 
codes and policies will have to meet the requirements set out in the 
Standard Conditions. 

7.4 Members have discretion to modify the standard conditions or add 
appropriate conditions.

8.0 Assessment and information for the vicinity 

8.1 Appendix 9 is a map of the Licensing Service’s determination of the 
vicinity around the premises, set at 100meters from the premises.  It is 
noted that there has been no significant changes since the original 
application.

8.2 Determination of the “use” of other Premises in the “vicinity” - vicinity” is 
likely to be a narrower and smaller area than the “relevant locality” much 
will depend upon the physical location of the premises, its appearance 
and upon the nature and hours of its operation.

8.3 Below is a list of notable premises within vicinity as observed by 
Licensing Officer visiting the area on foot and using GIS maps:

Residential 
accommodation

 There is no residential accommodation above 
the White Swan.

 627-631 Commercial Road E14
 1-14 Powlesland Court, 41 Whitehorse Road 

E14
 595A Belgrave Street E14
 2-4 Belgrave street

Page 13



 Flats 1-14, 5 Boulcott Street E1
 2-4 Boulcott street E1
 Flats 1-3 10 Ratcliffe Lane E14
 Flats 1-4 12 Ratcliffe Lane E14
 John Scurr House E14

Schools There are no schools within the vicinity.

Premises used 
by children and 
vulnerable 
persons

 Tower Project 45-55 Whitehorse Road, 
London, E1 0ND

 Half Moon Theatre, 43 White Horse Road, 
London E1 0ND

Youth 
community and 
leisure centres

 John Scurr Community Centre 1a Bekesbourne 
Street. E14 7JQ

 Tower Project 45-55 Whitehorse Road, 
London, E1 0ND

 Eastside Centre, 234-235 Railway Arches, 
Adjacent to 3 Boulcott Street E1 0HR

 Royal Foundation of St Katherine Conference 
and Retreat House

Religious 
centres and 
public places of 
worship

There are none in the vicinity.

Access routes 
to and from 
premises listed 
above

 The premises sits on the A13 Commercial 
Road, one of London’s busiest arterial roads 
linking Essex and Central London.

 Commercial Road is busy 24 hours a day.

 There are a number of bus routes, as well as 
night buses.

Page 14



 Limehouse Station (Mainline C2C and DLR) is 
a 2 minute walk away.

Existing 
licensed 
premises in the 
vicinity

 Off licence: Days News 568 Commercial 
Road, E14 7JD

 Public House: Railway Tavern 576 
Commercial Road, E14 7JD

 Public House: Ca’s Bar (Jacks Bar) 566 
Commercial Road, E14 7JD

 Restaurant: Rajboy Indian Restaurant, 564 
Commercial Road, E14 7JD 

 Restaurant: Shan Shui Jian Chinese 
Restaurant, 562 Commercial Road, E14 7JD 

 Off licence: Costcutter 599-603 Commercial 
Road London E1 0HJ 

 Theatre: Half Moon Theatre, 43 White Horse 
Road, London E1 0ND

 Public House: White Horse 48 White Horse 
Road London E1 OND

 Bookmakers: Ladbrokes, 546-548 
Commercial Road London E1 0HY

 Bookmakers: Paddy Power, 544 Commercial 
Road London E1 0HY

 Off licence: Tanim 540 Commercial Road 
London E1 0HY

 Fast food: Hung Tou 538 Commercial Road 
London E1 0HY

 Bookmakers: William Hill, 532-4 Commercial 
Road London E1 0HY

 Off licence: Grocery Station, Arch, 242, 
Ratcliffe Lane E14 7JE

Page 15



9.0 Assessment and information for the Locality  

9.1 Appendix 10 contains the Ward Profile of Shadwell to provide members 
with details in relation to the locality of the premise.

9.2 In regards to the “relevant locality” :

 The relevant locality was assessed as being within a 100 metre radius 
centred on the premises, 556 Commercial Road.

 The premises sits on the junction of Commercial Road (the A13) and 
Butcher Row (leading southwards to The Highway (the A1203)

 The vicinity is a mixture of residential, commercial and transport 
infrastructure

9.3 The character of the locality:

 The premises is within Shadwell Ward

 The ward has been assessed to have around 5% of the Borough’s 
residents.

 The Wards profiles downloaded from the Council’s website are 
appended.

10.0 Other Sexual Entertainment Venues

10.1 The following premises have applied for Sexual Entertainment Venues 
under the new licensing Regime

 Club Enviee (now 
Flamingos)

30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA

 Metropolis 234 Cambridge Heath Road, London, E2 
9NN

 Nags Head 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 
1DU

 Whites 
Gentleman’s Club



32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW

 White Swan 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 7JD

Page 16



11.0 Consultation

11.1 The application has been consulted on in accordance with the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) and the 
Tower Hamlets Sexual Entertainment Policy.

 
This has included:

a) A site notice at the premises displayed by the applicant during the 
required period.  A copy of the notice is appended as Appendix 11.

b) A press advert was placed in the Docklands and East London 
Advertiser on Thursday 2nd June 2016 by the Applicant, which again is 
appended as Appendix 12.

11.2 The following is a list of those also consulted in regards to the 
application:

 The Police
 The Fire Brigade
 Building Control
 Health and Safety
 Ward Councillors
 Development Control Team
 Local residents living within 50m of the premises

12.0 Responses to the Consultation

12.1 The Police were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

12.2 The Fire Brigade were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

12.3 The Council expects the premises to have planning consent for the 
intended use and hours of operation, or otherwise have lawful planning 
status before making an application for a new licence.  Building Control 
were consulted, please find below a summary of their comments.

 None, therefore it is assumed that all planning permissions are 
acceptable.

12.4 Health and Safety were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

Page 17



12.5 Ward Councillors were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

12.6 Development Control Team were consulted, please find below a 
summary of their comments.

 None

12.7 Local residents (Members should note that no written public consultation 
is required for the renewal process), please find below a summary of 
their comments.

 None

13.0 Licensing Authority Recommendations Following Consultation

13.1 As the application has received no valid representations from any 
consulted parties, the Licensing Officer makes a recommendation to 
Members to grant this application.  

14.0 Summary of Premises and Licence History

14.1 A new premises licence was applied for on 22nd October 2015.  No 
representations were received, though the application was amended by 
the Applicant upon consultation with the Metropolitan Police (in relation 
to the CCTV condition only).  The application was in essence to cover 
the new plans for the premises.  A copy of the current licence is 
available in Appendix 1.  

14.2 No further amendments or enquiries have been made in relation to the 
premises since the granting of that licence.

15.0 Complaints and Enforcement History

15.1 The premises has received the following complaints in the last 24 
months:

Date Complainant Nature of Complaint

09/03/2015 Patron Complainant claims that the premises is 
regularly open until 05:00hrs outside of the 
hours currently permitted on the licence.  
Also complains that the premises is two 
separate venues and should have separate 
licences.  Thirdly, complained that he was 
propositioned by a dancer to have kissing 
@ £240/half hour in a private room.  

Page 18



The complainant was advised that we will 
visit and/or the premises to ensure 
compliance with current opening hours, but 
that there was a current application for a 
new licence that he could make 
representation to.  He was advised that the 
Authority is satisfied with the layout at this 
time and that licensable activities can be 
carried out under a single licence.  The 
matter regarding the proposition was 
referred to the Police for their information.

31/07/2015 Cllr Golds Complaint in relation to a banner sating 
“Gentleman’s Club” which was viewable 
from the DLR.  Contact was made to the 
venue and the banner was removed, 
though it was noted that whilst the wording 
clearly indicated the nature of the venue, 
no sexual imagery was contained within the 
banner

15.2 The premises has received the following visits by the Local Authority in 
the past 24months:

Date Authority 
(TS/Lic)

Nature of visit

17/06/2016 Licensing SEV application inspection visit.  A 
Licensing Officer met with the Manager of 
Operations and found there to be no issues 
under either the SEV or the Licensing Act.  
Both sides of the premises were visited.

13/11/2015 Licensing General compliance check under SEV 
legislation and Licensing Act.  All ok, no 
issues, including CCTV retention.

03/11/2015 Licensing Notice check for SEV renewal application.

09/07/2015 Licensing Notice check for Licensing Act application.

13/03/2015 Licensing SEV Compliance Visit – all OK, CCTV 
retention to be checked at later visit.

Page 19



15.3 The premises has been subject to the following enforcement actions:

Date Authority (TS/Lic) Nature of Enforcement

None N/a N/a

16.0 Policy - Appropriate Number of Sexual Entertainment Venues

16.1 The Council has determined that there are a sufficient number of sex 
shops, sex cinemas and sexual entertainment venues currently 
operating in the borough and it does not want to see an increase in the 
numbers of premises that are currently providing these activities.

16.2 The Council intends to adopt a policy to limit the number of sexual 
entertainment venues in the borough to nil however it recognises that 
there are a number of businesses that have been providing sexual 
entertainment in Tower Hamlets for several years. The Council will not 
apply this limitation when considering applications for premises that were 
already trading with express permission for the type of entertainment 
which is now defined as sexual entertainment on the date that the 
licensing provisions were adopted by the authority if they can 
demonstrate in their application:

 High standards of management;
 A management structure and capacity to operate the venue;
 The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for sex 

establishments.

16.3 The Council will consider each application on its merit although new 
applicants will have to demonstrate why the Council should depart from 
its policy. Furthermore if any of the existing premises cease trading there 
is no presumption that the Council will consider any new applications 
more favourably.

17.0 Home Office Guidance

17.1 The Home Office issued guidance to local authorities in March 2010 to 
assist local authorities in carrying out their functions under the Act. 

17.2 The Council can refuse applications on grounds related to an 
assessment of the relevant locality. A licence can be refused if either, at 
the time the application is determined the number of Sexual 
Entertainment Venues, or Sexual Entertainment Venues of a particular 
kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or exceeds the number that the 
authority considers appropriate for that locality; or that a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue would be inappropriate having regard to the 

Page 20



character of the relevant locality, the use to which any premises in the 
vicinity are put or the layout, character or condition of the premises. Nil 
may be the appropriate number.

17.3 The decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is a matter 
for the Council. However, such questions must be decided on the facts 
of the individual application.

17.4 Once the Council has determined the relevant locality, it should seek to 
make an assessment of the ‘character’ of the relevant locality and how 
many, if any, Sexual Entertainment Venues, or Sexual Entertainment 
Venues of a particular kind, it considers appropriate for that relevant 
locality.

18.0 Licence Conditions

18.1 Once the Council has decided to grant a licence they are able to impose 
terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of 
conditions specific to the individual licence under paragraph 8 of 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982, or standard conditions applicable to all Sexual Entertainment 
Venues, or particular types of Sexual Entertainment Venues.

18.2 Where the Council decides to produce standard conditions under 
paragraph 13 they will apply to every licence granted, renewed or 
transferred by the authority unless they have been expressly excluded or 
varied.

18.3 Most sexual entertainment venues will require a Licensing Act 2003 
licence as well as a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. Where this is 
the case, local authorities should avoid duplicating licence conditions 
and should ensure that conditions imposed on the each licence are 
relevant to the activities authorised by that licence. For example, 
conditions relating to the sale of alcohol should only appear on a 
premises licences or clubs premises certificate and should not be 
imposed on sexual entertainment venue licence. Likewise, conditions 
relating the provisions of relevant entertainment should appear on the 
sexual entertainment venue licence and not a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. Local authorities should also avoid imposing 
conditions on either licence that are contradictory.

18.4 In many cases licences granted under the 2003 Act to existing operators 
will contain conditions that relate expressly and exclusively to the 
provision of relevant entertainment. Such a condition might prohibit 
contact between a performer and customer during a lap dance. In these 
cases, in order to avoid duplication, where conditions on premises 
licences or club premises certificates relate only to the provision of 
relevant entertainment, they shall be read as if they were deleted from 
the 3rd appointed day onwards.

Page 21



18.5 In cases where conditions on a premises licence or clubs premises 
certificate are inconsistent with, and less onerous than, the conditions in 
the licence granted under the 1982 Act they shall likewise be read as 
though they have been deleted.

19.0 Sexual Entertainment Venues and Determination

19.1 Tower Hamlets Licensing Authority has received advice in relation to the 
determination of an application, Members would be wise to take a ten-
point approach and provide answers to the following:

1. Determine the extent, nature and content of the “Relevant 
Entertainment”

2. Consider the Mandatory Grounds of refusal – are these engaged? 

3. Discretionary Grounds (Internal): the ‘people’: Consider the 
suitability of the Applicant and other persons involved; are they 
suitable to hold and operate a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
licence?

4. Discretionary Grounds (Internal): the ‘premises’: Consider the 
suitability of the premises for a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
licence; is the premises suitable for the operation of the proposed 
relevant entertainment?

5. Discretionary Grounds (External):  What is the “vicinity” in respect 
of the current application?

6. Discretionary Grounds (External): What are the uses of other 
premises in the vicinity in respect of the current application?

7. Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the “relevant locality” in 
respect of the current application?

8. Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the “character” of the 
relevant locality in respect of the current application?

9. Is a Sexual Entertainment Venue of the type contemplated in the 
application appropriate having regard to (i) the premises; (ii) the 
character of the relevant locality and (iii) the use of premises in 
the vicinity?

10.a     Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the appropriate 
number – regardless of the LBTH/Policy Presumption – of Sexual 
Entertainment Venues (collectively & by type) in the relevant 
locality of the current application?

Page 22



10.b     Is the LBTH/Policy engaged by the current application? (b) 
Where the LBTH/Policy is engaged has the applicant established 
that the current application is an exception to that policy?  

19.2 A copy of LBTH Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy is produced in 
Appendix 13 for Member’s information.

20.0 Legal Comments

20.1 The Council may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a 
licence on one or more of the grounds specified below (Sch 3 para 12(1) 
LGMPA (‘the Act’), as amended by reg 47 (4), Provision of Services 
Regulations 2009):

20.2 The mandatory grounds for refusal are as follows:
(a) the applicant is under the age of 18;
(b) that the applicant is for the time being disqualified from holding a 

licence;
(c) that the person is a person other than a body corporate, who is not 

resident in the U.K. or was not resident in the U.K. throughout the 
six months preceding the date of the application;

(d) that the applicant is a body corporate which is not incorporated in 
the U.K; or

(e) that the applicant has been refused a sex establishment licence for 
the premises within the twelve months preceding the date of the 
application and the refusal has not been reversed on appeal.

20.3 The Committee has discretion to refuse the application if any of the 
following grounds for refusal apply under para. 12(3) of Schedule 3 of 
the Act.

The discretionary grounds for refusal are as follows:
(a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having 

been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;
(b) that if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred, the 

business to which it relates would be managed by or carried on for 
the benefit of a person other than the applicant who would have 
been refused a licence if they had applied themselves;

(c) the number of sex establishments exceeds the number or is equal 
to the number which the council consider is appropriate for that 
locality; or

(d) the grant or renewal of licence would be inappropriate because of:
i. the character of the relevant locality;
ii. the use to which the premises in the vicinity are put; or
iii. the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, 

vessel or stall.

 (In relation to premises, ‘the relevant locality’ means the locality 
where the premises are situated).

Page 23



20.4 There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court, as set out in para. 27 
of Schedule 3 of the Act. An appeal against the decision of a Magistrates 
Court may be brought to the Crown Court. In addition, the decision of the 
Committee may be appealed on established public law principles.

20.5 The Committee should only consider those comments within the letters 
of objection or made orally at the hearing which are relevant to the 
mandatory or discretionary grounds for refusal. Comments contained 
within the letters of objection or orally at the hearing which relate to 
moral grounds, for example, must not be considered by the Committee.

20.6 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the Hearing.

21.0 Finance Comments

21.1 The Chief Finance Officer has been consulted on this report and has no 
additional comments to make.

Page 24



22.0 Appendices

Appendix 1 A copy of the existing SEV Licence (including the LBTH 
Standard Conditions)

Appendix 2 A copy of the existing Premises Licence

Appendix 3 A copy of the renewal application

Appendix 4 Maps of the premises showing the site location 

Appendix 5 Location plan and internal layout plans of the premises

Appendix 6 Compliance Visit Checklist

Appendix 7 Photographs of the premises

Appendix 8 Code of Conduct for Performers for the White Swan and 
Majingos, Code of Conduct for Customers (House Rules), 
Dancers Welfare Policy 

Appendix 9 Vicinity Map

Appendix 10 Ward Profile of Shadwell 

Appendix 11 Copy of Site Notice

Appendix 12 Copy of Press Advert

Appendix 13 Copy of LBTH SEV Policy

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 27



M:\Licensing\Sex Establishments\LICENCES\White Swan Licence FINAL 140815.docx 

LICENCE FOR A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE 

Licence Number: 19573 

The LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS under provisions of Schedule 3 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, in relation to the licensing 
of sex establishments, as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, 
grants, in accordance to its Licensing Policy:   

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of SEV licence: 

David Tunmer 

to use premises: 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

The White Swan 
556 Commercial Road 

Post town 

 London 

Post Code 

E14 7JD 

Telephone number 

None 

as a Sexual Entertainment Venue. 

This licence is in force up to: 31st May 2016 or during the time that the licensee(s) is/are 
the occupier of the premises, whichever is the shorter period, or unless sooner 
surrendered or revoked. 

The hours permitted are: Sunday to Thursday from 09:00hrs to 03:00hrs (the 
following day) 

 Friday to Saturday from 09:00hrs to 05:00hrs (the 
following day) 

The named management responsible for this premises are 

Munir Grami - Manager 
Francisco Jose Hilario Afonso – Duty Manager 
David Tunmer – Manager / Owner 
Cheryl Tunmer – Manager / Owner 

Page 28



M:\Licensing\Sex Establishments\LICENCES\White Swan Licence FINAL 140815.docx 

This licence is granted subject to conditions as follows: 

1. the Standard Conditions of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets made under
paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 as revised on 23rd June 2015 and sent to the Licence
Holder as part of the Decision Notice dated 17th July 2015.  It is the duty of the
licence holder to be aware of and abide by those conditions.

2. the following additional conditions specific to this Premises:

42. No more than 300 persons shall be allowed on the Premises at any one time.

Other requirements or restrictions: 

This licence must be prominently and visibly displayed inside the entrance to the 
Premises. 

This licence together with the standard conditions must be available at the Premises 
at all times. 

Signed by John McCrohan 
 Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Page 29



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 

(REVISED 23
RD

 JUNE, 2015)

Definitions 

In this Licence, 

‘approved layout’ means the layout of the Premises shown on the 

attached plan.

‘authorised officers’ means officers of the Borough Council or of 

the Police

‘drinks tariff’ means a tariff showing the price of all drinks

‘entertainment tariff’ means a tariff showing the price of all 

sexual entertainment performances, displays of nudity and services 

related to the sexual entertainment performance (including charges 

for admission to any part of the Premises; for hire of rooms, booths 

or reserved areas; or for the company of performers)

‘nudity’, ‘display of nudity’  and ‘sexual entertainment’ are 

references to those terms as defined by  section 27 of the Policing 

and Crime Act 2009.

‘performers’ means persons engaged by or through the Licensee 

who provide or participate in sexual entertainment

‘premises’ includes land, buildings, stalls, structures or erections, 

and all forms of vessels or vehicles (including for the avoidance of 

doubt bicycles, motor vehicles, boats and aircraft).  It does not 

include any private dwelling to which the public is not admitted.

‘the Premises’ means the premises authorised in this Licence as a 

sexual entertainment venue and shown on the attached plan.

‘public area(s)’ means the area(s) outlined in blue on the attached 

plan, being the area within the Premises that the public are 

permitted to enter.  

‘the public’ includes customers, guests and visitors to the 

premises, but excludes performers and those employees or agents of 

the Licensee lawfully  engaged in managing or operating the 

Premises.

Page 30



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

‘sexual entertainment area(s)’ means the area(s) outlined in red 

on the attached plan, being locations where sexual entertainment is 

permitted to take place.

‘suggestive advertising content’ means photographs, sculptures, 

images,  tableaux, displays, sounds, spoken words or  writing –

including graphics, logos or trademarks-   that depict, indicate or 

suggest that sexual entertainment takes place on the Premises

General 

1. The Licensee must remain in personal control of the premises at all

times that it is trading or nominate in writing an individual over the

age of 18 with the authority to direct activities within the Premises.

2. The Licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of any change in

directors, trustees, partners or other persons concerned in the

management of the licensed activities within 14 days of such change.

3. The Licensee shall admit authorised officers to the Premises at all

reasonable times and at any time when the Premises are providing

sexual entertainment.  The Licensee shall provide in a timely fashion

copies of any documents reasonably required by an authorised officer

to prove compliance with this Licence.

4. The Licensee must give written notice to the Council if s/he wishes to

surrender the licence.

5. A suitable and sufficient number of door supervisors and trained staff

will be employed (based on a risk assessment) when sexual

entertainment is offered.  Their duties will include monitoring

customers to ensure that the Code of Conduct for Performers and the

House Rules are being obeyed.

6. The Licensee is to implement a suitable policy for the safety of the

performers when they leave the Premises.

7. The Council reserves the right to amend or alter these conditions

(provided that such change will not prevent the operators from viably

carrying on the business of the Premises) following consultation with

the licensees.

Page 31



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

Premises 

8. The approved layout of the Premises shall not be altered without

prior consent of the Council.

9. The Licensee shall ensure that the interior of the Premises where

sexual entertainment is offered shall not be capable of being seen

from the outside of the Premises, and that the exterior is maintained

with a suitable level of decorum (i.e. that it does not have anything

that depicts, indicates or suggests that sexual entertainment takes

place on the Premises).

10. Sexual entertainment shall take place only in the designated sexual

entertainment areas.

11. No member of the public shall be permitted to go anywhere outside

the public areas.  The public shall not be permitted access to the

performers’ changing rooms.

12. Without prejudice to condition 13 below CCTV shall be installed to

cover the inside and the outside of the Premises, covering all public

areas, including private performance areas and booths, entrances and

exits, but excluding the interior of toilets.  All cameras must be

maintained in working order.  All cameras shall continually record

whilst the Premises are open to the public and the recorded images

shall be kept available for a minimum of 31 days.  Recorded images

shall be made available to an authorised officer together with

facilities for viewing.  The recordings for the preceding 2 days shall

be made available immediately upon request.  Recordings outside this

period shall be made available on 24 hours’ notice.

13. CCTV cameras shall be installed and maintained at the locations

shown on the attached plan, to the reasonable satisfaction of the

licensing authority.

14. Members of the public may not enter or remain in the toilet cubicles

in the company of any performer.  Only one person at a time to enter

a toilet cubicle.

Page 32



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

Advertising 

15. The Licensee shall neither cause nor permit the display of suggestive

advertising content which is directed at or may be seen or heard by

any person from within the London Borough of Tower Hamlets:

on any public highway, street, waterway or railway;

in any place of general public use or access; or

in publicly accessible areas of premises  open to the public. 

This condition shall apply to prevent suggestive advertising content 

being displayed on the exterior of the Premises or handed out as 

flyers on the street.  It shall also apply to prevent suggestive 

advertising content being displayed on or in street furniture; 

telephone booths; hoardings, billboards, screens or projections;  as 

well as advertising displayed on or within any vehicles located on or 

near the highway.    The Licensee shall not permit any person to tout 

for business or encourage other persons to visit the Premises whilst 

on a public highway.

For the avoidance of doubt, this condition shall not be taken to 

prevent the Licensee from advertising the Premises using suggestive 

advertising content in media that restrict access to persons over the 

age of 18 years and would not reasonably be expected to be directed 

at persons in a public place (for instance, in adult magazines, 

websites or television channels).

16. All persons engaged or employed to attend to the entrance area or

exterior of the Premises must be suitably dressed and conduct

themselves so as not to indicate or suggest the availability of sexual

entertainment at the Premises.

17. Where the Council has given notice in writing to the Licensee

objecting to an advertisement on grounds that it would offend public

decency or be likely to encourage or incite crime or disorder, that

advertisement shall be removed or not be displayed.

Admission to the Premises 

18. No person under the age of 18 years shall be admitted to nor

permitted to remain on the Premises when sexual entertainment is

being offered, and a clear notice to this effect will be displayed at

each entrance to the Premises.

Page 33



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

19. Customers who appear to be under the age of 21 must be asked to

provide a Pass-scheme approved photographic card, their passport or

photographic driving licence to prove their age.  Prominent notices

must be clearly displayed to this effect at each entrance to the

Premises.

House Rules 

20. The Licensee shall prepare House Rules governing the conduct of

customers.

21. The House Rules shall be prominently and legibly displayed close to

each entrance of the Premises.

22. The House Rules must be made known to customers prior to their

admission to the Premises when sexual entertainment is provided

23. Signs must be displayed at appropriate locations advising that any

customer attempting to make physical contact with a performer will

be asked to leave.

24. No member of the public shall be admitted or allowed to remain at

the Premises if they appear to be intoxicated or under the influence

of illegal substances.

25. Customers may not be permitted to photograph, film or electronically

record any performance.

26. The House Rules must be implemented and effectively enforced at all

times when the premises are operating with sexual entertainment.

Performers 

27. Sexual entertainment will be given only by the performers engaged by

or through the Licensee and there will be no audience participation in

any performances.

28. The Licensee shall keep a record of each performer, including their

proper name and any aliases, and their residential address.  With

each record the Licensee shall keep a copy of a photographic form of

identity and proof of address of the performer. With each record the

Licensee shall keep a clear copy of an authorised document

demonstrating that each Performer and each member of the staff is

Page 34



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

entitled to work within the UK. A clear copy of this record shall be 

kept on the Premises at all times and be made immediately available 

for inspection by authorised officers.

29. On days when sexual entertainment is provided, the Licensee or their

representative shall keep a record of those performers working at the

Premises on that day in a daily record.  The daily record shall be

retained securely for at least 31 days and shall be made immediately

available for inspection by authorised officers.

Tariffs 

30. The Licensee shall prominently and legibly display the drinks tariff at

or by the bar and at the entrance.  No charge shall be made nor

payment accepted for any drink other than in accordance with the

tariff, save for clearly advertised discounts to the tariff.

31. The Licensee shall prominently and legibly display the entertainment

tariff in the entrance area and at key locations within the Premises

including entrances to any private performance areas and so far as

possible at the place(s) at which payment for any performance or

service is transacted as marked on the attached plan.  No charge shall

be made nor payment accepted by the Licensee for any services other

than in accordance with the tariff or clearly advertised discounts to

the tariff.

32. The Licensee shall so far as reasonably practicable keep such records

as are necessary to prove that the sums charged and payments taken

are for products or services advertised on the relevant tariff at the

amount shown on that tariff.  These records must be made available

within a reasonable time if requested by an authorised officer.

 Code of Conduct 

33. The Licensee shall prepare and implement a suitable Code of Conduct

for performers.

34. The Licensee shall ensure that each performer signs the Code of

Conduct in their proper name, acknowledging that they have read and

understood and are prepared to abide by the Code of Conduct, and

signed copies be kept on the premises for inspection by authorised

officers.

Page 35



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

35. During a performance there shall be no intentional physical contact

between a performer and the customer other than the transfer of

money or token at the beginning, during and at the conclusion of a

dance into the hand or a garter worn by the performer.  For the

avoidance of doubt nothing in this condition shall prevent Performers

from acting to prevent, deter or counter any attempts of physical

contact by a customer.

36. Without prejudice to standard condition 35 above, at the conclusion

of a performance there shall be no intentional physical contact

between a performer and the customer, save for a handshake.  For

the avoidance of doubt kissing is not permitted.

37. The Licensee must not permit gratuities or any other items to be

thrown at performers.

38. During a performance there shall be no full body physical contact

between performers and they are not to touch each other’s breasts or

genitalia either with their bodies or with objects.  Any performance

shall be restricted to dancing and the removal of clothes.  There must

not be any other form of sexual activity, including but not limited to

acts or the simulation of acts of personal stimulation.

39. Performers shall be provided with a changing room to which the

public have no access.

40. Performers must remain fully dressed while on the Premises, except

while performing in the sexual entertainment areas and in the

changing rooms shown on the approved plan.  [Without prejudice to

this requirement, there is to be no display of nudity in the public

areas of the Premises, other than during the course of a

performance].

41. Performers must re-dress at the conclusion of a performance.

Page 36



Appendix 2 

Page 37



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

1

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

Signed by John McCrohan
 Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date: 3rd December 2015 

(The White Swan) 
556 Commercial Road 
London 
E14 7JD 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of regulated entertainment 

Page 38



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

2

Part A - Format of premises licence 

Premises licence number 19807 

Part 1 - Premises details 
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

(The White Swan) 
556 Commercial Road 
London 

Post town 

 London 

Post code 

 E14 7JD 

Telephone number 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

• The sale by retail of alcohol
• The provision of regulated entertainment

Page 39



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

3

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

The Supply of Alcohol (both on and off sales) 
• Monday to Sunday from 09:00hrs to 04:30hrs (the following day)

The Provision of Regulated Entertainment (indoors), in the form of Films, Live Music, 
Recorded Music, Performances of Dance and anything of a similar description 

• Monday to Sunday from 12:00hrs (midday) to 04:30hrs (the following day)

The opening hours of the premises 

• Monday to Sunday from 09:00hrs to 05:00hrs (the following day)

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 
off supplies 

• On and off sales

Page 40



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

4

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable) 

Not applicable 

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 

Francisco Afonso 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 

  
  

Page 41



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

5

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended 

1. 
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 
the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises; 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are 

designed to require or encourage, individuals to— 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to 

drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time 
limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for 
a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a 
particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk 
of undermining a licensing objective 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize 
to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol 
over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters 
or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably 
be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another 
(other than where that other person is unable to drink without 
assistance by reason of disability 

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available.

Page 42



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

6

3. 
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the 
premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 
to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 
(a) a holographic mark, or 
(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

4. The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures— 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint  
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 
material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify 
the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that 
these measures are available. 

5. 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the 
permitted price. 

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor
Duties Act 1979; 

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula — 
 P = D + (D x V) 

where — 

(i) P is the permitted price 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol 

as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply 
of the alcohol, and 

Page 43



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

7

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date 
of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 
there is in force a premises licence 

(i) the holder of the premises licence 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of 

such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a 

supply of alcohol under such a licence 
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 

there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of 
the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance 
with the Value Added Tax Act 1994 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price
given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given
by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be 
different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) 
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax 

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to 
sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the 
period of 14 days beginning on the second day 

Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or 
more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, such 
individuals must be licensed with the Security Industry Authority. 
This does not apply to premises within paragraph. 8(3) (a) of Schedule 2 to the 
Private Security Industry Act 2001, (premises with premises licences authorising 
plays or films), or 
in respect of premises in relation to- 
any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3) (b) or (c) of Schedule 2 (premises 
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary 
event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or  
any occasion within paragraph 8(3) (d) of Schedule 2 (occasions prescribed by 
regulations under that Act) unless the Licence specifically states otherwise. 

Security activity means an activity to which paragraph 2(1) (a) of Schedule 2 of 
the Private Security Industry Act 2001 of that schedule applies, and 

Page 44



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

8

Paragraph 8(5) of Schedule 2 (interpreting of references to an occasion) applies 
as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of Schedule 2 of the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001  

Where the exhibition of films is authorised, the admission of children to the 
exhibition of any film must be to be restricted as follows:  If the London Borough 
of Tower Hamlets Licensing Section has issued a particular notification of 
restriction to the licence holder, that restriction must be adhered. Otherwise the 
recommendation of the film classification body must be followed.  Children 
means persons aged under 18 and “film classification body” means the person or 
persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 
1984 (currently the British Board of Film Classification) 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

1. No-one under the age of 18 is allowed on the premises;

2. SIA registered Door Supervisors must be employed at the premises;
o Monday and Tuesday: 2 SIA to be employed from 18:00 - Closing 
o Wednesday and Thursday: 3 SIA to be employed from 18:00 - Closing
o Friday and Saturday: 5 SIA to be employed from 18:00 - Closing 
o Sunday: 3 SIA to be employed from 18:00 - Closing 

3. A count must be kept against a capacity limit of 300 persons;

4. CCTV coverage must be provided and recordings kept for a period of not
less than 31 days;

5. The premises must use an incident/refusals book.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

Not applicable 

Annex 4 - Plans  

The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date: 

• 22nd October 2015 – Basement and Ground Floor

Page 45



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

9

Part B - Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number 19807 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

(The White Swan) 
556 Commercial Road 

Post town 

 London 

Post code 

E14 7JD 

Telephone number 

 

Where the licence is time limited the 
dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the 
licence  

• The sale by retail of alcohol
• The provision of regulated

entertainment

Licensing Act 2003 

Page 46



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CommercialRd.556.WhiteSwan 

10

The times the 
licence 
authorises 
the carrying 
out of 
licensable 
activities 

The Supply of Alcohol (both on and off sales) 
• Monday to Sunday from 09:00hrs to 04:30hrs (the following

day)

The Provision of Regulated Entertainment (indoors), in the form of 
Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance and 
anything of a similar description 

• Monday to Sunday from 12:00hrs (midday) to 04:30hrs (the
following day)

The opening 
hours of the 
premises 

• Monday to Sunday from 09:00hrs to 05:00hrs (the following
day)

Name, (registered) address  of holder 
of premises licence 

David Tunmer 
Bramley Beach 
Mill End 
Little Easton 
Essex 
CM6 2JB 

Where the licence authorises supplies 
of alcohol whether these are on and / 
or off supplies 

On and off sales 

Registered number of holder, for 
example company number, charity 
number (where applicable) 

Not applicable 

Name of designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

Francisco Afonso 

State whether access to the premises 
by children is restricted or prohibited No restrictions 

Page 47



Appendix 3 

Page 48



Application for the Grant, Renewal, Transfer or 
Variation of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

Part one of this form is open to inspection by the press and public 

Please read the following instructions first 

Before completing this form please read the associated guidance notes. If you are completing this form by hand 
please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in 
black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. Please complete all sections or the application will be deemed 
incomplete and returned to the applicant. 

Applicants are warned that any person who, in connection with the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of 
a sexual entertainment licence, makes a false statement which they know to be false in any material 
respect, or which they do not believe to be true, is guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction 
to a fine not exceeding £20,000. 

Applicants are required to complete part one and part two of the application form, and provide any other 
documents listed in the form. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Part One: Details of Application 

Section A: Type of Application 
Please specify what type of application you are making: 

0New Iii Renewal ovariation 0Transfer 

Licence Number (if applicable): I 'l ~al 

Section B: Premises to be licensed 
Is the application in respect of (tick as appropriate): 

/ Premises Vehicle Vessel Stall 
Trading name and full postal address of premises to be licensed 
(If this application is in respect of a Vehicle, Vessel or Stall, then the location where it will be used) 
Name: The White Swan/Majingos 
Address: 556 Commercial Road 

Post I London I Postcode I E14 7JD 
Town 
Premises E-mail address I Premises contact telephone number(s) 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 

Page 49



.,· ·-: . . ~ . - ~ . 
.. ··~. 

TOWll H.UU..lll 

Section C: Applicant Details 
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as 
a) an individual or individuals • please complete box ( 1 ) 
b) a limited company D please complete box (2) 
c) a partnership D please complete box (2) 
d) other n please complete box (2) 

(1 ): First Individual Applicant Details 

MR. MRS D MISS D MSD Other 

First names: David I Surname: Tunmer 

Please do not complete if this is a private residential address - This information is provided in Part 2 

Address 
(Private residential address - please refer to the relevant Part 2 Personal Details form at tab 6 

Age of applicant Over 18: Yes a No D 

(1 ): Second Individual Applicant Details (Insert further paqes if necessary for more than 2 applicants) 

MRD MRS D MISS D MSD Other 

First names I Surname 

Address 
Please do not complete if this is a private residential address - This information is provided in Part 2 

Age of applicant Over 18: Yes n Non 

(2): Other Applicant Details 
Name 
Registered number 
Description of applicant 
Registered Address 

Post Town I I Postcode I 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 2 Page 50



tow.-. HA.MLITI 

Section D: Premises Details 

1. What is the nature of the applicant's interest in the premises {please tick as appropriate) 
a) Freehold D 
b) Leasehold Ill 

2. If the applicant's interest in the premises is a leasehold one, please state whether it is a: 
a) head lease • 
b) sub lease D 

3. the name and full address of the landlord (if applicable) 

Unique Pub Properties Ltd, 3 Monkspath Hall Road, Solihull, West Midlands, B90 4SJ 

4. the name and full address of the superior landlord (if applicable) 
n/a 

5. Is the whole of the premises to be used under the licence? 
a) Yes Ill 
b) No D 

6. If "no" please state which part of the premises is to be used for the purpose of the licence: 

a) the use to which the remainder of the premises is put 

n/a 

b) the name( s) of those who are responsible for the management of the remainder of the premises 

n/a 

----------------------·--·-·------·-·---·-------·-- ----------··-----

7 _ Is the premises to be used for the purposes of the licence, so constructed or adapted as to permit 
access to and from the premises for members of the public who are disabled? 

a) Yes • 
b) No D 

If "No" please state the applicant's proposals for affording such access 

n/a 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 3 Page 51



TOW'H HAMLn s 

7. Is the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall which is to be used for the purposes of the licence, in 
use as a sex establishment at the date of this application? 
a) Yes • 
b) No D 

If the answer is "Yes", please state the name and full address of the person(s) or body who operated 
the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall as a sex establishment at the date of this application, and the 
date (where known) the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall was first used as such 

David Tunmer (please refer to Tab 6 for address). First used as such on about August 2005. 

If the answer is "No" please state the purpose(s) it is currently being used for 

n/a 

Section E: Current Licences 

1. Is the Premises licensed under any other Act (e.g. the Licensing Act 2003)? 
a) Yes • 
b) No D 

2. If yes, please provide details of the licence(s), including the name of the Licence Holder and any 
Designated Premises Supervisor 

License issued under the Licensing Act 2003: Premises Licence number 19807 
Premises Licence Holder: David Tunmer 
Designated Premises Supervisor: Afonso Francisco 

For details of perm it ted licensable activit ies and hours, please refer to the copy of the Premises Licence provided at 

Tab 13 in the Add itional Documents pack. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 4 
Page 52



Towta KAMUT$ 

Section F: Business Details 
Each person named in this section will need to complete Part 2 of the application - Personal Details Form 

1. Under what name will the business be trading? 
The White Swan/Majingos 

2. If the applicant is a company or other corporate body, please give the names of the applicants 
directors and company secretary: 

N/a 

--
------- ---------

--·-·--·- ·-----·-·--·--·- .. ---·--·-.. --~--·-·--------

Use additional sheets to continue if necessary 

2. Is the whole of the business owned by the applicant, and the applicant does not share the profits of 
the business with any other person or body? 

a) Yes D 
b) No • 

If the answer is "No", please state the name(s) of those who will share in the profits of the business. In 
each case, please state the percentage share of the profits to be taken by each person or body 
involved in the ownership of the business 

Name Percentage 
share 

Davia 1 unmer So0 ro 
··-··-····--·--- --
_fhe_r:.y!_Tunmer So"lc;. 

-

--·- · H•--

-... -----------·--------··-----................... ____ ---------------··-

Use additional sheets to continue if necessary 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 5 Page 53



TOWCI HAMUTI 

Section G: Advertising Details 
When considering types of advertising in this section, please refer to the Councils Standard Conditions 
on Touting for Business and Premises Appearance, which are attached to the Sex Establishment 
Policy 
1. What advertisement(s) or display(s) are to be exhibited on the exterior of the premises? 

Please refer to the drawing of the front elevation of the premises at Tab 8 of the Additional Documents Pack. 

Advertisements/displays to be exhibited on the exterior of the premises comprise of the following: 

2 x external signs 

2. Please state the size(s) of any advertisement(s) or display(s) mentioned in the above question 

Please refer to the drawing of the front elevation of the premises at Tab 8 and photographs of the exterior of the premises 
at Tab 14 of the Additional Documents pack. 

External sign 1 (existing painted sign) 17 feet x 19'5 inches 
External sign 2 (existing sign) 2800mm x lOOOmm 

See signage at tab 15 

·--·- -----·----·- --·------------ --------------------·-------

3. Please state any proposals for solicitation of the business in public areas. E.g. fliers, business cards, 
billboard advertising, personal solicitation or advertising on motor vehicles 

The business will be advertised through the use of fliers, business cards and adverts in local newspapers. 

Any and all advertising carried out by the business will comply fully with Tower Hamlets Council Sex 
Establishment Licensing Policy and will not contain photographs or other images which may be construed 
as offensive to public decency. 

Designs and copies are attached at tab 16 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 6 Page 54



Section H: Operation of the Premises 
1. Please state the proposed opening times of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall: 
(Gives times in a 24h clock format) 

Day I Opening I Closing 
Monday J09:00 03:00 
Tuesday l'>i ',OQ I o,g :oo 
Wednesday lo'f:Oo I C>~ ~ Ct> 
Thursday lei ;. oo ()~ . 6() 

Friday I O'l: 00 ~.;-·.oo 

Saturday I oer ·_ oo cS ~ oo 
Sunday I 6.., ~ oo 112· t)O 

~ 
TOWH MAMl.nS 

2. What means are to be taken to prevent the interior of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall for which 
the licence is sought from being visible to passers-by? 

All windows on the premises are obscured to prevent passers-by from seeing into the interior 
of the premises. In addition, all entrances have a double-door lobby entrance. Please refer 
to the Premises Plan at Tab 8 and photographs of the exterior of the premises at Tab 14 of 
the Additional Documents pack. 

3. Have you read and understood the Councils standard conditions for sexual entertainment venues? 
a) Yes Ill 
b) No D 

4. Are you able to comply with the Councils standard conditions for sexual entertainment venues? 
a) Yes II 
b) No D 

If no, please give the reasons why not: 

n/a 

------·-·-----·- ·- ·- ·-·-- ·-----------·---- ·----- ----- ----------------- ---·---- --... ·-·---·--·--------

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 7 Page 55



5. Please give details of any additional conditions you would like to propose, or conditions you like to 
amend or remove. The Council will expect applicants to address the following factors: 

a) Preventing nuisance to residents and businesses in the vicinity 
b) Public safety 
c) Preventing crime and disorder 
d) Protecting children from harm 
e) Procedures for checking employees age and right to work in the UK 
f) Procedures for training of all staff in the Code of Conduct for Dancers, and for compliance with 

licence conditions and requirements 
g) Procedures for notifying customers of the Dancers code of conduct 
h) System for monitoring compliance with the venues policy for welfare of dancers 

The applicant proposes the following additional condition: 

"No more than 300 persons shall be allowed on the premises at applied to licence previously at any one time." 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 8 
Page 56



TOWll HAMUTI 

Section I: Management of the Premises 
Each person named in this section will need to complete Part 2 of the application - Personal details form 
1. Please give the name of the person who will be responsible for the day to day management of the 
premises. ("the Manager'') 

Name: Afonso Franciscoi 
Role: Manager 

2. Will this person be based at the premises and will the management of the premises be their sole and 
exclusive occupation? 

a) Yes II 
b) No D 

3. If no, then please give details of how they are responsible for the day to day management, and what 
other arrangements are in place for the management of the premises. 

n/a 

4. Which person( s) will be responsible for the day to day management in the absence of the Manager 
(Use continuation sheets if necessary): 

Name: Francisco Jose Hilario Afonso 
Role: Duty Manager 

Name: Cheryl Tunmer 
Role: Manager/Owner 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: David Tunmer 
Role: Manager/Owner 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

5. Please confirm that at least one of the people named in this section will be at the premises at all 
times whilst it is open. 

a) Yes Ill 
b) No D 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 9 Page 57



towtl HAMLETS 

Section J: Details of any further information relevant to this application 
Please state below any further information which the applicant would wish to be taken into account 
when this application is considered (This space may also be used to amplify answers to any previous 
questions) 

David Tun mer possesses a proven track record in successfully running venues of this nature and has over ten 

Years' experience operating this style of premises. 

The premises has operated and provided the form of entertainment applied for since on or about August 2005. 

Representatives from the applicant company would welcome any invitation to discuss this application with the 

Licensing Officer and/or Police Officer. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 10 Page 58



fOWHHAMLIU 

Section K: Additional documentary requirements 
The applicant must provide the following documentation, in addition to those documents already requested in 
prior sections of this application form. 

Documents included with this application Included 
1 The prescribed fee, in the form of a cheque made payable to the London Borough Yes 9'Jo D 

of Tower Hamlets (LBTH). 
2 Written consent of the lawful occupier of the premises or land who has control over the Yes ll'Jo D 

premises or land 
3 Code of practice for dancers/performers Yes li!INo n 
4 Policy for welfare of dancers/performers Yes.mio n 
5 Code of practice for customers Yes on 
6 A personal details form (Part 2 of the application form) for each person named in the Yes 9'Jo D 

application 
7 A basic CRB check for each person named in the application Yes Jft!o n 
8 A recent passport size photograph for each person named in the application, each copy Yes 9'Jo D 

bearing the name in block capitals of the person whose likeness it bears. 
9 A site/location plan, (scale 1: 1250) to show the location of the premises Yes~o l 
10 A premises plan (scale 1: 100) of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of Yes 19-Jo D 

which the licence is sought, showing: 
a) The internal layout of the premises including stage, bars, cloakroom, WCs, 

performance areas, dressing rooms, kitchen, and any external areas to be used 
(e.g. smoking areas). 

b) Public areas and staff/private areas to be clearly defined 
c) Uses for different areas in the premises (e.g. performance areas, reception etc.) 
d) Any fixed structures or objects 
e) all means of ingress and egress from the premises 
f) Position of CCTV cameras 
g) The location and type of any fire safety and any other safety equipment 
h) The location of emergency exits 
i) The position of ramps, lifts or other facilities for the benefit of disabled people. 
j) Any parts of the premises that may be inaccessible to disabled people. 

Other standard metric scales may be acceptable if more practical for the size of the 
premises. 

11 A drawing (scale 1:100) showing the front elevation as existing (and as proposed if Yes 8'Jo D 
changes are to be made to it) of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which 
the licence is sought. Other standard metric scales may be acceptable if more practical 
for the size of the premises. 
Evidence of public notice and service 

12 Complete copy of the newspaper advert advertising the application Yes~o l 
13 Copy of the notice displayed on or near the premises advertising the application Yes o l 
14 Copy of affidavit or statutory declaration that the notice of application has been Yes ONo D 

displayed on or near the premises, in a place where the notice can be conveniently read 
by the public as required by paragraph 10(10) schedule 3 to the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended). 

15 Evidence of the due service upon the Chief officer of police as required by paragraph Yes 0No D 
10(14) schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as 
amended), of a copy of this application and its required documentation. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 11 Page 59



Section L: Correspondence and Contact Details for the Application 
Please give details of the person who may be contacted in relation to this application 

'. Name: Marcus L-/N e-(...v.. _ l--{};> 
i Organisation: ~ Lfrf"C~S  
i Postal Address:       
Telephone Number:

I 

Email:  

Position/role: Solicitor for the Applicant 
Solicitor/Agent for the applicant) 

Section M: Private Information 
Is there any information on this form which you do not wish to be seen by members of the public? If so, 
state which information and the reasons why you do not wish it to be seen. Please note, any requests 
of this nature will be dealt on a case by case basis, and you will be contacted to discuss further if the 
information is considered necessary for public disclosure. 

Section N: Declaration and signature of applicant 
The declaration must be signed in all cases : 

a) If the applicant is an individual, by that individual 
b) If the applicant is a partnership, by all individuals who are partners 
c) If the applicant is a company, by a director or the company secretary 
d) In any other case by a duly authorised officer of the applicant 

11 acknowledge that I have received a copy of the standard conditions applicable to a sex 
. establishment licence within the London Borough of Tower Hamlets, and declare that the information 
i given within this application form, to the best of my knowledge, is true and complete in every respect. 

-G.-~~,=":>-,...--_-_ -__ 

Please use extra pa~ecessary 
Name: CH ct~ r vt" ~ Signature 
Position --;:;--- ""' .... n Date 

-·---·-----V-.W..N...~~-------··------

Name: bb:!., ~"°'\c,e_ Signature 
Position -·--a<:.>-;:.,~---·-·-----· Date ~ ----· 

!\pplication for Sexual Entertainment Venue 12 

OA-••••·-·- -··- -·--•-••-- •-•••-··-·----·--

Page 60



Appendix 4 

Page 61



556 Commercial Road

Map 1

Page 62



556 Commercial Road

Map 2

Page 63



556 Commercial Road

Map 3

Page 64



Appendix 5 

Page 65



---
---

I 
I 

•I 
~ I 

I 
I 
I 

'--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

& 
0 
0 

ll 
0 10 15 

•I I I 

OS MasterMap 125012500/10000 scale 
27 June 2014, ID: CM-00338504 
www.centremapsl ive.co.uk 

20 25 30 35 
I I I I 

m 

1 :1250 scale print at A4, Centre: 536023 E. 181110 N 

cCrown Copyright Ordnance Survey. Licence no 
100019980 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

& .... 
§ 

40 45 50 
I I I 

N 

t 
b~J ~fu10rdnance IQ CENTREMAPSiive' 

- - Survey ~,,. v,ww.centremapsltve.:o.uk 

Page 66



Mezzanine Over 

Outside drinking area 

Trade Area 

Floorlevelo.ooo 

Outside Drinking Area 

I 
I 
I 
! 

\ 
l 
\ ----
L --------------

Ground Floor Plan 

Store 

• 
Stoni 

Sto"' Stoni. 

Pr.oposed Basement Plan 

----- -- ------

ti 

• 

Trade Area 

FIOotL'*0.000 

~'· 

I 
I 

I 
' 

' ' ii 
STAGE I . 

. .... , . _.,..,., ..... - . 

!I 
•1 .450 _;. .. 

Sta e .c.ooo 
;.:•~«~ 

Fk)orL~0.000;.;;,,,.,,...,.-1_'-,_-, ...... -~-~-.. ~~-·,-'· .... -_ ...... _ __ .Jl 
,;· • . .;_.;;' ...... ~ . ... , -J , "''" •• ,. •• 

Section 

REV. 

FIRE SYSTEM LEGEND 

SMOKE OR HEAT DETECTORS 

e SOUNDERS 

• CALL POINTS 

- EMERGENCY LIGHTING 

- FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT 

DEFINES DANCE AREAS 

AMENDMENTS INTLS. DATE 

A GURED DIMENSIONS TO TAKE PRECEDENCE 
. OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS. 

CONTRACTORS MUST VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS 
ON SITE BEFORE COMMENCING ANY WORK. 

THE COPYRIGHT OF THIS DRAWING IS 
RESERVED ANO THE DRAWING MUST NOT BE 
DISCLOSED WITHOUT AUTHORITY. 

Emi4t J Spencer FRICS FBEng FIAS 
Hog lands 
llttll Easton 
Dun mow 
Euex 
CM62JL 

01371172750 . .. 
www EnMst J Spencer 

The White Swan, 
556 Commercial Road, 
London, 
E14 7JD. 

David Tunmer 

DRAWING No. 

CR:01 

DATE 
EJS 4 May 2015 

P
age 67



\) 
Q --

<r_ ... 
J \t····-··· 

'"" 0 

-
rJJ 

e 
\ .. 
2. -
~ 

-
~ 
(" 
( 
'L 
s: 
~ 

G@ r6 

···~--4 .-·-·-
_. __ _ I 

. 
Ir 

t 
J 
! 

.. ·.~ · ~·- ~ -~· . . ;-D .1 .,... . 
i i . 

1\ ·:: 
. ·: . ·• 

I 
I 

Page 68



Appendix 6 

Page 69



Date: 17 th June 2016 

Premises Name: White Swan / Majingos 

Address:566 Commercial Road, 556 Commercial Road, E14 

Persons Present: LBTH Licensing Officer: Andrew Heron 

Attendees: Casio – Manager of Operations 

Condition Check Notes 

Code of Conduct for Performers  

Each performer must sign the Code of 
Conduct in their proper name, 
acknowledging that they have read and 
understood and are prepared to abide by 
the Code of Conduct. 

Is there a Code of Conduct in place? 

Yes, as provided with the application.  It 
is provided to each performer, with an 
additional copy in the changing rooms 

House Rules 

The House Rules shall be prominently 
and legibly displayed close to each 
entrance of the Premises. 

The House Rules must be made known to 
customers prior to their admission to the 
Premises when sexual entertainment is 
provided 

Signs must be displayed at appropriate 
locations advising that any customer 
attempting to make physical contact with a 
performer will be asked to leave. 

In place at the entrance to the premises, 
along with the premises licence and 
SEV licence. 

Signs are available in reception, on a 
large TV screen (it was noted that 
screen changes with information cards. 
I had previously commented that the 
screen changed too quickly, this has 
been slowed down as requested. 

Signs are also on tables within the club. 

Page 70



Performer Safety Policy 

There must be a suitable policy for the 
safety of the performers when they leave 
the Premises.  

This may take the form of a notice in the 
dressing room 

There is a policy in place, it is also 
available in the dressing room and is 
provided to performers when they start 
work. 

Door Staff 

A suitable and sufficient number of door 
supervisors and trained staff will be 
employed (based on a risk assessment) 
when sexual entertainment is offered. 

Details of Door Staff would ideally be 
retained in a log.   

Door staff files are available at reception 
– this have signing in sheets which
show who has worked each shift and 
the hours they have competed. 

The Venue interior 

The interior of the Premises where sexual 
entertainment is offered shall not be 
capable of being seen from the outside of 
the Premises. 

All ok. 

The Venue Exterior 

The exterior is maintained with a suitable 
level of decorum (i.e. that it does not have 
anything that depicts, indicates or 
suggests that sexual entertainment takes 
place on the Premises). 

All ok. 

Page 71



Public Access 

No member of the public shall be 
permitted to go anywhere outside the 
public areas. The public shall not be 
permitted access to the performers’ 
changing rooms. 

What would happen if a member of public 
was found in a non-public area? 

Members of the public may not enter or 
remain in the toilet cubicles in the 
company of any performer. Only one 
person at a time to enter a toilet cubicle. 

What would happen to the performer and 
patron if they were found in a toilet cubicle 
together? 

I am advised that this is strictly 
monitored.  If a member of the public 
was found in a non-public access area, 
they would be removed from the venue. 

Regular meetings are held with all staff 
to make sure that they are clear on all 
expectations in relation to the policies in 
place. 

If a customer was found with a patron in 
the toilet together, the patron would be 
ejected and the performer would be 
immediately suspended. 

CCTV 

CCTV shall be installed to cover the inside 
and the outside of the Premises, covering 
all public areas, including private 
performance areas and booths, entrances 
and exits, but excluding the interior of 
toilets. All cameras must be maintained in 
working order. All cameras shall 
continually record whilst the Premises are 
open to the public and the recorded 
images shall be kept available for a 
minimum of 31 days. 

Check all the above.  Ask to see 
recordings from previous days from 
multiple cameras. 

Specifically, is there CCTV covering: 

• Public Access Areas
• Performance Areas and Booths
• Entrances and Exits

All ok.  I asked to see recordings from a 
specific time from the previous night 
and also from a random date in the 
preceding weeks.  The system was 
easy to operate and covered all angles 
of the club as required by the LBTH 
Standard Conditions. 

Page 72



Advertising 

The Licensee shall neither cause nor 
permit the display of suggestive 
advertising content which is directed at or 
may be seen or heard by any person from 
within the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets, on any public highway, street, 
waterway or railway; in any place of 
general public use or access; or in publicly 
accessible areas of premises open to the 
public. 

How does the venue advertise? 

If there is a website, is it compliant? 

Adverts are placed in ‘The Wharf’ 
newspaper.  The premises also has a 
Twitter and Facebook accounts. 

There are also websites: 

White Swan: 
http://www.bjswhiteswan.com/index.html 

This is fully compliant 

Majingos:  
http://www.majingos.net/index.htm 

There is some suggestive imagery that 
makes it clear what services are 
provided at the premises, but there is no 
nudity.  The site could benefit from an 
‘Over 18’ confirmation click tab to enter. 

Performers 

With each record the Licensee shall keep 
a copy of a photographic form of identity 
and proof of address of the performer. 
With each record the 
Licensee shall keep a clear copy of an 
authorised document demonstrating that 
each Performer and each member of the 
staff is entitled to work within the UK. 

These should be retained and made 
available for inspection.  Is there a copy of 
this log? 

On days when sexual entertainment is 
provided, the Licensee or their 
representative shall keep a record of 
those performers working at the Premises 
on that day in a daily record. 

Is there a copy of this log? 

Each performer signs the licence 
conditions to say that they have read 
and understood them.  Each performer 
also signs a contract that provides their 
genuine name and address.  Each 
performer also signs the premises’ 
health and safety policy.  Ach performer 
signs to say that they are aware of the 
venue’s pricing structure.  Examples 
were given for a number of dancers.  
Included with these examples were 
photographs and proof of a right to 
work.  The premises also benefits from 
a having a passport scanning machine 
which is used for patrons, but is also 
used to verify a performer’s 
identification. 

Logs for the dancers are retained at 
reception and were made fully available. 

Page 73



Tariffs 

The Licensee shall prominently and 
legibly display the drinks tariff at or by the 
bar and at the entrance. 

Are these available? 

The Licensee shall so far as reasonably 
practicable keep such records as are 
necessary to prove that the sums charged 
and payments taken are for products or 
services advertised on the relevant tariff at 
the amount shown on that tariff. 

Is there a log? 

There are menus and price lists upon 
entry at reception, on the tables, at the 
bar and in the gent’s toilets. 

Cash is paid to the bar.  Cash can be 
paid directly to a dancer, but this is 
done under supervision of 
management. 

All transaction records are retained. 

Additional Notes: 

None. 

Page 74



Appendix 7 

Page 75



Page 76



Appendix 8 

Page 77



THE WHITE SWAN 
Performers Code of con·duct 

CUSTOMER CONTACT 
Not permitted - You may not touch a customer whilst perForming. A guest may not 
touch a performer during a performance. You may not sit on a guest lap whilst 
dancing nude. Whilst sitting with a customer you must have you breast and genitals 
covered at all times. 

CALLING IN SICK 
Should you be unable to work you must call Linda or Miri before 3pm or produce a 
medical certificate if you don 1t a Iii/I house fee will be paid for the night in question. 

HOURS 
The club opens at 8pm and closes at 5am1 you may arrive to work at any time 
between 6pm and 7.30pm and be on the Roor by 8pm should you arrive after this 
time you may incur some additional house fee or be sent home. 

RECEP110N AREA AND GUEST TOILETS 
Other that entering and leaving the club at the start or conclusion of a shift dancers 
are not permitted in the reception area and at no time allowecl in the guest Toilets for 
any other reason than that of an emergency to either call security or make use of the 
exit .. 

MOBILE PHONES 
It is not permitted to use your mobile phone in the club for any reason1 if you talce 
your phone into the club it must be set on silent any communication MUST take 
place in the changing rooms. Further it is not permitted to exchange phone numbers 
with guests. 

POLE ACTS AND STAGE PERFORMANCE 
Dancers must be on stage immediately on being called by the DJ, having compkted 
the performance you immediately re-dress in the changing room provided 

APPROACHING GUESTS 
Under no circumstances are performers permitted to approach guests until they have 
been sat at a table and served their first drink Once sitting with a guest the 5 song 
rule applies. If from the time you sit down to the time that the fifth song has been 
played from when you sat down if the guest has neither purchased you a drink or 
asked you to perform a private dance, then you must politely make your excuses and 
allow another performer to take your place . The five song rule applies throughout 
your time with the guest regardless of how many drinks he may have bought you or 
dances he may of commissioned previously. 

Page 78



LEAVING EARLY 
Only by pre-arrangement with the club manager; at least 24 hours in advance or if 
you have a medical emergency may you leave the club early. Should you have a 
medical emergency an ambulance wiO he caDeJ for your care. Simply if you don't feel 
well speak immediately to the club manager. There will he a first aid /cit, tampons and 
hand aids for your use. You will be found a comfortable place to rest until you feel 
better and are able to resume your performance. 

HOUSE FEES 
Must be paid before entering the changing room, please collect a locker key for safe 
keeping of your belongings keys must he returned at the end of the shift. 

BEHAVIOUR OU1SIDE OF THE CLUB 
Your behavior outside of the club is very important in maintaining the clubs image 
and popularity and must he of the highest order at all times. 

PARKING AND LEA YING THE CLUB 
To ensure your safety when you finish work a member of staff will he available to 
escort you to your car; please he sure to use this service. If you have not driven then 
a tilxi can he organized for your safety, please uses this lilcility. 

DRINKING 
It is not the policy of the club to encourage excessive consumption of alcohol the 
management insist on moderate drinlcing of akohol at all times. However Jo not 
re/Use a drink when olTerecl, you Jo not have to drink it and alcohol free alternatives 
are available. Intoxication will result in dismissal from the floor and club. 

SMOKING 
Is not permitted on the enclosed premises and is illegal 

CHEWING GUM 
Not to he used at any time whilst worlcing 

HUSBANDS, BOYFREINDS AND SIGNIFICANT OTHERS 
They are not allowed into the club whilst you are worlcing. Should there be a special 
occasion whereby friends or relatives are visiting and would like to see the club if 
notified in advance the manager may grant permission. In any event our dress code 
would apply. 

RElA T/ONSHIPS 
Your personal life away from the club is your personal business, however relationships 
with others that also work at the club is not permitted and contravention may result 

Page 79



In you being ask to leave. Do not conduct conversations with each other of a personal 
nature when you could he spending time with a guest 

PERSONAL HYGIENE 
Dancers should shower daily, use deodorants have clean shaven legs and ann pits. 
Dancers must keep breath spays or mints with them and wear suitable perfume. 

COSTUMES 
You must have appropriate costumes available at all times, long dresses heFore 
midnight. You should at all times have a minimum of one change of outfit with you 
and it is expected that you will not wear the same outfit on consecutive sessions 
worked 

GENERAL VIOLATIONS 

THE FOLLOWING VIOLA 170NS MAY RESULT IN INSTANT 
DIMISSAL IF CONTRAVENED 

CLUB BEHAVIOUR 
The 011/y language pennitted to he used in the club is ENGLISH customers are 
uncomfortable with conversation they can't understand 

RUDENESS TO GUEST 
If a problem arises notil} the manager immediately, do not attempt to deal with a 
disorderly guest We expect you to treat our customers with courtesy and respect 
whether deserved or not. Do not involve yourself with any dispute that may occur. 

DISHONESTY 
Theft of money or property of the company, guests, dancers or employees, this 
includes the giving away of merchandise and the removal of money from a guests 
table. 

FIGHTING 
Fighting or wi/HUI acts resulting ln injury to others, thls lncludes in the club, 
anywhere on the premises or whilst on company business. Additionally harassment, 
threats and arguments between dancers is not pennitted 
It is the policy of the club never to use Force with any patron of the club, regardless 
of the situation. The only exception being limited Force, used to restrain, if required to 
restrain a customer to protect other guests, dancers or members of staff. Under no 
circumstances is it pennissible to strike to hit a guest, if harassed call the manager or 
a member of the security team. 

Page 80



MISUSE OF COMPANY PROPERTY 
Misuse destruction or negligence towards company property will not be tolerated 
under any circumstances, and any damage wiU he paid for by the olfender. 

DISCLOSURE 
Disclosure of any comp•my infonnation; the club takes pride in the creation of its 
designs and entertainment format and therefore feels strongly about confidentiality 
. All members of staff and dancers are required to keep any information relating to 
the club which is proprietary in nature confidential 

INSUBORDINATION 
Following the instructions of the club manager or any member of security staff is a 
necessity. Should you disagree with the instruction you must comply and then take 
the issue up with the manager at a convenient time? 

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS 
Should you he using prescription drugs of over the counter medication then it may be 
brought into the club, provide that it is in its original container, clearly marked as per 
the contents and in the case of prescription drugs, clearly labeled with your name. 

NARCOTICS 
You may not he under the influence of, possess, dispense or use controlled subsl:ilnces 
whilst at the club. WE OPERA TE A ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY OF ILLEGAL DRUG 
USE. This includes allowing patrons or other dancers or staff members to arrange 
transactions of controlled substances on or off the premises. Any conversation of this 
type must be immediiltely reported to the club manager or the security stall Should ii 
customer offer you drugs this must be immediately reported The management 
reserves the right to SCilreh the chilnging rooms, lockers and personill bags ilnd 
possessions of any member of staff or di1ncer at ilny time without notice. Any dancer 
of member of staff offering drugs to ilny patron, member of staff or dancer will he 
immediately dismissed and the police Cillled 

PANDERING FOR PROSTITUTION 
Selling ilny type of sexual favor to ilnyone is prohibited ilnd will resuh in instant 
dismissal 

SOLICITATION FOR PROSTITUTION 
Accepting ii guest olfer of pilyrnent in return for any sexuill favor, regilrrlless of 
whether or not you intend to commit them is prohibited and will result in instant 
dismissal 

ASSIGNATION OF PROSTITUTION 
This is the promise of meeting someone ilt a later time or to meet them at a later 
time in return for gratuities given during a performilnce. Whether or not you have 

Page 81



any intention of meeting the individual (s} is academic. Failure to comply will result in 
instilnt dismissal 

LEWD AND LASCIVIOUS BEHAVIOUR 
Private dances conduced for customers. Absolutely no contilct of any type is 

permitted The final decision as to what represents lewd or lascivious behavior rests 
with the club manager. 

SOLICITATION FOR DRINKS OR 11PS 
Solicitation for alcoholic (or non alcoholic} beverages is prohibited You must not ask 
a guest to buy you a drink but must wait to he offered, further you must not ask for 
tips or money; it must he given willingly or paid as a professional artists Fee for the 
enteminment provided by you. 

WEAPONS 
No cs gas or weapons of any sort are permitted on the company property for any 
reason at any time. 

UNIONS 
You may join and in fdct encouraged to join either Equity or GMBU details are 
available 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD AND AGREE TO 
ABIDE BY THIS CODE OF CONDUCT. 

STAGE NAME ------------------

POST CODE'----________ TEL No ____ _ 

S/GNED ________ -DATED _______ _ 

Page 82



RE. SELF EMPLOYED DANCERS IN THE EEC COUNTRIES 

I conRnn that 

I. I am self-employee/ 
2. I am not in the employ of the club or any of its parent or associated companies 
3. I recognize and accept that neither the club or parent or associated companies 

have any liability to malce PA YE or NI decluction or contributions on my heha/[ 
4. I accept IUll responsibility to malce a retu171 to the Inland Revenue and to pay 

any national insurance contributions that may become due. 
5. I certiljr that I am /am not a VAT registered person as defined within the 

meaning of the act. 
6. I am responsible for the purchase of all my own costumes and agree to ulce 

out my own insurance to cover me in the event of accident, sickness and 
damage or loss to any costumes or other personal possessions. 

Attach 
Proof of identity 
Proof of address 

National insurance No 
·~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Page 83



THE WHITE SWAN GAY STRIPTEASE 
CODE OF CONDUCT AND RULES FOR AMATURE 

CONTESTANTS. 

STAGE SHOW 
At no time may any contestant on the stage have physical 
contact with any of the audience. 
Contestants must leave the stage when directed by the 
management. 

CONTESTANTS 
All contestants must give their names to the person 
organizing the show and sign this form this must be done 
before the competition starts. No person may just take to the 
stage without registration. 

REFUSAL 
The management reserves the right to ref use any person 
The right to enter the competition the grounds may not be 
nessasaraly be given, but entrants intoxicated or unsteady 
on their feet will be ref used on the grounds of danger to 
themselves or others. 

PRIZES 
These will vary from time to time. 

QWNRISK 
All contestants enter the competition at their own risk no 
liability can be taken by the club for injury or loss or 
damage to their property. 

Page 84



DRINKING 
No drinks are to taken on to the stage at any time. 

ACTS OF INDECENCY 
Any act deemed indecent by the management will be directed 
to leave the stage immediately and disqualified from the 
competition. 

DRESSING ROOM 
A dressing room is provided and should be used to re-dress 
after a per/ ormance. 

I HA VE READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE CONDITIONS 
OF THIS COMPERTION AND AGREE TO ABIDE BY 
THEM. 

Signed 
date --------------- ----

Page 85



CCoonndduucctt  ooff  DDaanncceerrss  PPoolliiccyy  

GGeenneerraall  SSeerrvviiccee  LLeevveell  RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss  

CCAALLLLIINNGG  IINN  SSIICCKK  

SShhoouulldd  yyoouu  bbee  uunnaabbllee  ttoo  aatttteenndd  tthhee  cclluubb  dduurriinngg  aa  bbooookkeedd  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd,,  yyoouu  mmuusstt  ccaallll  LLiinnddaa  oorr  

MMiirrii  bbeeffoorree  33ppmm  oonn  tthhee  ddaayy  ooff  tthhee  bbooookkiinngg..    TThhee  ffuullll  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  FFeeee  wwiillll  bbee  dduuee  ttoo  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr..  

AAnn  eexxcceeppttiioonn  ttoo  tthhee  aabboovvee  mmaayy  bbee  mmaaddee  aatt  tthhee  ddiissccrreettiioonn  ooff  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr  wwhheerree  yyoouu  aarree  aabbllee  ttoo  

pprroodduuccee  aa  mmeeddiiccaall  cceerrttiiffiiccaattee  ddeettaaiilliinngg  tthhee  rreeaassoonn  ffoorr  yyoouurr  iinnaabbiilliittyy  ttoo  aatttteenndd  tthhee  bbooookkiinngg..  

HHOOUURRSS  

TThhee  cclluubb  ooppeennss  aatt  88ppmm  aanndd  cclloosseess  aatt  55aamm,,  yyoouu  mmaayy  aarrrriivvee  aatt  aannyy  ttiimmee  bbeettwweeeenn  66ppmm  aanndd  77..3300ppmm  aanndd  

ffaacciilliittiieess  wwiillll  bbee  aavvaaiillaabbllee..    PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriiooddss  bbeeggiinn  aatt  88ppmm  aanndd  yyoouu  sshhoouulldd  bbee  iinn  aatttteennddaannccee  ffrroomm  

tthhee  vveerryy  bbeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff  yyoouurr  bbooookkeedd  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd..    TThhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr  mmaayy  iinnccuurr  ccoossttss  dduuee  ttoo  tthhee  

ffaaiilluurree  ooff  aannyy  ddaanncceerr  ttoo  aatttteenndd  aa  bbooookkeedd  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd  aanndd  tthheessee  ccoossttss  mmaayy  bbee  ppaasssseedd  oonn  ttoo  

tthhee  ddaanncceerr  bbyy  wwaayy  ooff  ffuurrtthheerr  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  FFeeeess  sshhoouulldd  tthhiiss  sseerrvviiccee  lleevveell  ffaaiill  ttoo  bbee  mmeett..  

TThhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr  rreesseerrvveess  tthhee  rriigghhtt  ttoo  ccaanncceell  aa  bbooookkeedd  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd  wwhheerree  aa  ddaanncceerr  ffaaiillss  ttoo  

aatttteenndd  tthhee  cclluubb  iinn  ssuuffffiicciieenntt  ttiimmee  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  sseerrvviicceess  ttoo  tthhee  ddaanncceerr’’ss  ppootteennttiiaall  ccuussttoommeerrss  ((ddrraawwnn  

ffrroomm  ccuussttoommeerrss  ooff  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr))  ffrroomm  tthhee  ssttaarrtt  ooff  tthhee  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd..    

RREECCEEPPTTIIOONN  AARREEAA  AANNDD  GGUUEESSTT  TTOOIILLEETTSS  

OOtthheerr  tthhaatt  eenntteerriinngg  aanndd  lleeaavviinngg  tthhee  cclluubb  aatt  tthhee  ssttaarrtt  oorr  ccoonncclluussiioonn  ooff  aa  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd,,  ddaanncceerrss  

aarree  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd  iinn  tthhee  rreecceeppttiioonn  aarreeaa  aanndd  aatt  nnoo  ttiimmee  aalllloowweedd  iinn  tthhee  gguueesstt  ttooiilleettss  ffoorr  aannyy  ootthheerr  

rreeaassoonn  tthhaann  tthhaatt  ooff  aann  eemmeerrggeennccyy  ttoo  eeiitthheerr  ccaallll  sseeccuurriittyy  oorr  mmaakkee  uussee  ooff  tthhee  eexxiitt..  

MMOOBBIILLEE  PPHHOONNEESS  

TThhee  uussee  ooff  mmoobbiillee  pphhoonneess  iinn  tthhee  cclluubb  bbyy  tthhiirrdd  ppaarrttyy  ccoonnttrraaccttoorrss,,  iinncclluuddiinngg  ddaanncceerrss,,  iiss  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd..  

IIff  yyoouu  ttaakkee  yyoouurr  pphhoonnee  iinnttoo  tthhee  cclluubb  iitt  mmuusstt  bbee  sseett  oonn  ssiilleenntt  aanndd  aannyy  ccoommmmuunniiccaattiioonn  MMUUSSTT  ttaakkee  

ppllaaccee  iinn  tthhee  cchhaannggiinngg  rroooommss..    

PPOOLLEE  AACCTTSS  AANNDD  SSTTAAGGEE  PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE  

Page 86



DDaanncceerrss  aarree  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  ssttaaggee  ppeerrffoorrmmaanncceess  oonn  aa  rroottaattiinngg  bbaassiiss  ttoo  sshhoowwccaassee  tthheeiirr  pprroovviissiioonn  

ooff  sseerrvviicceess  ttoo  ppootteennttiiaall  ccuussttoommeerrss..    DDaanncceerrss  mmuusstt  pprroocceeeedd  ttoo  tthhee  ssttaaggee  iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy  uuppoonn  bbeeiinngg  

ccaalllleedd  bbyy  tthhee  DDJJ..    HHaavviinngg  ccoommpplleetteedd  tthhee  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  DDaanncceerrss  mmuusstt  pprroommppttllyy  rree--ddrreessss  iinn  tthhee  

cchhaannggiinngg  rroooomm  pprroovviiddeedd..    

AAPPPPRROOAACCHHIINNGG  PPOOTTEENNTTIIAALL  CCUUSSTTOOMMEERRSS  

UUnnddeerr  nnoo  cciirrccuummssttaanncceess  aarree  DDaanncceerrss  ppeerrmmiitttteedd  ttoo  aapppprrooaacchh  ppootteennttiiaall  ccuussttoommeerrss  uunnttiill  tthheeyy  hhaavvee  

bbeeeenn  ssaatt  aatt  aa  ttaabbllee  aanndd  sseerrvveedd  tthheeiirr  ffiirrsstt  ddrriinnkk..  OOnnccee  ssiittttiinngg  wwiitthh  aa  ppootteennttiiaall  ccuussttoommeerr  tthhee  55  ssoonngg  rruullee  

aapppplliieess..  IIff  ffrroomm  tthhee  ttiimmee  yyoouu  ssiitt  ddoowwnn  ttoo  tthhee  ttiimmee  tthhaatt  tthhee  ffiifftthh  ssoonngg  hhaass  bbeeeenn  ppllaayyeedd  ffrroomm  wwhheenn  yyoouu  

ssaatt  ddoowwnn,,  iiff  tthhee  ppootteennttiiaall  ccuussttoommeerr  hhaass  nneeiitthheerr  ppuurrcchhaasseedd  yyoouu  aa  ddrriinnkk  oorr  aasskkeedd  yyoouu  ttoo  ppeerrffoorrmm  aa  

pprriivvaattee  ddaannccee,,  tthheenn  yyoouu  mmuusstt  ppoolliitteellyy  mmaakkee  yyoouurr  eexxccuusseess  aanndd  aallllooww  aannootthheerr  DDaanncceerr    aacccceessss  ttoo  tthhee  

ppootteennttiiaall  ccuussttoommeerr..  TThhee  ffiivvee  ssoonngg  rruullee  aapppplliieess  tthhrroouugghhoouutt  yyoouurr  ttiimmee  wwiitthh  tthhee  ccuussttoommeerr//ppootteennttiiaall  

ccuussttoommeerr  rreeggaarrddlleessss  ooff  hhooww  mmaannyy  ddrriinnkkss  hhee  mmaayy  hhaavvee  bboouugghhtt  yyoouu  oorr  ddaanncceess  hhee  mmaayy  hhaavvee  

ccoommmmiissssiioonneedd  pprreevviioouussllyy..  

LLEEAAVVIINNGG  EEAARRLLYY  

DDaanncceerrss  aarree  eexxppeecctteedd  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  sseerrvviicceess  aatt  tthhee  cclluubb  tthhrroouugghhoouutt  tthhee  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd..    OOnnllyy  bbyy  

pprree--aarrrraannggeemmeenntt  wwiitthh  tthhee  cclluubb  mmaannaaggeerr,,  aatt  lleeaasstt  2244  hhoouurrss  iinn  aaddvvaannccee  oorr  iiff  yyoouu  hhaavvee  aa  mmeeddiiccaall  

eemmeerrggeennccyy  mmaayy  yyoouu  pprroovviiddee  sseerrvviicceess  ffoorr  aa  lleesssseerr  ppeerriioodd..      

SShhoouulldd  yyoouu  hhaavvee  aa  mmeeddiiccaall  eemmeerrggeennccyy  aann  aammbbuullaannccee  wwiillll  bbee  ccaalllleedd  ffoorr  yyoouurr  ccaarree..  

IIff  yyoouu  aarree  uunnwweellll  aanndd  ffeeeell  iitt  mmaayy  iimmppaacctt  oonn  yyoouurr  aabbiilliittyy  ttoo  ccoonnttiinnuuee  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  sseerrvviicceess,,  ssppeeaakk  

iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy  ttoo  tthhee  cclluubb  mmaannaaggeerr..  TThheerree  wwiillll  bbee  aa  ffiirrsstt  aaiidd  kkiitt,,  ttaammppoonnss  aanndd  bbaanndd  aaiiddss  ffoorr  yyoouurr  uussee..  

YYoouu  wwiillll  bbee  ffoouunndd  aa  ccoommffoorrttaabbllee  ppllaaccee  ttoo  rreesstt  uunnttiill  yyoouu  ffeeeell  bbeetttteerr  aanndd  aarree  aabbllee  ttoo  ccoonnttiinnuuee  wwiitthh  yyoouurr  

bbuussiinneessss..  

PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE  FFEEEESS  

IInn  lliinnee  wwiitthh  tthhee  CClluubb  FFaacciilliittiieess  aanndd  AAcccceessss  LLiicceennccee  ((yyoouurr  lliicceennccee)),,  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  FFeeeess  mmuusstt  bbee  ppaaiidd  

bbeeffoorree  eenntteerriinngg  tthhee  cchhaannggiinngg  rroooomm..  

LLoocckkeerr  ffaacciilliittiieess  aarree  pprroovviiddeedd  ttoo  aallll  DDaanncceerrss  aanndd  uussee  ooff  tthhee  lloocckkeerrss  iiss  rreeccoommmmeennddeedd..    LLoocckkeerr  kkeeyyss  ccaann  
bbee  ccoolllleecctteedd  pprriioorr  ttoo  tthhee  ccoommmmeenncceemmeenntt  ooff  aa  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd  aanndd  mmuusstt  bbee  rreettuurrnneedd  aatt  tthhee  eenndd  

ooff  tthhee  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd..    

BBEEHHAAVVIIOOUURR  OOUUTTSSIIDDEE  OOFF  TTHHEE  CCLLUUBB  

AAlltthhoouugghh  yyoouu  aarree  nnoott  aann  eemmppllooyyeeee  oorr  aaggeenntt  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb,,  yyoouurr  bbeehhaavviioorr  oouuttssiiddee  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb  iiss  vveerryy  

iimmppoorrttaanntt  iinn  mmaaiinnttaaiinniinngg  tthhee  cclluubb’’ss  iimmaaggee  aanndd  ppooppuullaarriittyy..    SSuucchh  bbeehhaavviioorr  iiss  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  bbee  ooff  tthhee  

hhiigghheesstt  oorrddeerr  aatt  aallll  ttiimmeess..  

PPAARRKKIINNGG  AANNDD  LLEEAAVVIINNGG  TTHHEE  CCLLUUBB  

TToo  eennssuurree  yyoouurr  ssaaffeettyy  wwhheenn  yyoouu  lleeaavvee  tthhee  cclluubb  aa  mmeemmbbeerr  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb’’ss  ssttaaffff  wwiillll  bbee  aavvaaiillaabbllee  ttoo  

eessccoorrtt  yyoouu  ttoo  yyoouurr  ccaarr,,  pplleeaassee  bbee  ssuurree  ttoo  uussee  tthhiiss  sseerrvviiccee..  IIff  yyoouu  hhaavvee  nnoott  ddrriivveenn  tthheenn  aa  ttaaxxii  ccaann  bbee  

oorrggaanniizzeedd  ffoorr  yyoouurr  ssaaffeettyy,,  pplleeaassee  uussee  tthhiiss  ffaacciilliittyy..  

DDRRIINNKKIINNGG  

Page 87



IItt  iiss  nnoott  tthhee  ppoolliiccyy  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb  ttoo  eennccoouurraaggee  eexxcceessssiivvee  ccoonnssuummppttiioonn  ooff  aallccoohhooll  bbyy  ccuussttoommeerrss,,  ssttaaffff  oorr  

tthhiirrdd  ppaarrttyy  ccoonnttrraaccttoorrss..      TThhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr  iinnssiissttss  oonn  aallll  ppeerrssoonnss  aaddooppttiinngg  aa  rreessppoonnssiibbllee  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  

tthhee  ccoonnssuummppttiioonn  ooff  aallccoohhooll  aatt  aallll  ttiimmeess  aanndd  tthhaatt  ssuucchh  ccoonnssuummppttiioonn  iiss  iinn  mmooddeerraattiioonn..  HHoowweevveerr,,  

DDaanncceerrss  aarree  nnoott  ttoo  rreeffuussee  aa  ddrriinnkk  wwhheenn  ooffffeerreedd..    DDaanncceerrss  ddoo  nnoott  hhaavvee  ttoo  ddrriinnkk  aannyy  ddrriinnkk  ppuurrcchhaasseedd  
ffoorr  tthheemm  bbyy  tthheeiirr  cclliieennttss  aanndd    aallccoohhooll  ffrreeee  aalltteerrnnaattiivveess  aarree  aallwwaayyss  aavvaaiillaabbllee..  

SSMMOOKKIINNGG  

IIss  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd  oonn  tthhee  eenncclloosseedd  pprreemmiisseess  aanndd  iiss  iilllleeggaall..  

CCHHEEWWIINNGG  GGUUMM  

NNoott  ttoo  bbee  uusseedd  aatt  aannyy  ttiimmee  wwhhiillsstt  wwoorrkkiinngg  

HHUUSSBBAANNDDSS,,  BBOOYYFFRREEIINNDDSS  AANNDD  SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT  OOTTHHEERRSS  

TThheeyy  aarree  nnoott  aalllloowweedd  iinnttoo  tthhee  cclluubb  wwhhiillsstt  yyoouu  aarree  iinn  aatttteennddaannccee..  SShhoouulldd  tthheerree  bbee  aa  ssppeecciiaall  ooccccaassiioonn  

wwhheerreebbyy  ffrriieennddss  oorr  rreellaattiivveess  aarree  vviissiittiinngg  aanndd  wwoouulldd  lliikkee  ttoo  sseeee  tthhee  cclluubb,,  iiff  nnoottiiffiieedd  iinn  aaddvvaannccee  tthhee  

mmaannaaggeerr  mmaayy  ggrraanntt  ppeerrmmiissssiioonn..  IInn  aannyy  eevveenntt  oouurr  ddrreessss  ccooddee  wwoouulldd  aappppllyy..  

RREELLAATTIIOONNSSHHIIPPSS  

YYoouurr  ppeerrssoonnaall  lliiffee  aawwaayy  ffrroomm  tthhee  cclluubb  iiss  yyoouurr  ppeerrssoonnaall  bbuussiinneessss  aanndd  tthhiiss  wwiillll  aallwwaayyss  bbee  rreessppeecctteedd  bbyy  

tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr..    HHoowweevveerr,,  rreellaattiioonnsshhiippss  wwiitthh  ootthheerrss  tthhaatt  wwoorrkk  aatt  tthhee  cclluubb  oorr  pprroovviiddee  sseerrvviicceess  ffrroomm  

tthhee  cclluubb  aarree  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd..    SSuucchh  aa  rreellaattiioonnsshhiipp  wwiillll  bbee  vviieewweedd  aass  aa  bbrreeeecchh  ooff  tthhiiss  ppoolliiccyy  aanndd  

tthheerreeffoorree  mmaayy  rreessuulltt  iinn  yyoouurr  lliicceennccee  bbeeiinngg  tteerrmmiinnaatteedd..    DDaanncceerrss  aarree  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  ffooccuuss  oonn  tthheeiirr  

bbuussiinneessss  wwhheenn  iinn  aatttteennddaannccee  aatt  tthhee  cclluubb  aanndd  nnoott  eennggaaggee  iinn  ppeerrssoonnaall  ccoommmmuunniiccaattiioonnss  wwiitthh  ssttaaffff,,  

ootthheerr  ddaanncceerrss  oorr  aannyy  ootthheerr  ppaarrttiieess..  

PPEERRSSOONNAALL  HHYYGGIIEENNEE  

DDaanncceerrss  sshhoouulldd  sshhoowweerr  ddaaiillyy,,  uussee  ddeeooddoorraannttss  hhaavvee  cclleeaann  sshhaavveenn  lleeggss  aanndd  aarrmmppiittss..  DDaanncceerrss  mmuusstt  

kkeeeepp  bbrreeaatthh  ssppaayyss  oorr  mmiinnttss  wwiitthh  tthheemm  aanndd  wweeaarr  ssuuiittaabbllee  ppeerrffuummee..    TThheessee  sstteeppss  aarree  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  bbyy  

tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr  ttoo  bbee  eesssseennttiiaall  iinn  ooppeerraattiinngg  aa  ssuucccceessssffuull  bbuussiinneessss  ffoorr  tthhee  ssuuppppllyy  ooff  ddaanncciinngg  sseerrvviicceess..  

CCOOSSTTUUMMEESS  

DDaanncceerrss  mmuusstt  hhaavvee  aapppprroopprriiaattee  ccoossttuummeess  aavvaaiillaabbllee  aatt  aallll  ttiimmeess  aass  ppaarrtt  ooff  tthheeiirr  oowwnn  eeqquuiippmmeenntt..    LLoonngg  

ddrreesssseess  aarree  tthhee  ssppeecciiffiieedd  mmooddee  ooff  ddrreessss  bbeeffoorree  mmiiddnniigghhtt..  YYoouu  sshhoouulldd  aatt  aallll  ttiimmeess  hhaavvee  aa  mmiinniimmuumm  ooff  

oonnee  cchhaannggee  ooff  oouuttffiitt  wwiitthh  yyoouu  aanndd  iitt  iiss  eexxppeecctteedd  tthhaatt  yyoouu  wwiillll  nnoott  wweeaarr  tthhee  ssaammee  oouuttffiitt  oonn  

ccoonnsseeccuuttiivvee  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriiooddss..  

Page 88



TTHHEE  FFOOLLLLOOWWIINNGG  AACCTTSS  AARREE  CCOONNSSIIDDEERREEDD  TTOO  BBEE  AA  FFUUNNDDAAMMEENNTTAALL  BBRREEAACCHH  OOFF  

TTHHEE  SSEERRVVIICCEE  LLEEVVEELL  SSPPEECCIIFFIIEEDD  IINN  TTHHIISS  PPOOLLIICCYY  AANNDD  MMAAYY  RREESSUULLTT  IINN  IINNSSTTAANNTT  

TTEERRMMIINNAATTIIOONN  OOFF  TTHHEE  CCLLUUBB  FFAACCIILLIITTIIEESS  AANNDD  AACCCCEESSSS  LLIICCEENNCCEE  

CCUUSSTTOOMMEERR  CCOONNTTAACCTT  

NNoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd  ––  YYoouu  mmaayy  nnoott  ttoouucchh  aa  ccuussttoommeerr  wwhhiillsstt  ppeerrffoorrmmiinngg..  AA  ccuussttoommeerr  mmaayy  nnoott  ttoouucchh  aa  

DDaanncceerr  dduurriinngg  aa  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee..  YYoouu  mmaayy  nnoott  ssiitt  oonn  aa  gguueesstt  llaapp  wwhhiillsstt  ddaanncciinngg  nnuuddee..  WWhhiillsstt  ssiittttiinngg  wwiitthh  

aa  ccuussttoommeerr  yyoouu  mmuusstt  hhaavvee  yyoouu  bbrreeaassttss  aanndd  ggeenniittaallss  ccoovveerreedd  aatt  aallll  ttiimmeess..    

CCLLUUBB  BBEEHHAAVVIIOOUURR  

TThhee  oonnllyy  llaanngguuaaggee  ttoo  bbee  uusseedd  iinn  tthhee  cclluubb  bbyy  DDaanncceerrss  iiss  EENNGGLLIISSHH  aass  ccuussttoommeerrss  aarree  uunnccoommffoorrttaabbllee  

wwiitthh  ccoonnvveerrssaattiioonn  tthheeyy  ccaann’’tt  uunnddeerrssttaanndd..    UUssee  ooff  llaanngguuaaggeess  ootthheerr  tthhaann  EEnngglliisshh  ffoorr  ddiissccuussssiioonnss  wwiitthh  

ootthheerr  DDaanncceerrss  iiss  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd..  

RRUUDDEENNEESSSS  TTOO  CCUUSSTTOOMMEERRSS  

IIff  aa  pprroobblleemm  aarriisseess  nnoottiiffyy  tthhee  cclluubb  mmaannaaggeerr  iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy,,  ddoo  nnoott  aatttteemmpptt  ttoo  ddeeaall  wwiitthh  aa  ddiissoorrddeerrllyy  

ccuussttoommeerr..  WWee  eexxppeecctt  yyoouu  ttoo  ttrreeaatt  oouurr  ccuussttoommeerrss  aanndd  yyoouurrss  wwiitthh  ccoouurrtteessyy  aanndd  rreessppeecctt  wwhheetthheerr  

ddeesseerrvveedd  oorr  nnoott..  DDoo  nnoott  iinnvvoollvvee  yyoouurrsseellff  wwiitthh  aannyy  ddiissppuuttee  tthhaatt  mmaayy  ooccccuurr..    AAccttiinngg  iinn  aann  ooffffeennssiivvee  

mmaannnneerr  ttoo  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr’’ss  ccuussttoommeerrss  oorr  yyoouurr  oowwnn  iiss  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd..  

DDIISSHHOONNEESSTTYY  

TThheefftt  ooff  mmoonneeyy  oorr  pprrooppeerrttyy  ooff  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr,,  ccuussttoommeerrss,,  ootthheerr  ddaanncceerrss  oorr  eemmppllooyyeeeess  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb,,  

tthhiiss  iinncclluuddeess  tthhee  ggiivviinngg  aawwaayy  ooff  mmeerrcchhaannddiissee  aanndd  tthhee  rreemmoovvaall  ooff  mmoonneeyy  ffrroomm  aa  gguueessttss  ttaabbllee..  

FFIIGGHHTTIINNGG  

FFiigghhttiinngg  oorr  wwiillllffuull  aaccttss  rreessuullttiinngg  iinn  iinnjjuurryy  ttoo  ootthheerr  ppeerrssoonnss  oorr  pprrooppeerrttyy,,  wwhhiillsstt  oonn  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr’’ss  

pprrooppeerrttyy  oorr  iinn  tthhee  vviicciinniittyy  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb,,  wwiillll  bbee  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  aa  bbrreeaacchh  ooff  tthhee  rreeqquuiirreedd  sseerrvviiccee  lleevveell..  

AAddddiittiioonnaallllyy  hhaarraassssmmeenntt,,  tthhrreeaattss  aanndd  aarrgguummeennttss  bbeettwweeeenn  ddaanncceerrss  aanndd  oorr  ssttaaffff  iiss  nnoott  ppeerrmmiitttteedd..  

IItt  iiss  tthhee  ppoolliiccyy  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb  nneevveerr  ttoo  uussee  ffoorrccee  wwiitthh  aannyy  ccuussttoommeerr  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb,,  rreeggaarrddlleessss  ooff  tthhee  

ssiittuuaattiioonn..  TThhee  oonnllyy  eexxcceeppttiioonn  bbeeiinngg  lliimmiitteedd  ffoorrccee,,  uusseedd  ttoo  rreessttrraaiinn,,  iiff  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  rreessttrraaiinn  aa  ccuussttoommeerr  

ttoo  pprrootteecctt  ootthheerr  ccuussttoommeerrss,,  ddaanncceerrss  oorr  mmeemmbbeerrss  ooff  ssttaaffff..  UUnnddeerr  nnoo  cciirrccuummssttaanncceess  iiss  iitt  ppeerrmmiissssiibbllee  ttoo  

ssttrriikkee  aa  gguueesstt,,  iiff  hhaarraasssseedd  ccaallll  tthhee  mmaannaaggeerr  oorr  aa  mmeemmbbeerr  ooff  tthhee  sseeccuurriittyy  tteeaamm..  

MMIISSUUSSEE  OOFF  CCOOMMPPAANNYY  PPRROOPPEERRTTYY  

MMiissuussee  ddeessttrruuccttiioonn  oorr  nneegglliiggeennccee  ttoowwaarrddss  ccoommppaannyy  pprrooppeerrttyy  wwiillll  nnoott  bbee  ttoolleerraatteedd  uunnddeerr  aannyy  

cciirrccuummssttaanncceess,,  aanndd  aannyy  ddaammaaggee  wwiillll  bbee  cchhaarrggeedd  ttoo  tthhee  ddaanncceerr  rreessppoonnssiibbllee..  

DDIISSCCLLOOSSUURREE  

DDiisscclloossuurree  ooff  aannyy  ccoommppaannyy  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn;;  tthhee  cclluubb  ttaakkeess  pprriiddee  iinn  tthhee  ccrreeaattiioonn  ooff  iittss  ddeessiiggnnss  aanndd  

eenntteerrttaaiinnmmeenntt  ffoorrmmaatt  aanndd  tthheerreeffoorree  ffeeeellss  ssttrroonnggllyy  aabboouutt  ccoonnffiiddeennttiiaalliittyy..  AAllll  ddaanncceerrss  aarree  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  

kkeeeepp  aannyy  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  rreellaattiinngg  ttoo  tthhee  cclluubb  wwhhiicchh  iiss  pprroopprriieettaarryy  iinn  nnaattuurree  ccoonnffiiddeennttiiaall..  

Page 89



IINNSSUUBBOORRDDIINNAATTIIOONN  

AAlltthhoouugghh  yyoouu  aarree  aann  iinnddeeppeennddeenntt  ccoonnttrraaccttoorr  hhoollddiinngg  aa  lliicceennccee  ttoo  aacccceessss  tthhee  cclluubb,,  dduuee  ttoo  tthhee  nnaattuurree  

ooff  tthhee  eenntteerrttaaiinnmmeenntt  sseerrvviicceess  yyoouu  wwiillll  bbee  pprroovviiddiinngg,,  ccoommpplliiaannccee  wwiitthh  tthhee  iinnssttrruuccttiioonnss  ooff  tthhee  cclluubb  

mmaannaaggeerr  oorr  aannyy  mmeemmbbeerr  ooff  sseeccuurriittyy  ssttaaffff  iiss  aa  nneecceessssiittyy..  SShhoouulldd  yyoouu  ddiissaaggrreeee  wwiitthh  aannyy  ppaarrttiiccuullaarr  
iinnssttrruuccttiioonn  yyoouu  mmuusstt  ccoommppllyy  aanndd  tthheenn  ttaakkee  tthhee  iissssuuee  uupp  wwiitthh  tthhee  mmaannaaggeerr  aatt  aa  ccoonnvveenniieenntt  ttiimmee..  

PPRREESSCCRRIIPPTTIIOONN  DDRRUUGGSS  

SShhoouulldd  yyoouu  bbee  uussiinngg  pprreessccrriippttiioonn  ddrruuggss  oorr  oovveerr  tthhee  ccoouunntteerr  mmeeddiiccaattiioonn  tthheenn  iitt  mmaayy  bbee  bbrroouugghhtt  iinnttoo  

tthhee  cclluubb,,  pprroovviiddee  tthhaatt  iitt  iiss  iinn  iittss  oorriiggiinnaall  ccoonnttaaiinneerr,,  cclleeaarrllyy  mmaarrkkeedd  aass  ppeerr  tthhee  ccoonntteennttss  aanndd  iinn  tthhee  ccaassee  

ooff  pprreessccrriippttiioonn  ddrruuggss,,  cclleeaarrllyy  llaabbeelleedd  wwiitthh  yyoouurr  nnaammee..  

NNAARRCCOOTTIICCSS  

WWEE  OOPPEERRAATTEE  AA  ZZEERROO  TTOOLLEERRAANNCCEE  PPOOLLIICCYY  OONN  IILLLLEEGGAALL  DDRRUUGG  UUSSEE..  TThhiiss  iinncclluuddeess  aalllloowwiinngg  ppaattrroonnss  oorr  

ootthheerr  ddaanncceerrss  oorr  ssttaaffff  mmeemmbbeerrss  ttoo  ccoonnssuummee  oorr  aarrrraannggee  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  ooff  ccoonnttrroolllleedd  ssuubbssttaanncceess  oonn  oorr  

ooffff  tthhee  pprreemmiisseess..  AAnnyy  ccoonnvveerrssaattiioonn  ooff  tthhiiss  ttyyppee  mmuusstt  bbee  iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy  rreeppoorrtteedd  ttoo  tthhee  cclluubb  mmaannaaggeerr  

oorr  tthhee  sseeccuurriittyy  ssttaaffff..  SShhoouulldd  aa  ccuussttoommeerr  ooffffeerr  yyoouu  ddrruuggss  tthhiiss  mmuusstt  bbee  iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy  rreeppoorrtteedd..  TThhee  

mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  rreesseerrvveess  tthhee  rriigghhtt  ttoo  sseeaarrcchh  tthhee  cchhaannggiinngg  rroooommss,,  lloocckkeerrss  aanndd  ppeerrssoonnaall  bbaaggss  aanndd  

ppoosssseessssiioonnss  ooff  aannyy  mmeemmbbeerr  ooff  ssttaaffff  oorr  ddaanncceerr  aatt  aannyy  ttiimmee  wwiitthhoouutt  nnoottiiccee..  AAnnyy  ddaanncceerr  ooffffeerriinngg  ddrruuggss  

ttoo  aannyy  ccuussttoommeerr,,  mmeemmbbeerr  ooff  ssttaaffff  oorr  ootthheerr  ddaanncceerr  wwiillll  bbee  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  ttoo  hhaavvee  bbrreeaacchheedd  tthhee  

ccoonnddiittiioonnss  ooff  tthhee  CClluubb  FFaacciilliittiieess  aanndd  AAcccceessss  LLiicceennccee,,  rreessuullttiinngg  iinn  iimmmmeeddiiaattee  tteerrmmiinnaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  

lliicceennccee..    FFuurrtthheerr,,  tthhee  ppoolliiccee  wwiillll  bbee  ccaalllleedd  aanndd  tthhee  ddaanncceerr’’ss  ccoonnttaacctt  ddeettaaiillss  pprroovviiddeedd  ttoo  tthheemm..  

PPAANNDDEERRIINNGG  FFOORR  PPRROOSSTTIITTUUTTIIOONN  

SSeelllliinngg  aannyy  ttyyppee  ooff  sseexxuuaall  ffaavvoorr  ttoo  aannyyoonnee  iiss  pprroohhiibbiitteedd  aanndd  wwiillll  rreessuulltt  iinn  iinnssttaanntt  tteerrmmiinnaattiioonn  ooff  yyoouurr  

lliicceennccee..  

SSOOLLIICCIITTAATTIIOONN  FFOORR  PPRROOSSTTIITTUUTTIIOONN  

AAcccceeppttiinngg  aa  gguueesstt  ooffffeerr  ooff  ppaayymmeenntt  iinn  rreettuurrnn  ffoorr  aannyy  sseexxuuaall  ffaavvoorr,,  rreeggaarrddlleessss  ooff  wwhheetthheerr  oorr  nnoott  yyoouu  

iinntteenndd  ttoo  ccoommmmiitt  tthheemm  iiss  pprroohhiibbiitteedd  aanndd  wwiillll  rreessuulltt  iinn  iinnssttaanntt  tteerrmmiinnaattiioonn  ooff  yyoouurr  lliicceennccee..  

AASSSSIIGGNNAATTIIOONN  OOFF  PPRROOSSTTIITTUUTTIIOONN  

TThhiiss  iiss  tthhee  pprroommiissee  ooff,,  oorr  aaccttiivviittyy  ooff,,  mmeeeettiinngg  ssoommeeoonnee  aatt  aa  llaatteerr  ttiimmee  iinn  rreettuurrnn  ffoorr  ggrraattuuiittiieess  ggiivveenn  

dduurriinngg  aa  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee..  WWhheetthheerr  oorr  nnoott  yyoouu  hhaavvee  aannyy  iinntteennttiioonn  ooff  mmeeeettiinngg  tthhee  iinnddiivviidduuaall((ss))  iiss  

aaccaaddeemmiicc..  FFaaiilluurree  ttoo  ccoommppllyy  wwiillll  rreessuulltt  iinn  iinnssttaanntt  tteerrmmiinnaattiioonn  ooff  yyoouurr  lliicceennccee..  

LLEEWWDD  AANNDD  LLAASSCCIIVVIIOOUUSS  BBEEHHAAVVIIOOUURR  

DDuurriinngg  pprriivvaattee  ddaanncceess  ccoonndduucceedd  ffoorr  yyoouurr  ccuussttoommeerrss,,  aabbssoolluutteellyy  nnoo  ccoonnttaacctt  ooff  aannyy  ttyyppee  iiss  ppeerrmmiitttteedd..  

TThhee  ffiinnaall  ddeecciissiioonn  aass  ttoo  wwhhaatt  rreepprreesseennttss  lleewwdd  oorr  llaasscciivviioouuss  bbeehhaavviioorr  rreessttss  wwiitthh  tthhee  cclluubb  mmaannaaggeerr..  

SSOOLLIICCIITTAATTIIOONN  FFOORR  DDRRIINNKKSS  OORR  TTIIPPSS  

SSoolliicciittaattiioonn  ffoorr  aallccoohhoolliicc  ((oorr  nnoonn  aallccoohhoolliicc))  bbeevveerraaggeess  iiss  pprroohhiibbiitteedd..  YYoouu  mmuusstt  nnoott  aasskk  aa  gguueesstt  ttoo  bbuuyy  

yyoouu  aa  ddrriinnkk  bbuutt  mmuusstt  wwaaiitt  ttoo  bbee  ooffffeerreedd,,  ffuurrtthheerr  yyoouu  mmuusstt  nnoott  aasskk  ffoorr  ttiippss  oorr  mmoonneeyy;;  iitt  mmuusstt  bbee  ggiivveenn  

wwiilllliinnggllyy  oorr  ppaaiidd  aass  aa  pprrooffeessssiioonnaall  aarrttiissttss  ffeeee  ffoorr  tthhee  eenntteerrttaaiinnmmeenntt  pprroovviiddeedd  bbyy  yyoouu..    

Page 90



WWEEAAPPOONNSS  

NNoo  ccss  ggaass  oorr  wweeaappoonnss  ooff  aannyy  ssoorrtt  aarree  ppeerrmmiitttteedd  oonn  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr’’ss  pprrooppeerrttyy  ffoorr  aannyy  rreeaassoonn  aatt  aannyy  

ttiimmee..  

UUNNIIOONNSS  

YYoouu  mmaayy  jjooiinn  aanndd  iinn  ffaacctt  eennccoouurraaggeedd  ttoo  jjooiinn  eeiitthheerr  EEqquuiittyy  oorr  GGMMBBUU,,  ddeettaaiillss  aarree  aavvaaiillaabbllee  

LLIICCEENNCCEE  PPRREESSEERRVVAATTIIOONN  

YYoouu  mmaayy  nnoott  aacctt  iinn  aannyy  wwaayy  tthhaatt  wwoouulldd  jjeeooppaarrddiizzee  tthhee  SSeexxuuaall  EEnntteerrttaaiinnmmeenntt  VVeennuuee  LLiicceennccee  oorr  tthhee  

PPrreemmiisseess  LLiicceennccee  hheelldd  bbyy  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr  oorr  tthhee  CClluubb  OOwwnneerr’’ss  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess..    AAnnyy  ssuucchh  aacctt  

wwiillll  bbee  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  aa  bbrreeaacchh  ooff  yyoouurr  lliicceennccee  aanndd  yyoouurr  lliicceennccee  wwiillll  bbee  tteerrmmiinnaatteedd..  

PPRROOOOFF  OOFF  IIDDEENNTTIITTYY  AANNDD  AAGGEE  RREEQQUUIIRREEMMEENNTT  

BBeeffoorree  ccoommmmeenncciinngg  aa  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPeerriioodd  aallll  DDaanncceerrss  aarree  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  aapppprroovveedd  iiddeennttiiffiiccaattiioonn  

ddooccuummeennttaattiioonn  cclleeaarrllyy  ddeettaaiilliinngg  tthheeiirr  nnaammee,,  aaggee,,  NNaattiioonnaall  IInnssuurraannccee  NNuummbbeerr  aanndd  hhoommee  aaddddrreessss..    

PPrroovviissiioonn  ooff  ffaakkee  oorr  ffrraauudduulleenntt  ddooccuummeennttaattiioonn  wwiillll  rreessuulltt  iinn  iimmmmeeddiiaattee  tteerrmmiinnaattiioonn  ooff  yyoouurr  lliicceennccee  

aanndd  yyoouurr  ddeettaaiillss  wwiillll  bbee  ppaasssseedd  ttoo  tthhee  ppoolliiccee..  

II  HHAAVVEE  RREEAADD  AANNDD  UUNNDDEERRSSTTOOOODD  TTHHIISS  PPOOLLIICCYY..  

SSTTAAGGEE  NNAAMMEE  

FFUULLLL  NNAAMMEE  

NNII  NNUUMMBBEERR  

AADDDDRREESSSS  

PPOOSSTT  CCOODDEE  

TTEELL  NNoo  

SSIIGGNNEEDD  

DDAATTEEDD  

Page 91



Tiiie white swaa 
Performances start from 8 pm nightly. 

NO PERSON UNDER 18 IS TO BE ADMJTI'BD 

A STRICT DRESS CODE JS· EXPECTED INSIDE THE 
CLUB PLEASE RESPECT THIS AT ALL TIMES. 

If invited our entertainers will dance for you IU/ly nude in a private area for 
the price of £20 per dance. 

You may wish to invite a dance to remain at your table for which it is 
customary to tip at a fee agreed between the parties involved prior to 
commencement. The dancer may accept refreshment whilst at the table. 

Dancers fee may be paid in cash or with a credit or debit card at the bar 
or a designated place inside the club .please asks a member of the waiting 
staH: These chips carry a 2096 administration fee. 

Customers must be seated at all times when our entertainers are dancing 
for them. 

No physical contact is allowed between customers and dancers while 
dancers are in a state of undress. Nor may they be propositioned in any 
way. 

No verbal or physical abuse towards stafl; dancers or other guest will he 
tolerated 

Any breech of these rules will result m you being required to leave 
majlngos. 

If you have any quires regarding the dancers roles or any dispute with 
them please speak with the management who will endeavor to help. 

Refreshment may only be purchased through a member of the waiting staff 
as bar service is not available. There is no service charge applied to your 
bill this is left to your discretion. 
VIP champagne areas are available for your enjoyment please asks a 
member of staff thank you. 
Please have and enjoyable evening and drink sensibly 

When leaving the premises please leave quietly. 
Taxis are .available at reception please ask a member of stiJJff 

Page 92



THE WHITE SWAN 
POLICY FOR THE WELFARE OF PERFORMERS 

1. Each dancer and performer will undergo an interview with the management team 
and an induction prior to being engaged at the premises. 

2. During this interview, two forms of identification will be provided, to include a utility 
bill and photographic identification such as a photocard driving licence or passport. 

3. The induction will include training in the following areas as a minimum: 
(i) The premises rules; 
(ii) The Performers Code of Conduct; 
(iii) The Customers Code of Conduct; 
(iv) This Welfare Policy; 
(v) Familiarisation with the premises; 
(vi) Fire evacuation procedures; and 
(vii) Health and safety guidance. 

4. Training will also be provided in relation to working schedules, changing room 
etiquette, payments and charging, disciplinary procedures, customer relations and 
conflict management, arrival and exit procedures and incident reporting. 

5. All areas of the premises to which the public have access will have adequate 
supervision via CCTV and/or SIA registered door supervisors. 

6. Any dancer concerned about the behaviour of a customer shall report the incident 
immediately to the duty manager, who shall take immediate action to resolve the 
matter. 

7. All staff employed at the venue will monitor and supervise the behaviour of 
customers and draw to the attention of security staff or the duty manager any 
breach of the Customer Code of Conduct, any situation where an individual is 
placed in danger or where alarm or distress is caused to a dancer. The security 
staff or manager shall take appropriate action to resolve the action. · 

8. Customers behaving inappropriately and/or in breach of the Customer Code or 
Conduct may be ejected from the venue. 

9. A secure dressing room facility will be provided for performers. 

10. Dancers can deposit any valuables with the management by way of a sealed and 
signed envelope, which will be placed in the safe upon their arrival at the venue and 
returned at the end of the shift. 

11 . Dancers will be provided with free tap drinking water on request at all times. 

12. At the end of the performer's schedule, the performer will be asked if she requi res 
to be escorted from the premises to her vehicle, taxi or pre-arranged transportation 
in the adjoining streets. 

Page 93



Appendix 9 

Page 94



54
4

51
2

BU
TC

HE
R R

OW

37

4

42

2

PH

9

Studios

13
BE

LG
RA

VE
 ST

RE
ET

Garage

TCB

528

571

536RATCLIFFE CROSS STREET

526

13

10
.6m

18

595a

595

BROMLEY STREET

25

583

8 t
o 1

2

585 to 593

514

Reservoir

RATCLIFFE

9

532

1 to 9

25

530

Club

3

CROSS STREET

37

30

10.7m

RATCLIFF

BOULCOTT STREET

2

643

11 to 15
9

El

574

8

YORK

House

6

10

BA
RN

ES
 ST

RE
ET

Belvedere

10.0m2

YORK

631

2
9.9m

633

5

Po
sts

74

6

Troon

1a

45

556

62

13

57

301 to 312

12

PH

House

605

Sub

York Square

1

2

Ratcliffe

6.1m

38

SQUARE

House

582

Po
sts

10 to

Sta

LANE

1

Su
rg

ery

16
SQUARE

WAKELING STREET

558

WH
ITE

 H
OR

SE
 R

OA
D

New

22

84

12

Sub Sta

10.0m

16

1 to 5

9.9m

El

17

PH

201 to 212

566

627

FL
AM

BO
RO

UG
H 

ST
RE

ET

22

31

61
5

1 t
o 5

3

76

101 to 112

26

10

16

Limehouse Station

14

588

14

623

ST
RE

ET

9.3m
62

1

15

1

8

Gardens

26

BE
KE

SB
OU

RN
E

BR
AN

CH
 R

OA
D

5

43

John Scurr House

2

21

PH

1 to 11

1

RATCLIFFE

30

50

PH

70

WB

0.6m

Ratcliffe Orchard

Works

BUTCHER ROW

7.2m

566

Tunnel

23

5.9m

DW

Chapel

5.9m

DW

The Royal Foundation

BR
AN

CH
 R

OA
D

Rotherhithe

St James's Gardens

of St Katharine

(Private)

2.0m

Foot Bridge

LIMEHOUSE LINK

17

TCBs

War Memorial

1 t
o 1

4
Po

wl
es

lan
d

Co
urt

601
599

41

549 551

46
48

547

534

545

2

469 to 475

Post

6

Cycle Way

577

7
3

1c
1b

1a

1 to 33

49
 to

 94

Marlin
Apartments

34 to 48

5
1 to 14

1 to 3

585 to 593

Car Pound

516

Lavender
House

1 to 23

87 to 90

3

619

401 to 412501 to 512601 to 612

617

WARREN PLACE

2 t
o 6

1 t
o 5 546

548

2 t
o 4

Ward Bdy

CR
Boro Const & Ward Bdy

Cosmo
Apartments

Shelter

Sh
elt

er

Shelter

SL

White Swan

Bu
tch

er
Ro

w

Limehouse Link

Wh
ite

Ho
rse

Ro
ad

Rotherhithe Tunnel Approach

Commercial Road

Cable Street

Shadwell

St Dunstan's

Stepney Green

Limehouse

µSEV Premises

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey, London Borough of Tower Hamlets 100019288

Page 95



Appendix 10 

Page 96



Page 1 

Shadwell 
Ward Profile 

Corporate Research Unit 
May 2014 

P
age 97



Page 2 

Contents 
Population ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3

Ethnicity .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4

Religion ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4

Housing ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5

Health - Limiting illness or disability ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 7

Unpaid care provision ................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7

Labour market participation ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8

Socio economic groups ................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 9

Qualification levels ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10

Introduction 

The ward profiles have been produced for all 20 wards in Tower Hamlets. They provide the social, economic and demographic characteristics 
of each ward in the borough developing a broad picture of the area and help describing local differences.   

In May 2014, the number of wards increased from 17 to 20. The changes were made by the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England, in order to ensure that every councillor in Tower Hamlets represented roughly the same number of residents.  The changes mean that 
no ward will have a population variance of greater than 10 per cent. As a result of the changes, the average population per councillor will be 
4,029 in 2014, rising to 4,417 by 2018, according to projected population growth.   

Data from the 2011 Census has been used throughout this ward profile as this still provides the single best source of statistics which are 
available at geography small enough to be aggregated up in to the new wards. While more recent estimates of the resident population are 
available for the borough and old ward boundaries, these cannot be used to infer the current population according to the new ward 
boundaries.   

P
age 98



Page 3 

Population 

Age Structure 

Figure 1: Proportion of population by age

(Source: Census 2011 QS103EW - Age by single year) 

• At the time of the 2011 Census, the population for Shadwell was
12,654 which accounted for almost 5 per cent of the total population
of Tower Hamlets.

• The ward had 6,462 males and 6,192 females providing a gender
split in the ward of 51.1 per cent male and 48.9 per cent female.

• The population density in this ward was 179 people per hectare,
higher than the borough average of 129 people per hectare.

• There is a higher than borough average proportion of residents in the
Shadwell ward who are aged 0-15 years old, and a higher than
average proportion of those aged 65+.  The proportion of residents of
working age (16-64) was the 4th lowest in the borough.

Table 1: Number and proportion of residents by age range 

Residents by Age 0-15 16-64 65+ Total 

Shadwell 3,181 8,584 889 12,654 
Shadwell % 25.1% 67.8% 7.0% 100% 
Tower Hamlets % 19.7% 74.1% 6.1% 100% 
(Source: Census 2011 QS103EW - Age by single year) 

4.0% 2.0% 0.0% 2.0% 4.0% 6.0%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100+

Shadwell LBTH

P
age 99



Page 4 

Ethnicity 
Figure 2: Ethnicity

(Source: Census 2011 QS201EW - Ethnic group) 

Religion
Figure 3: Religion

(Source: Census 2011 QS208EW – Religion) 

• At the time of the 2011 Census, 9,007 residents in the ward were BME (71
per cent). This proportion was significantly higher than the borough
average of 54 per cent.

• Residents of Bangladeshi origin accounted for 52 per cent of the
population (6,585 residents). This was higher than the borough average
(32 per cent).

• There were 2,541 White British residents in the Shadwell ward.  There
was a lower proportion of residents who are White British in the ward
compared to the borough average of 33 per cent.

• The three largest ethnic groups in the borough (White British, Bangladeshi
and White Other) accounted for 81 per cent of all residents in this ward.

• The proportion of residents who identified themselves as Christian was
20.6 per cent – lower than the borough average of 27 per cent.  At 54.8
per cent of the population, the proportion of Muslim residents was the
highest of all 20 wards in the borough.

• Tower Hamlets had a significantly higher proportion of residents who
explicitly did not state their religion on the census form when compared to
London and the rest of England.  There were 1,453 residents in the
Shadwell ward explicitly did not state a religion, this equated to 11.5 per
cent of the ward population – the lowest proportion out of all 20 wards in
the borough.

• There were just over 1,357 residents in the ward who stated that they had
no religion on the census form – accounting for 10.7 per cent of the ward’s
population, lower than the borough average.

20%
33%

47%

81%

9%

12%

13%

5%

5%
52%

32%

8% 7%

13%

8% 11%
19%

8%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Shadwell LBTH London England

All Other

Black

Bangladesh

i
Mixed

White

other
White

British

20.6% 27.1%

48.4%
59.4%

5.0%54.8% 34.5%

12.4% 5.0%

10.7%
19.1%

20.7% 24.7%

11.5% 15.4%
8.5% 7.2%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Shadwell LBTH London England

Religion not stated

No religion

Other religion

Sikh

Muslim

Jewish

Hindu

Buddhist

Christian

P
age 100



Page 5 

Housing 
Tenure1

Figure 4: Tenure of households

(Source: Census 2011 QS405EW - Tenure – Households) 

• Tower Hamlets as a whole had a significantly lower proportion of
households who were owner-occupier compared to the London average
(26.6 per cent compared to 49.5 per cent).  The proportion of socially
rented households in the borough was almost double that of the London
average. There was also a higher proportion of privately rented
households compared to the London average.

• There were 4,497 households in the Shadwell ward, a comparatively
equivalent proportion of households as the borough average.

• 22.6 per cent of households in the wards were owner-occupied, a rate
lower than the borough average of 26.6 per cent.

• There was a higher than average proportion of socially rented properties
in this ward and a lower than average proportion of private rented
properties.  Together the proportion of renters (75.9 per cent) was above
the borough average (72.2 per cent).

Household size 
Figure 5: Tenure of households

(Source: Census 2011 QS405EW - Tenure – Households) 

• The proportion of households in the Shadwell ward with three or more
people accounted for almost 43 per cent of the total households in the
ward.  This proportion was higher than the borough average of 35 per
cent.

• On Census day, 862 households were recorded as having five or more
people living in them.  This equated to 19.2 per cent of the households
in the ward and was higher than the average for Tower Hamlets (12.3
per cent).

• The average household size for the ward was 2.81 compared to the
borough average of 2.51.

1
Tenure provides information about whether a household rents or owns the accommodation that it occupies and, if rented, combines this with information about the type of landlord who owns or manages the 

accommodation.

22.6% 26.6%

49.5%
64.1%

53.7% 39.6%

24.1%

17.7%

22.2%
32.6% 25.1% 16.8%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Shadwell LBTH London England

Living Rent Free

Private Rented

Social Rented

Owner Occupier

32.7% 34.6% 31.6% 30.2%

24.5%
30.1% 29.0% 34.2%

12.0%
13.1% 16.1% 15.6%11.6%
10.0% 13.5% 13.0%8.0%
5.5% 6.0% 4.7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Shadwell Tower Hamlets London England

8+ people

7 people

6 people

5 people

4 people

3 people

2 people

1 person

P
age 101



Page 6 

Household composition 
Figure 6: Household composition - percentage of households by type

(Source: Census 2011 QS113EW - Household composition – Households) 

Figure 7: Household composition: percentage of residents that live in each household type

(Source: Census 2011 QS112EW - Household composition – People) 

• At the time of the Census, 27.2 per cent of all residents in the
ward lived in family households with dependent children; this
proportion was higher than the borough average of 46.2 per
cent.

• However, families with dependent children occupied 35.1
percent of the households in the ward, higher than the
borough average of 26.6 per cent.

• Single adult households accounted for 32.7 per cent of all
households in the ward; however 14.9 per cent of the ward’s
residents lived in this type of household.

• Older people living alone (65+) accounted for 7.7 per cent of
households which was higher than the borough average of 6
per cent.

• Table 3 shows the proportion of households that were
overcrowded, had the required number of bedrooms, or were
under-occupied at the time of the Census.  22 per cent of
households (989 households) in the ward were overcrowded
– higher than the average for the borough (16 per cent).

Table 2: Average household size 

Average residents 
per household Shadwell Tower 

Hamlets 
London England 

Households with 
dependent children 4.62 4.30 3.89 3.78 

Households with 
non-dependent 
children 

1.83 1.81 1.84 1.78 

(Source: Census 2011 QS406EW - Household size) 

Table 3: Occupancy ratings 

Area Overcrowded 
(-1 or less) 

Required 
Bedrooms (0) 

Under Occupied 
(+1 or more) 

Shadwell 987 22% 2,318 52% 1,192 27% 
Tower Hamlets 16,605 16% 51,058 50% 33,594 33% 
London 370,531 11% 1,282,883 39% 1,612,759 49% 
England 1,024,473 5% 5,885,951 27% 15,152,944 69% 
(Source: Census 2011 QS406EW - Household size) 

32.3%

26.0%

24.9%

9.1%

7.7%
Other households without

dependant children

Other households with

dependant children

Single adult under 65

Lone parent family with

dependant children

Single adult 65 and over

51.0%

24.0%

19.2%

3.2%

2.6%

Other households without dependant

children

Other households with dependant

children

Single adult under 65

Lone parent family with dependant

children

Single adult 65 and overP
age 102



Page 7 

Health - Limiting illness or disability 

Table 4: Limiting illness and disability 

Area Day-to-day 
activities limited a 

lot 

Day-to-day 
activities limited a 

little 

Day-to-day 
activities 

not limited 

Shadwell 1,021 1,001 10,632 

Shadwell (%) 8.1% 7.9% 84.0% 

Tower Hamlets (%) 6.8% 6.7% 86.5% 

London (%) 6.7% 7.4% 85.8% 

England (%) 8.3% 9.3% 82.4% 

(Source: Census 2011 QS303EW - Long-term health problem or disability) 

• On Census day, around 1,021 residents (8.1 per cent) in
Shadwell had a long term health problem or disability limiting
the persons day to day activities a lot, while 7.9 per cent (1001
residents) had a long term health problem or disability limiting
the persons day to day activities a little.

• In Shadwell, the rate of people with a long term health problem
or disability limiting day to day activities a lot was above the
Tower Hamlets (6.8 per cent) and London rate (6.7 per cent) but
below the England rate.

• In comparison, the rate of people with a long term health
problem or disability limiting day to day activities a little of 7.9
per cent was also above the Tower Hamlets (6.7 per cent) and
London rates but again below the England average.

Unpaid care provision 

Table 5: Unpaid care provision (%) 

Area Provides 
no unpaid 

care 

Provides 1 
to 19 hours 
unpaid care 

a week 

Provides 20 
to 49 hours 
unpaid care 

a week 

Provides 50 
or more 

hours unpaid 
care a week 

Shadwell 11,543 609 198 304 
Shadwell (%) 91.2% 4.8% 1.6% 2.4% 
Tower Hamlets (%) 92.4% 4.3% 1.4% 1.9% 

London (%) 91.6% 5.3% 1.3% 1.8% 

England (%) 89.8% 6.5% 1.4% 2.4% 
(Source: Census 2011 QS301EW - Provision of unpaid care) 

• Around 8.8 per cent of residents in Shadwell provided unpaid
care. The Shadwell rate was above the Tower Hamlets (7.6 per
cent),  London (8.4 per cent) and England (10.2 per cent) rates.

• From 1,111 residents in Shadwell who provided unpaid care,
around 198 residents provided care for 20 to 49 hours a week,
while 304 residents provided care for 50 or more hours a week.

• The proportion of those providing unpaid care for 50 hours or
more of 2.4 per cent in Shadwell was above Tower Hamlets (1.9
per cent) and London (1.8 per cent) averages.

P
age 103



Page 8 

Labour market participation  
• Table 6 shows a summary of labour

market participation of residents in the week 
before the Census 2011. The table 
summarises economic activity and inactivity of 
the 16 to 74 population in Shadwell and 
comparator areas.  

• The Shadwell ward had a very low rate
of 48.2 per cent residents in employment, 
significantly below Tower Hamlets (57.6 per 
cent), London (62.4 percent) and England 
(62.1 per cent) averages.  

• The proportion of economically inactive residents, including those looking after home & family (10.2 per cent), the long term sick (5.9 per cent) and
inactive students (10.6 per cent) was above the borough, London and England averages.

• A total of 721 residents were unemployed in Shadwell. The rate of 8 per cent was above the Tower Hamlets (6.7 per cent), London (5.2 per cent)
and England (4.4 per cent) averages.

Table 6: Labour market participation - Economic active (EA) and Economic Inactive (EI) (totals and %) 

Area EA: In 
employment 

EA 
Unemployed 

EA: 
Full-
time 

student 

EI: 
Retired 

EI: 
Student 

(incl. 
full-
time) 

EI: 
Looking 

after 
home / 
family 

EI: 
Long-
term 

sick or 
disabled 

EI: 
Other 

Shadwell 4,370 721 537 523 960 924 537 492 
Shadwell (%) 48.2 8.0 5.9 5.8 10.6 10.2 5.9 5.4 
Tower Hamlets (%) 57.6 6.7 5.5 4.7 9.9 7.0 4.5 4.0 
London (%) 62.4 5.2 4.1 8.4 7.8 5.2 3.7 3.2 
England (%) 62.1 4.4 3.4 13.7 5.8 4.4 4.0 2.2 
(Source: Census 2011 KS601EW to KS603EW - Economic activity by sex, Population 16 to 74) 

Unemployment rate of 16 to 64 (economic active population only) Figure 8: Unemployment rate of 16 to 64 – economic active population only 

• Figure 8 on the right shows the unemployment rate based on the
economically active population only. This measure is the better
unemployment measure but it is in general higher compared to the
rate based on the proportion of all residents in the 16 to 74 age
group as shown above.

• Shadwell had the 5th highest unemployment rate in the borough
with 16 per cent, 4 percentage points above the Tower Hamlets
rate (12 per cent).

• On Census day, the highest unemployment rate was recorded in
Lansbury (18.8 per cent) and the lowest in St Katharine’s and
Wapping with only 4.9 per cent. (Source: Census 2011: QS601EW - Economic activity) 

1
8

.8

1
6

.8

1
6

.8

1
6

.6

1
6

.0

1
5

.7

1
5

.6

1
5

.1

1
3

.9

1
3

.8

1
2

.2

1
1

.0

1
0

.4

1
0

.2

1
0

.1

8
.4

8
.2

8
.2

6
.6

4
.9

1
2

.0

8
.9

7
.6

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

La
n

sb
u

ry

B
ro

m
le

y
 N

o
rt

h

S
t 

D
u

n
st

a
n

s

B
ro

m
le

y
 S

o
u

th

S
h

a
d

w
e

ll

P
o

p
la

r

M
il

e
 E

n
d

S
te

p
n

e
y

 G
re

e
n

B
e

th
n

a
l 

G
re

e
n

S
p

it
a

lf
ie

ld
s 

a
n

d
…

S
t 

P
e

te
rs

W
e

a
v

e
rs

B
o

w
 W

e
st

B
o

w
 E

a
st

W
h

it
e

ch
a

p
e

l

Is
la

n
d

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

B
la

ck
w

a
ll

 a
n

d
…

C
a

n
a

ry
 W

h
a

rf

Li
m

e
h

o
u

se

S
t 

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
s 

a
n

d
…

LB
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts

Lo
n

d
o

n

E
n

g
la

n
d

%

P
age 104



Page 9 

Socio economic groups 

Figure 9: Socio Economic Groups

(Source: Census 2011 QS607EW - NS-SeC) 

• At the time of the Census, there were more working aged residents working in routine and manual occupations compared to the
borough average (25.1 per cent compared to 20.4 per cent borough average).

• 19.2 per cent of residents were classified as long term unemployed / never employed (1,743 residents), a  higher than the borough
average of 13.5 per cent.

• There was a slightly higher percentage of students in the Shadwell ward compared to the borough average of 14.9 per cent.

25.0%

14.9%

25.1%

19.2%

15.8%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Higher & lower managerial &

professional

Intermediate occupations, small

employers & own account workers

Lower supervisory & technical, semi

routine & routine occupations

Long term unemployed & never

employed

 Students

Shadwell Tower Hamlets London EnglandP
age 105



Page 10 

Qualification levels 
Table 7: Highest qualification of residents aged 16 to 64 
Area No 

qualification 
Level 

1 
Level 

 2 
Apprentice-

ship 
Level 3 Level 4 

and 
above 

Other 

Shadwell 1,744 1,102 998 65 978 2,682 1,015 
Shadwell 
(%) 20.3 12.8 11.6 0.8 11.4 31.2 11.8 

Tower 
Hamlets (%) 

15.6 9.8 9.2 0.8 10.8 43.6 10.2 

London (%) 12.4 11.5 12.6 1.4 11.5 40.5 10.0 
England (%) 14.8 15.2 17.1 3.1 14.5 29.8 5.6 
(Source: Census 2011 LC5102EW - Highest level of qualification by age) 

Figure 10: Residents aged 16 to 64 with No qualification and Level 4 plus qualification (%) 

(Source: Census 2011 LC5102EW - Highest level of qualification by age)

• The population aged 16 to 64 in Shadwell showed a
different qualification structure to Tower Hamlets as a
whole with a far lower proportion of highly qualified
residents.

• The proportion of those with a level 4 qualification was
low in Shadwell  with only 32.2 per cent when compared
to Tower Hamlets (43.6 per cent) and London (40.5 per
cent).

• Around 1,744 residents or 20.3 per cent aged 16 to 64
did not hold a formal qualification. This rate was
substantially above the Tower Hamlets average of 15.6
per cent and the London (12.4 per cent) and England
rates (14.8 per cent).

• The proportion of Shadwell residents with no formal
qualification was the 5th highest out of all 20 wards in
Tower Hamlets.

• The lowest proportion of residents with no qualification
was recorded in St Katharine’s and Wapping ward (6.8
per cent) while the highest proportion with no
qualification was in the Lansbury ward with 25.6 per
cent.

• The proportion of Shadwell residents with a level 3
qualification was 11.4 per cent, a rate slightly above the
Tower Hamlets one. Level 1 and Level 2 qualification
rates in Shadwell were also higher compared to the
borough as a whole.

25
.1 32

.2

29
.9

31
.3

31
.7

31
.2

32
.9

33
.3

43
.1

45
.4

46
.9

37
.5

46
.7

44
.9 49

.9 54
.5

56
.9

61
.4

60
.1

65
.9

43
.6

40
.5

29
.8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

%

No qualifications

Level 4 qualifications and

above

P
age 106



 

Page 11 

Statistical Areas 

The map (right) shows which Census Output Areas have 
been included in the summary statistics for this ward, and 
which areas have been assigned to other wards. 

Census Output Area (OA) data has been aggregated on a 
best fit basis to match the new Tower Hamlets ward 
boundaries as closely as possible. This has been done in 
accordance with methodology employed by the Office for 
National Statistics (ONS) in producing census statistics for 
non-standard geographies. Details of this methodology 
can be found on the ONS website at: 
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-
method/geography/geographic-policy/best-fit-policy/index.html. 

P
age 107



Page 12 

Further information 

The data used in this document has been sourced from the Office for National Statistics Census 2011 and specific Census 2011 data tables 
are quoted in the document.  

Contact the Corporate Research Unit: cru@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

For more information, see the Borough Profile page on the council’s internet.  Census 2011 data tables can be obtained from the Office for 
National Statistics official labour market statistics webpage.  

P
age 108



Appendix 11 

Page 109



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 
(as amended) 

Notice of Application for the Renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
*delete as appropriate

TAKE NOTICE THAT ON: 27 May 2016 

I: Mr David Tunmer (insert name of applicant) 

Of: The White Swan, 556 Commercial Road, London E14 7JD (insert address of applicant) 

Made application to London Borough of Tower Hamlets for the renewal of a licence to use 
the premises named below as a Sexual Entertainment Venue. 

Address of 
Premises: 

The White Swan/Majingo’s 
556 Commercial Road  
London 
E14 7JD 

Description 
and detail of 
sexual 
entertainment 
to be provided 
including 
times of 
operation:

The premises will continue to offer lap dancing and other 
forms of live performance or live display of nudity. 

The hours of operation applied for will remain as currently 
operated at the premises: 

Sunday to Thursday    09:00 – 03:00 
Friday to Saturday       09:00 – 05:00 

Any objections to this application shall be made not later than   24 June 2016   which is 28 
days after the above date of the application. Objections must be made in writing, stating in 
general terms the grounds for objection to: 

The Licensing Section, London Borough of Tower Hamlets, 6th Floor, Mulberry Place, 

London E14 2BG or licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk Website: www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Tel: 020 7364 5008 

Please note: Objections must be made in writing and shall contain the name and address of 

the objector. Such objections will be sent to the applicant and will become public documents, 

however, personal details such as name, address and telephone number will be removed. 

Page 110



Appendix 12 

Page 111



Thursday June 2, 2016 27 

FOR ALL CLASSIFIED ADVERTISING ENQUIRIES CALL 0845 67 1 4460 

Legal and Public Notices 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
A PREMISES LICENCE 

Noticy is ghf'n th.at Emilia 's Crafted Pasla h:tS a11pliC'd 
lo Londoo Borou&!h or Tower I lamJcls IJittnsiog 
Aulhorit) ' for a Prcmisei: Lk-ence und('r th«- l ... tct-nsi~ 
At.12003. 
Premises: Uni1 CJ. h'OI)' Hou'iC, SI Ka1harinc Dock~ 
Tower !Ii i\, London, EIW IAT 
Thf' l.kf-ns.abk' acth'IOes and Limings at't': 
The sale or alcohol between 1he foUowing 1imc&: 
Mood._y 10 Saturday: 12:00 - 23;00: Sullda): 12.-00 -
21:30 
Anyone v.ho \l 1Shcti 10 make reprcM'nlauo!H regarding 
this :i.pplicauoo mus.t give notice m v.1iting to: Tbt> 
Uct>nsing &'<'lio n., l.A.m don lkuv ugh of Tower lhun lel s. 
~lulberry Platt. S Clo ' '" CrnSctnl. 1..oodoo. 1-: 14 21JG 
Wcb~i lc: w " ·w.tmft'rhllmlf'ts.t;o1'.u k Tel: 020 7.'64 SOOI'.' 
Rtprt"SenlOilkms must bf rttth ·fd no later Uum 
22106/2016 
The Applkarion Recor() and Rcgi .. 1cr tuay be 'iC'l'cd 
bct"ccn J0:..1u r.tnd 4pm Mood:ay 10 FnJa.y durini nonn::il 
of!iC(' hours at the' abo\l' 3ddres1. 

~(~~~1kn'£~:";-11:::;JJ;;~'/; 1~~8::l'~8f~f::~;;;,,,~~~ 
in connrction 11'1111 tm applirotion oml ll1t1 m,u imwn fuw 
for 11J,u'11 O /JUilJlt is liabll' on ~1m111wn' comiCTian for 
11~ tJffence /J iq1 lo /e,·t'15lHI1/1(: ~l(J.lttlarJ «'ale (lSfiX}J 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR rm; 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 
Premises: Dickens Inn. St Kathmnes Dock. St 
Katherinr.s Way, London El W ILB. Notice IS given 
that Sclecl Service Partner Ltd has applied to 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets to vary a 
Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 
The proposed vanallon is:- To include an additional 
e:xtemal arta as shown on the plan deposited \\ ith 
the application. The cxi.snmg tonditions will 
romam. Anyon.c who wishes to make 
representations regard ing this application must write 
to the Licensing Officer. London Borough ofTowcr 
Hamlets Licensmg Section. 6th Floor, Mulb<nJ 
l'laec, 5 Clove Crescent. London. E14 2BG. 
Rcpre:\entalJon~ must be received by 22 June 2016. 
The regis1er of Lk cnsing Applications can 
be inspecred by appointment or ar 
www.lowc:rhamlelsgov.uk. 
It is an offence on summary com·ictton 10 lrnowingly 
or rcddcssly make a false stalcment in connection 
wi1h 1his applicat1on. lhe maximum fint: for which 
is unlimited. 

Goods Vehicle 
Operator 's Licence 

A. M. G. Tipper & Grab Hire l.Jd of 54 New 
Road. llford IG3 SAT is applying for a licence 
10 use Inside: Gas Works. off LeYcn Road, 
Poplar. London E 14 OLL as an operating cc111 rc 
for IO goods \'Chicles and 0 trailers. 
OwneN or 04.·cupier~ of land (including 
buildings) near 1he opcraring cemre(s) who 
beJ icve thal their use or e1tjoy111ent of that 
land would be affo:ted. should make wri11cn 
repre-:.cn tations to the l'rnffic Comm i.:.sioncr at 
Hillcrest House. 386 Harchills Lane. Leeds. 
LS9 6NF. stating their reasons. within 21 days 
of thi.'i notice. Reprcscntors must al the same 
time send a copy of their rcpresentalions to the 
applicant at the address gh-en at the top of th is 
notice. A Guide 10 Making Repre)Cnta1ions i~ 

available from the Traffi i.; Commi~sioner'..:; office. 

RERBERT MARIUS MCKAY Deceased 
Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 any persons having 
a clillm (1f an mteresi in lhe Estate of the aforemen
tioned deceased, late of 63 Medway Road Bow, 
London. E3 SBX who died on OlW7/2002, are 
required to send particulars thereof in v.'liting to thc
undcrmcn1Ktncd on or before 01\)R/2016, after v.·'hich 
date the Estate will be distributed ha•ing "'gard only 
to daims and interests of which they have~ noi:ice. 
Cavendish 1..egal GIVllp, 
188-190 Hoc Street, Wahhamstow. London. El? 
4QH Ref; 154620001/KRI. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 

1982 (as amended) 
Notice of Application for the Renewal of a 

Sexual Entertainment Venue 
TAKE NOTICE THAT ON: Friday 27th May 
2016 We: Whites Venues Ltd of: Baker Clarke 
Swiss House, Beckingham Street, Tolle.•hunt 
~ajor. Maldon. CM9 8LZ made applicat ton to 
London Borough of Tower Mamlets for the 
renewal of a licence to u.sc the premises named 
below as a Sexual Emenainment Venue. Addre." 
of Prcnuses: Whites Gentlemen's Club, 32-38 
Leman Streel, London. El 8EW. Description 
and detail of sexual entenainmen1 10 be provided 
mcluding rimes of operahon: The premi~s will 
continue to offer lap danctng and other forms of 
li\'e pcrform;mcc or ftve display of nudi ty. 
The hours of operation apphed for will 
remain as currently operated at the 
premises: Monday to Sa1urday 19:30 - 04:00. 
Any objections to this application shall be made 
not laier than 2~th June 2016, which is 28 days 
after the above date of the application. 
Objections must be made in writing, srating in 
general terms the grounds for objection to: The 
Licensing Scclion. London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets, 61h Floor. Mulbeny Pince, London 
E14 2BG or hcensing(if1owerhamlets.gov.uk 
Wcbsit.: www.towerharnle1s.gov.uk Tel: 020 
7364 5008. 
Please note: Objections must be made in wnting 
and shall contain the name and address of the 
objector. Such objections will be sent to the 
applicant and wi ll become public documcnls. 
however, personal details such as name. address 
and telephone number will be rcmo1·ed. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (Ml$CELLANEOUS 
PROVISIOi'iS) ACT 1982 (as :unended) 

Notice of Application for the Renew.al of a 
Sexual Entertainment Venue 

TAKE NOTICE THAT ON 27 May 2() 16 I Mr 
David Tumner of: The White S•·an, 556 
Commercial Road. London E14 7JD made 
application to London Borough of Tower Hamkts 
for the renewal of a lice.nee to use the- premise.!: 
named below as a Sexual Entertain ment Venue. 
Address of Premises: The Whnc Swan/MaJmgo's. 
556 Coniniercial Road. London. E14 ?JD. 
Description and detail of sexual entertainmenl lo be 
providc.d indudrng 11me.s of operation: Thc
premises wil l continue tu offer lap danc:ing and 
other forms of lire pcrformantC' or lire display of 
nudny. n,e hours of opcrarion applied for will 
remain a.s currently operared at the premises· 
Sund•y tO Thursday 09:00 - 03 00. Friday 10 
Saturday 09:00 - 05:00. Any objections to this 
application shall be made not later than 24 June 
2016 whioh IS 28 days after the above date of the 
application Objections must be made in writing. 
stating 111 general terms 1he grounds for objecuon rw 
The Liccnsin¥ See1ion. London Borough of Tower 
Mamlcts, 6th Floor. Mulberry Place, London E14 
2BG or llC"e:ns.ing@to\\ erhamlets gov.uk Website: 
wwwtowerllamkts.gov.uk Tel: 020 7364 5008. 
PlcaS(' note: Objections must be made m writing 
and shall contain the name and address of the 
objector. Such objection~ will be: sent to the 
Jpplica111 and will become public documenrs. 
however. personal details such as name. address and 
tekphonr number will be re.moved 

Reach YOUR local 
audience by advertising 
in YOUR local paper. 

Call the team now on 
0845 6 714460 

www.LONDON24.com 
Reader 
Offers 

Convenient local coach 
pick-up points! 

Newmarket 
~ I 

Rhine, Strasbourg 
& Heidelberg Cruise 
River Cruise on board Sound of Music 
9 days from £1169.00, 10 September 2017 
Join Sound of 1>1usic on this delightfu~ classic cruise. 
HighUghts & inclusions 
• Embark in Basel 
• Overnight close to Strasbourg 
• Calls at Speyer, Mainz, Boppard, 

Riidesheim and Koblenz 
• An included excursion to Heidelberg 
• Scenic cruise along the Middle Rhine 
• Discover Cologne's cobbled Altstadt 
• On-board evening entertainment 
• On-board English commentary 
• Escorted by a friendly, experienced 

cruise manager 
• One night's bed and breakfast 

accommodation in an en route hotel 
• Seven nights' full board 

accommodation on 
board Sound of 1>1usic 

• Coach travel from the local area and 
Channel crossings 

'tdade1i.nnltfdO'~bw. hol.MWlf'lt. Sctidrv)ks, 
bt"~f-.t.blctl.~. af\er!'«W"ttea& t~ Offei- marybfi 
wmd"ii'M'laJl)'tmt. 

Romantic Rhine Cruise 
to Switzerland 
A scenic journey on board Olympia 
9 days from £1069.00, 19 May 2017 
Experience the best of the mighty Rhine river on our 'Slue Riband' voyage. 
HighUghts & inclusion5 
• Embark in historic Andernach 
• Two cruises through the romantic 

Rhine Gorge, passing the 
legendary Lorelei 

• Guided tour of Speyer 
• Calls at Strasbourg, Mannheim, Mainz 

and overnight in Basel 
• On-board entertainment and English 

commentary 

• Escorted by a friendly. experienced 
cruise manager 

• Eight nights' full board 
accommodation on board Olympia 

• Coach travel from the local area and 
Channel crossings 

~~O'rJ#Cbtti housewYW,scitii'll*s. 
btiu!<:f•tbx.t\dinntf.&ft•~tffi<.ake$.Offtfm.lljbe 
wittlcttl'#l'l"trne 

Book today to reserve your place! 

Page 112



Appendix 13 

Page 113



1

Appendix One 

Tower Hamlets Council 

Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 

Introduction 

This policy sets out Tower Hamlets Council’s proposed approach to regulating sex 

establishments and the procedure that it will adopt in relation to applications for sex 

establishment licences. 

The policy of the Council is to refuse applications for sexual entertainment venues. 

This policy is intended to be strictly applied and will only be overridden in genuinely 

exceptional circumstances. Such circumstances will not be taken to include the 

quality of the management, its compliance with licence conditions, the size of the 

premises or its operating hours. 

The policy is intended as a guide to applicants, licence holders, people who want to 

object to applications and members of the Licensing Committee who are responsible 

for determining contested applications. It also aims to guide and reassure the public 

and other public authorities, ensuring transparency and consistency in decision 

making. 

When the decision making powers of the Council are engaged each application will 

be dealt with on its own merits but this policy gives prospective applicants an early 

indication of whether their application is likely to be granted or not. It also provides 

prospective applicants details of what is expected of them should an application be 

made. 

The legal controls for sex establishment premises are contained in the Local 

Governmental (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing 

and Crime Act 2009.  

There are 3 types of sex establishments which fall into the licensing regime:- 

Page 114



2

Sex shops 

Sex cinemas 

Sexual entertainment venues 

The role of the Council in its position as Licensing Authority is to administer the 

licensing regime in accordance with the law and not in accordance with moral 

standing. The Council recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex 

establishment and such businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure 

industries. 

Policy Rationale 

The policy has been developed that sets out how the legislation will be administered 
and applied. The policy identifies how the Council would exercise the licensing 
regime in relation to sexual entertainment venues. 

The policy has been developed to reflect and complement existing Council plans and 
strategic approach, namely:- 

• Tower Hamlets Community Plan.
• Tower Hamlets Crime & Drug Reduction Partnership Plan.
• Tower Hamlets Enforcement Policy.
• Tower Hamlets Core Strategy.
• Tower Hamlets Town Centre Spatial Strategy.
• Tower Hamlets Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003).
• Tower Hamlets Statement of Licensing Policy (Gambling Act 2005).

The policy has also been prepared with regard to: 

• Consultation responses
• Human Rights Act 1998
• Equalities Act 2010

The policy seeks to contribute to the “One Tower Hamlets” principle by fostering  
community cohesion, reducing inequalities and empowering communities. 
The public consultation that was undertaken concerning the adoption of a nil policy 

did not have overwhelming support. Therefore careful consideration has been given 

to the policy response, given the balance that the consultation returns did not give 

overwhelming support. 

Page 115



3

Policy Considerations 

Existing Licensed Premises 

The Council has had the ability to licence sex shops and sex cinemas under the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 for many years. 

There are no licensed sex shops in Tower Hamlets. 

The businesses that hold premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003 with 

permissions that will be affected by the adoption of the sexual entertainment venue 

licensing regime are as follows:- 

NAME ADDRESS 
THE BEEHIVE 104-106 Empson Street, London, E3 3LT 
EONE CLUB 168 Mile End Road, London, E1 4LJ 
NAGS HEAD PUBLIC 
HOUSE 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1DU 
THE PLEASURE LOUNGE 234 Cambridge Heath Road, London, E2 9NN 
WHITE SWAN 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 7JD 
ASTON'S CHAMPAGNE 
AND WINE BAR 
BASEMENT & 1ST FLOOR 187 Marsh Wall, London, E14 9SH 
CLUB PAISA 28 Hancock Road,London, E3 3DA 
OOPS 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA 
WHITE'S GENTLEMANS 
CLUB   32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW 
SECRETS 43-45 East Smithfield,London,E1W 1AP 
IMAGES 483 Hackney Road, London, E2 9ED 

Tower Hamlets Council has adopted schedule 3 Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 1st June 2014 so that it can: 

• set a limit on the number of sexual entertainment venues

• determine premises that are appropriate for the borough and

• licence sexual entertainment venues

Sexual entertainment venues are those that regularly provide lap dancing and other 

forms of live performance or live display of nudity. 

Page 116



4

Establishments that hold events involving full or partial nudity less than once a month 

may be exempt from the requirements to obtain a sex establishment licence and 

applicants are advised to contact the Licensing Team for advice. 

Limits on the number of licensed premises 

The Council has determined that there are a sufficient number of sex shops, sex 

cinemas and sexual entertainment venues currently operating in the borough and it 

does not want to see an increase in the numbers of premises that are currently 

providing these activities. 

The Council intends to adopt a policy to limit the number of sexual entertainment 

venues in the borough to nil however it recognises that there are a number of 

businesses that have been providing sexual entertainment in Tower Hamlets for 

several years. The Council will not apply this limitation when considering applications 

for premises that were already trading with express permission for the type of 

entertainment which is now defined as sexual entertainment on the date that the 

licensing provisions were adopted by the authority if they can demonstrate in their 

application: 

• High standards of management

• A management structure and capacity to operate the venue

• The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for sex establishments

The Council will consider each application on its merit although new applicants will 

have to demonstrate why the Council should depart from its policy. Furthermore if 

any of the existing premises cease trading there is no presumption that the Council 

will consider any new applications more favourably. 

Location of premises 

Page 117



5

The Council’s policy is that there is no locality within Tower Hamlets in which it would 

be appropriate to license a sex establishment. Accordingly, the appropriate number 

of sex establishments for each and every locality within Tower Hamlets is zero. 

As previously stated in the policy the Council will treat each application on its own 

merits however applicants should be aware that the Council will take into 

consideration the location of the proposed premises and its proximity to: 

• residential accommodation,

• schools,

• premises used by children and vulnerable persons

• youth, community & leisure centres,

• religious centres and public places of worship

• access routes to and from premises listed above

• existing licensed premises in the vicinity

Impact 

In considering applications for the grant of new or variation applications the Council 

will assess the likelihood of a grant causing impacts, particularly on the local 

community. 

The Council will take the following matters into account: 

• the type of activity

• the duration of the proposed licence

• the proposed hours of operation

• the layout and condition of the premises

• the use of other premises in the vicinity

• the character and locality of the area

• the applicant’s previous knowledge and experience

• the applicant’s ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any evidence of the operation of existing /previous licences held

by the applicant

Page 118



6

• any reports about the applicant and management of the

premises received from residents, Council officers or the police

• the ability of the proposed management structure to deliver

compliance with licensing requirements, policies on staff training

and the welfare of performers

• crime and disorder issues

• cumulative impact of licensed premises, including hours of

operation

• the nature and concerns of local residents

• any evidence of complaints about noise or disturbance caused

by premises

• planning permission and planning policy considerations

In considering applications for renewal the Council will take into account 

• the applicant’s ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any reports about the licensee and management of the premises

received from residents, Council officers or the police

• whether appropriate measures have been agreed and put into

place to mitigate any adverse impacts

• any evidence of complaints about noise or disturbance caused

by premises

In considering applications for transfer the Council will take into account: 

• the applicants previous knowledge and experience

• the applicants ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any evidence of the operation of existing /previous licences held

by the applicant

• any reports about the applicant and management of the

premises received from residents, Council officers or the police

Page 119



7

• the ability of the proposed management structure to deliver

compliance with licensing requirements, policies on staff training

and the welfare of performers

Applicants 

Where appropriate the Council expects applicants to: 

• demonstrate that they are qualified by experience

• have an understanding of general conditions

• propose a management structure which will deliver compliance

• with operating conditions for example through

• Management competence

• Presence

• Credible management structure

• enforcement of rules internally – training & monitoring

• a viable business plan covering door staff, CCTV

• policies for welfare of performers

• demonstrate that they can be relied upon to act in best interests of performers

through remuneration, facilities, protection, physical and psychological welfare

• have a transparent charging scheme with freedom from solicitation

• a track record of management compliant premises or employ individuals with

such a track record

New applicants may be invited for interview by the Licensing Officer and /or Police 

Officer prior to the application being referred to the Licensing Committee for 

determination. 

Applications from anyone who intends to manage the premises on behalf of third 

party will be refused. 

Premises appearance and layout 

The Council expects premises to:- 

• have an external appearance which is in keeping with the locality

• prevent the display outside the premises of photographs or other images

which may be construed as offensive to public decency

Page 120



8

• adequate lighting to allow monitoring of all public areas

• surveillance by CCTV

• surveillance by CCTV of all private booths

Conditions 

The council will prescribe, and from time to time revise, standard conditions which 
will apply generally to licences that the council will grant or renew. 

Through standard conditions the council seeks to ensure that sexual entertainment 
venues are well managed and supervised, restrict the sexual entertainment 
activities and the manner in which they are permitted to be provided, protect 
performers, and control the impact of the venue and its customers in relation to its 
locality. 

Specifically, standard conditions could include measures which are found in the 

appendix of this policy. 

The Application Process 

Making a new, renewal, transfer or variation application 

The Act requires the Council to refuse all application if the applicant: 

• Is under the age of 18 or

• Has had their licence revoked in the last 12 months or

• Is not resident in the UK, or has not been a UK resident for the last 6months

or

• Has been refused an application in the last 12 months or

• Is a corporate body which in not incorporated in the UK

Applications forms and details of current fee levels are available: 

• on the Council’s website (www.towerhamlets .gov.uk)

• from the Licensing Team on 020 7364 5008

• by email to licensing@towerhamlets .gov.uk

The Council prefers to receive electronic applications and offers a choice off 

payment options the details of which are contained in the application pack. 

Page 121



9

The Council expects the premises to have planning consent for the intended use and 

hours of operation, or otherwise have lawful planning status before making an 

application for a new licence. 

In order for the application to be valid the applicant must: 

• Submit the completed application form

• Pay the application fee

• Submit a floor plan, drawn to scale showing the layout of the premises( new

applications only)

• Submit a location plan (1;1250) showing the location of the premises(NB.

plans will not be required for transfers nor renewal applications)

• 2 passport size photos of the applicant where the applicant is an individual

rather than a limited company

• 2 passport size photos of the manager if applicant is a limited company(NB:

photos will only be required if there has been a change of applicant or

manager since the last application)

• Display an A4 notice at the proposed premises for 21 days following the date

that the completed application is submitted setting out the application details.

The notice must be in a prominent position so that it can be easily read by

passers-by. A notice template will be provided with the application form.

• publish a notice on at least one occasion in a local newspaper, during the
period of ten working days starting on the day the application was given
Council. The advert can be any size or colour but must be readable.

Applicants who wish to advertise the application in another local newspaper are 

advised to contact the Licensing Team beforehand, to confirm that it is acceptable. 

On receipt of a valid application the Council will consult: 

• The Police

• The Fire Brigade

• Building Control

• Health and Safety

• Ward Councillors

For new and variation applications the Council will also consult: 

Page 122



10

• Development Control Team

• Local residents living within 50m of the premises

Authorised Officers from the Council, Fire Brigade and Police may choose to inspect 

the premises and require works to be carried out to bring the premises up to the 

required standard before the premises can be used for licensable activities. 

The Council will not determine an application for a licence unless the applicant 

allows an authorised officer reasonable opportunity to enter the premises to make 

such examination and enquiries as may be necessary to determine the suitability of 

the applicant and the sex establishment. 

Representations 

Anyone wishing to object to the application must submit a representation, in writing, 

within 28 days of the date that the valid application was received by the Council.  

Representations can either be submitted via 

• Our website:www.towerhamlets .gov.uk

• Email to:licensing@towerhamlets .gov.uk

• Post to: Consumer and Business Regulations, Licensing Team, 6th Floor,

Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG.

A person making a representation must clearly state their name, address, and the 

grounds for objecting to the application and indicate whether they consent to have 

their name and address revealed to the applicant. Copies of representations will be 

made available to the applicant 14 days before the committee hearing. 

The Council will not consider objections that are frivolous or vexatious or which 

relate to moral grounds (as these are outside the scope of the Act). 

The Council prefers to receive electronic representations. 

Late representations may be admissible at the discretion of the Council if there’s 

sufficient reason to indicate that applicants will not be significantly prejudiced by the 

Page 123



11

decision to allow a late objection to be considered. In making such a decision the 

Council will take into account: 

• The length of the delay

• The amount of time that the applicant has to consider the

representation before the hearing date

• If other representations have been received before the deadline

Determining an application 

Applications with no representations will be approved under delegated authority to 

officers. 

Applications with representations recommending that conditions be attached to the 

licence and which are acceptable to both the applicant and person making the 

representation can be approved under delegated authority to officers. 

All other contested applications will be referred to the Licensing Committee for 

determination. The applicant, anyone making a representation and the ward 

Councillors will be notified the date, time and venue of the hearing and invited to 

attend to address the committee in person. 

Applications can take up to 14 weeks to be determined. If an application is likely to 

take longer than 14 weeks to determine the Council will notify the applicant in writing 

before this deadline. Applications for sex establishment licenses are exempt from the 

tacit consent provisions of the EU Services Directive on the grounds of public 

interest and the legitimate interests of third parties. 

The applicant will be notified in writing about the outcome of their application 

within 5 working days of the decision being made. 

Page 124



12

Sex Establishment licences are usually issued for 12 months, but can be issued for a 

shorter period if deemed appropriate. 

In order to continue operating as a sex establishment the licence holder must make 

a renewal application prior to the expiry of the existing licence. 

Appeals 

Any applicant who is aggrieved by a decision to refuse an application or by the 

imposition of any conditions can appeal to the Magistrates Court within21days of 

receiving the decision in writing. 

Grounds for refusing an application 

1. The applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having been convicted of

any offence or for any other reason 

2. That if the license were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to

which it relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other 

than the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a 

license if he made the application himself 

3. That the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time the

application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority consider is 

appropriate for that locality 

4. That the grant or renewal of the license would be inappropriate, having regard:-

a. to the character of the relevant locality

b. to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

c. to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall

in respect of which the application is made. 

Page 125



13

Transitional Arrangements 

Broadly speaking, those existing sexual entertainment venues (lap dancing clubs 

etc) with a premises licence  under the Licensing Act 2003,under which it is lawful 

to provide such entertainment, will continue to be able to operate for one year 

after the Council adopts the 2009 Act provisions or, if later, the determination of 

any application submitted during that year. 

The ‘transitional period’ will last for 12-months beginning with the date that the 

Council resolves that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 Act will come into 

force in their area (‘the 1st appointed day’). Six months following the 1st 

appointed day will be known as the ‘2nd appointed day’ and the day on which the 

transitional period ends will be known as the ‘3rd appointed day 

Existing Operators  

To allow time to comply with the new regime, existing operators, who, 

immediately before the 1st appointed day, have a 2003 Act licence and lawfully 

use premises as a sexual entertainment venue under that licence or are 

undertaking preparatory work to use the venue in that way will be allowed to 

continue to provide relevant entertainment until the 3rd appointed day or the 

determination of any application they have submitted before that time (including 

any appeal against the refusal to grant a licence), whichever is later 

For the purposes of the Transition a “2003 Act Licence” means a premises 

licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 under which it is 

lawful to provide relevant entertainment. 

“Preparatory work” refers to work carried out by an operator, such as a 

refurbishment or refit, in order that they can use the premises as a sexual 

entertainment venue in the future. The operator will have been granted a 2003 

Act licence before the 1
st
appointed day but will not have used the premises as a 

sexual entertainment venue by that date. It is likely that such operators will be 

known to the Council. However, where a dispute arises between the Council and 

Page 126



14

a licence-holder over whether the licence-holder qualifies as an existing operator 

by virtue of this provision the Council will need to seek evidence from the 

licence-holder to demonstrate that they clearly intended to operate a sexual 

entertainment venue in the future and work had been done to achieve this end.  

For the purposes of the Transition a “2003 Act Licence” means a premises 

licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 under which it is 

lawful to provide relevant entertainment. 

Appointed Days 

1st Appointed Day 

The day on which the Sexual Entertainment Venue regime comes into force in 

the Borough and the beginning of the transitional period (1st June 2014) 

2nd Appointed Day 

The day 6 months after the 1st appointed day (1st December 2014) 

3rd Appointed Day  

The day 6 months after the 2nd appointed day and the end of the transitional 

period (1st June 2015) 

New Applications 

New applicants are people who wish to use premises as a sexual entertainment 

venue after the 1st appointed day but do not already have a premises licence or 

club premises certificate to operate as such under the 2003 Act or do have such 

a licence but have not taken any steps towards operating as such. After the 1st 

appointed day new applicants will not be able to operate as a sexual 

entertainment venue until they have been granted a sexual entertainment venue 

licence 

Determining Applications Received On or Before the 2nd Appointed Day 

Page 127



15

Applicants will be able to submit their application for a sexual entertainment 

venue from the 1st appointed day onwards.  

As the Council is able to refuse applications having regard to the number of sex 

establishment they consider appropriate for a particular locality, all applications 

made on or after the 1
st
appointed day but on or before the 2nd appointed day 

shall be considered together. This will ensure that applicants are given sufficient 

time to submit their application and all applications received on or before the 2nd 

appointed day are considered on their individual merit and not on a first come first 

serve basis. 

No applications shall be determined before the 2nd appointed day. After the 2nd 

appointed day the appropriate authority shall decide what if any licences should 

be granted. If a new applicant is granted a licence it will take effect immediately. 

If an existing operator is granted a licence, it will not take effect until the 3rd 

appointed day, up to which point they will be allowed to continue to operate 

under their existing premises licence or club premises certificate.  

Determining Applications Received After the 2nd Appointed Day 

Applications made after the 2nd appointed day shall be considered when they 

are made but only once all applications made on or before that date have been 

determined. However, reference to determination here does not include 

references to the determination of any appeal against the refusal of a licence.  

As with applications received on or before the 2nd appointed day, licences 

granted to new applicants shall take effect immediately and licences granted to 

existing operators shall take effect from the 3rd appointed day or, if later, the 

date the application is determined.  

Outstanding Applications 

The Council will attempt where possible to determine outstanding applications 

made under the 2003 Act, which include an application for the provision of 

Page 128



16

relevant entertainment, before the date that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 

Act comes into force in their area.  

Where it has not been possible to determine application before the 1st appointed 

day, applicants will need to submit an application for a sex establishment licence 

as set out in Schedule 3 if they wish to provide relevant entertainment. From the 

1st appointed day onwards outstanding applicants shall be dealt with as though 

they are new applicants 

Additional information and advice 

Please contact: 

Consumer and Business Regulations 

Licensing Team 

6th Floor, 

Mulberry Place,  

5 Clove Crescent,  

E14 2BG. 

licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

020 7364 5008 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee :

Licensing Committee

Date 

7 September 2016

Classification

Unrestricted

Report No. Agenda Item No.

Report of :
David Tolley
Head of Consumer and Business 
Relations

Originating Officer: 
Andrew Heron 
Licensing Officer

Title:
Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) 
Application for a renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for Club Enviee 
(Flamingos), 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA

Ward affected: 
Whitechapel

1.0 Summary

Applicants: City Traders London Limited 
Name and Club Enviee (now Flamingos, formally 

Charlie’s Angels)
Address of Premises: 30 Alie Street

London
E1 8DA

Licence sought: Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) 
Application for a renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence

Objectors: Local Residents
  

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and then 
adjudicate accordingly.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97)
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT

Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 
register

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder

File Only Andrew Heron
020 7364 2665

Page 131

Agenda Item 3.2



3.0 Background

3.1 This is an application made by City Traders London Limited for a 
renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence under Schedule 3 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as 
amended by reg. 47 (4), Provisions of Services Regulations 2009 ‘the 
service regulations’) and the Policing and Crime Act 2009 for Club 
Enviee (now Flamingos, formally Charlie’s Angels) – 30 Alie Street, 
London, E1 8DA.

3.2 A licence from the Council is required for the use of a premise as a sex 
Establishment. A sexual entertainment venue is any premises at which 
relevant entertainment is provided before a live audience for the financial 
gain of the organiser or the entertainer. 

Relevant entertainment means:
 any live performance; or 
 any live display of nudity;

which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must 
reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for 
the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the 
audience (whether by verbal or other means).

3.3 The premises is currently granted a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Licence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 (as amended).  A copy of the existing licence is enclosed as 
Appendix 1.  The application was initially refused by the Tower Hamlets 
Licensing Committee.  The Applicants appealed this decision.  The 
appeal was granted by District Judge (Magistrates Court) Alison Rose on 
1st February 2016.  The appeal decision is exhibited for Members’ 
information as Appendix 14.

3.4 The licence consists of the basic licence, plus additional conditions 
relevant to that premises only.  In addition, the Tower Hamlets Standard 
SEV Conditions also apply and for part of the licence.

This licence was in force up to: 31st May 2016 or during the time that the 
licensee(s) is/are the occupier of the premises, whichever is the shorter 
period, or unless sooner surrendered or revoked.

The hours permitted are:
 Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 04:00hrs (the following day)

The named management responsible for this premises as quoted on the 
SEV licence are:

 Demir Laho – Designated Premises Supervisor and General 
Manager

 Antonio Pomarico – Floor Manager

Page 132



This licence is granted subject to conditions as follows:

1. The Standard Conditions of the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets made under paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as revised on 
23rd June 2015 and sent to the Licence Holder as part of the 
Decision Notice dated 17th July 2015.  It is the duty of the licence 
holder to be aware of and abide by those conditions;

3.5 Members may wish to note that at the point this report was composed, 
neither Demir Laho nor Antonio Pomarico continue to be employed at 
the venue.  See Section 15 of this report for more information.

3.6 The current renewal application is to permit the premises to operate as a 
sexual entertainment venue with opening hours as follows:  

 Monday to Sunday from 18:30hrs to 04:00hrs (the following day)

3.7 The premises also holds a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 that. A 
copy of the existing licence is enclosed for Members’ information as 
Appendix 2.  The licence was granted on 10th March 2006, varied on 8th 
September 2009 and subject to a minor variation in relation to the plans 
on 8th January 2014.

The licence granted the following licensable activities:

The sale by retail of alcohol:
 Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 03:30hrs (the following day)

Regulated Entertainment consisting of:
Recorded Music:
 Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 03:30hrs (the following day)

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for dancing:
 Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 03:30hrs (the following day)

 On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the 
end of normal permitted hours to the commencement of permitted 
hours on the following day.

The opening hours of the premises:
 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and 

Sunday from 11:00 hours to 04:00 hours the following day.

 On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the 
end of normal permitted hours to the commencement of permitted 
hours on the following day.

3.8 A copy of the renewal application is enclosed as Appendix 3. 

Page 133



3.9 Maps of the premises location are available in Appendix 4.

3.10 Members should note that the two regimes run concurrently therefore 
the premises licence granted under the Licensing Act 2003 could 
effectively run without the SEV in operation, if alcohol and regulated 
entertainment was solely taking place. 

4.0 Layout of the Premises

4.1 A layout plan of the premises is available in Appendix 5.  The premises 
was visited on 28th June 2016, attended by Kathy Driver, Principal 
Licensing Officer and the premises’ Manager of Operations.  The layout 
of the premises was confirmed to be the same as contained in the 
application.  In addition, a checklist of questions was completed.  A copy 
of the checklist completed during that visit is available in Appendix 6.

The checklist covered the following points:
 The Code of Conduct for performers
 The House Rules
 The Performer Safety Policy
 Retention of performers’ personal details
 Details of Door Staff attending each evening
 The venue interior and exterior (for example, whether the interior 

of the premises is visible from the outside)
 Public access areas and approved access to dressing rooms
 CCTV Coverage
 Functionality of the CCTV
 Advertising, both externally to the premises and online
 Information on tariffs, including both dances and beverages

4.2 In conclusion from that visit, the Licensing Officer was fully satisfied that 
all conditions of the licence were met.  Management were fully 
cooperative, records were kept in good working order.  However, the 
premises was closed to the public at the time of inspection and had been 
shut for some weeks; at the time of inspection there was no indication of 
when the venue would reopen.

4.3 A photograph of the exterior of the premises is available in Appendix 7.

5.0 Adverts and Flyers

5.1 No adverts or flyers used to promote the premises have been included in 
the application; however, Management informed the Licensing Officer at 
the inspection that clarification was required from the Licensing Authority 
on how they could advertise as they were concerned about breaching 
the Standard Conditions.

5.2 The premises has a website: http://clubenviee.com/.  It is noted that 
there is an ‘Over 18’ entry tab.

Page 134

http://clubenviee.com/


5.3 There is no external advertising at the premises.

6.0 Standard Conditions

6.1 The Council has adopted Standard Conditions that were revised on 23rd 
June 2015, which act as default conditions that are attached to all 
Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences.  These are available as part of 
the licence in Appendix 1. 

7.0 Codes of Conduct and Policies 

7.1 The Applicant has provided Codes of Conduct and policies as required 
by the Standard Conditions, see Appendix 8, namely:

 Code of Conduct for Performers 
 Code of Conduct of Customers
 Dancers’ Welfare Policy 

7.2 During the compliance check visits, the Code of Conduct for Customers 
was available throughout the premises, at the main bar and on tables.  
The Code of Conduct for Performer and the Dancers’ Welfare Policy was 
also available. 

7.3 If the application is granted subject to the Standard Conditions, the 
codes and policies will have to meet the requirements set out in the 
Standard Conditions. 

7.4 Members have discretion to modify the standard conditions or add 
appropriate conditions.

8.0 Assessment and information for the vicinity 

8.1 Appendix 9 is a map of the Licensing Service’s determination of the 
vicinity around the premises, set at 100meters from the premises.  It is 
noted that there has been no significant changes since the original 
application.

8.2 Determination of the “use” of other Premises in the “vicinity” - vicinity” is 
likely to be a narrower and smaller area than the “relevant locality” much 
will depend upon the physical location of the premises, its appearance 
and upon the nature and hours of its operation.

8.3 Below is a list of notable premises within vicinity as observed by 
Licensing Officer visiting the area on foot and using GIS maps:

Residential 
accommodation

The business is over two floors. It is understood that 
there are residential abodes above the premises, 
used by some of the dancers. 

Page 135



The locality is a mix of residential & business/office 
space, though the area has become increasingly 
residential with the opening of Goodmans Fields east 
of the venue which had added hundreds of residential 
properties to the area.

In the locality (wider ranging) Aldgate Place, north 
east of the venue is currently under construction but 
not yet inhabited. 

Aside from the new developments, residential 
accommodation is mainly situated West Tenter St; 
North Tenter St; East Tenter St; St Mark St and 
Scarborough Street

Alie Street
 Flats 1-11,22 Alie Street 
 Flats 1-11, 57 Alie Street
 1-23 Lattice House
 1-6 Network House
 Altitude Point, 71 Alie Street (large high-rise 

block of apartments)
 1-59 Sterling Mansions, 75 Leman Street
 No. 65 Leman St houses 617 rooms for student 

accommodation

Schools English Martyrs Catholic Primary School, St Mark St

Premises used 
by children and 
vulnerable 
persons

Job Centre, 83-85 Mansell Street with entrance at 
West Tenter Street

Youth 
community and 
leisure centres

Anytime fitness, 18 Alie Street

David Lloyd fitness Centre, 1 Alie Street

Premier Inn, 66 Alie Street

Grange Tower Hotel, 45 Prescott Street

Religious St Georges German Lutheran Church, 55 Alie Street

Page 136



centres and 
public places of 
worship

Church of English Martyrs, Prescott Street

Access routes 
to and from 
premises listed 
above

The premises sits on the southern side of Alie Street, 
Alie Street joins Mansell Street on western end and 
Leman Street on east. 
These routes are main transport routes to and from 
Central London.

There are a number of bus routes, as well as night 
buses.

Aldgate East Tube Station is a 3 minute walk away 
with Aldgate station and Tower Hill stations also 
nearby 

Existing 
licensed 
premises in the 
vicinity

Leman Street
Oliver Conquest, 70 Leman Street, E1 8EU

Sainsbury, Unit 2, Southwest Block, Goodman’s 
Fields, Leman Street, E1 8EJ

The Old Dispensary, 19a Leman Street, E1 8EN

Black Horse PH, 40 Leman St, E1 8EU

Whites, 32-38 Leman Street E1 8EW

Leman Street Tavern, 31 Leman Street, E1 8PT

Alie Street
White Swan, 21 Alie Street, E1 8DA

Thyme (Premier Inn), Goodmans Fields, Alie Street, 
E1 8DE

St Mark Street
Halal Restaurant, 2 St Mark Street, E1 8DJ

City Food Store, 8 St Mark St, E1 8DJ

Mansell Street
Sainsbury, 27 Mansell Street, E1 8AA

Page 137



9.0 Assessment and information for the Locality  

9.1 Appendix 10 contains the Ward Profile of Shadwell to provide members 
with details in relation to the locality of the premise.  It should be noted 
that this is the most up-to-date available, thought it dates to 2014.

9.2 In regards to the “relevant locality” :

 The relevant locality was assessed as being within a 100 metre radius 
centred on the premises, 556 Commercial Road.

 The premises sits on the junction of Commercial Road (the A13) and 
Butcher Row (leading southwards to The Highway (the A1203)

 The vicinity is a mixture of residential, commercial and transport 
infrastructure

9.3 The character of the locality:

 The premises is within Shadwell Ward

 The ward has been assessed to have around 5% of the Borough’s 
residents.

 The Wards profiles downloaded from the Council’s website are 
appended.

10.0 Other Sexual Entertainment Venues

10.1 The following premises have applied for Sexual Entertainment Venues 
under the new licensing Regime

 Club Enviee (now 
Flamingos)

30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA

 Metropolis 234 Cambridge Heath Road, London, E2 
9NN

 Nags Head 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 
1DU

 Whites 
Gentleman’s Club

32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW

 White Swan 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 7JD

Page 138



11.0 Consultation

11.1 The application has been consulted on in accordance with the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) and the 
Tower Hamlets Sexual Entertainment Policy.

 
This has included:

a) A site notice at the premises displayed by the applicant during the 
required period.  A copy of the notice is appended as Appendix 11.

b) A press advert was placed in East End Life on the Thursday 9th June 
2016 by the Applicant, which again is appended as Appendix 12.

11.2 The following is a list of those also consulted in regards to the 
application:

 The Police
 The Fire Brigade
 Building Control
 Health and Safety
 Ward Councillors
 Development Control Team
 Local residents living within 50m of the premises

12.0 Responses to the Consultation

12.1 The Police were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

12.2 The Fire Brigade were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

12.3 The Council expects the premises to have planning consent for the 
intended use and hours of operation, or otherwise have lawful planning 
status before making an application for a new licence.  Building Control 
were consulted, please find below a summary of their comments.

 None, therefore it is assumed that all planning permissions are 
acceptable.

12.4 Health and Safety were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

Page 139



12.5 Ward Councillors were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments.

 None

12.6 Development Control Team were consulted, please find below a 
summary of their comments.

 None

12.7 Local residents (Members should note that no written public consultation 
is required for the renewal process) made a number of written 
representations.  These are available in Annex 13.  Copies of these 
have been supplied to the Applicant’s legal representative with all 
personal details redacted.  Please find below a summary of their 
comments:

 On-going issues with waste from the premises
 Noise from customers on egress
 Noise from mini cabs outside the venue
 Anti-social behaviour from patrons of the venue, including 

harassment, nuisance, urination, vomiting and verbal abuse
 The proximity to a growing number of residential premises and a 

school and the resulting changing demographics of the area

13.0 Licensing Authority Recommendations Following Consultation

13.1 The application has received representation from local residents.  The 
original application for the SEV was refused by the Licensing Committee 
as it believed that the true management of the premises was not 
correctly demonstrated by the application, that a gentleman named 
Abdul Ali (otherwise known as Ali Jacko) was intimately involved in the 
running of the business; he had attended the Hearing and gave 
instruction the venue’s legal representative throughout that Hearing.

That decision was appealed, though the premises was permitted to 
continue trading under a waiver authorised by the Council.  The appeal 
was granted by the Magistrates Court.  The granting of the SEV Licence 
by the Magistrates Court was based on the premises demonstrating at 
Court, a high level of management.  

Members should also note that the directorship of City Traders London 
Limited has also changed since, as Abdul Malik has left the company.  
Members should also take note that Mr Malik remains the premises 
licence holder; no transfer had been received at the point that this report 
was compiled.  Members should carefully consider whether or not the 
premises does have an appropriate management system in place, taking 
into account the transient nature of the premises’ employees since the 
granting of the SEV licence, see Section 14.2 for further information.

Page 140



Members may also wish to mote that this venue is the most complained 
about SEV premises.  The Licensing Authority therefore has genuine 
ongoing concerns over the management of the venue.  

14.0 Summary of Premises and Licence History

14.1 The current premises licence has been in place since 10th March 2006.  
It was varied on 8th September 2009 and again via minor variation in 
regards to the layout, as of 8th January 2014.  A copy of the current 
licence is available in Appendix 1.  Details of the company history from 
Companies House are available in Appendix 15.

14.2 The premises licence has however, seen a number of amendments over 
since the SEV licence was granted:

Date Application

03/12/2015 Vary DPS for Vito Marino (Mr Marino subsequently left 
the premises)

14/02/2016 Vary DPS for Helen Williams.  The application was 
eventually withdrawn after the Applicant’s legal agent 
was advised that she held relevant offices and 
representation would be made by the Police.

23/02/2016 Vary DPS for Demir Laho

07/04/2016 Vary DPS for Antonio Pomarico

08/07/2016 Application for removal of DPS by Antonio Pomarico

12/07/2016 Vary DPS Application for Ajay Mohan.  The Police had 
intended to make representation against the 
application as the Applicant is well known to the 
Police and had a number of offences, however, those 
offences had been ‘NFAed’ (no further action) 
therefore there were insufficient grounds.

15.0 Complaints and Enforcement History

15.1 The premises has received the following complaints in the last 24 
months:

Date Complainant Nature of Complaint

21/08/2014 LBTH CCTV 
– via local 
resident

Complaint of noise from patrons arriving 
and leaving from the premises and from 
taxis running their engines outside.

Page 141



18/02/2015 Local 
Resident

Complaint of noise from the premises.  
Noise from bottles being emptied.  Public 
sex between a patron and a staff member.  
Public urination by patrons.

09/05/2015 Public Complaint of litter in the area from the 
premises.

Complainant referred to Commercial Waste 
Enforcement.

19/05/2015 Public Complaint of waste in the area from the 
premises.

Complainant referred to Commercial Waste 
Enforcement.

28/07/2015 Public Caller advises that the owners of the club 
have gone into liquidation.  
PHL is an individual, no details with 
Insolvency Service, no further action.

28/07/2015 Public Complaint that the premises licence holder 
is not in control of the venue, that the 
owner is Ali Jacko and that Abdul Malik is a 
front for the business.  Tells us that the 
premises is associated with drugs and 
prostitution.

Matter referred to Police.

03/08/2015 Public Complaint of bad management and of 
CCTV of a customer being given to the 
Daily Mail newspaper.

Advised that it would be for the customer to 
make a complaint to the Information 
Commissioner.

13/08/2015 Public Complaint that at 01:00hrs saw a male 
slumped drunk in St Marks Street.  Ali 
Jacko and PLH standing near male with Mr 
Jacko filming the man on the ground.  The 
complainant put male in recovery position 
and called 999 for an ambulance and also 
called 101 to the Police.  Complaint stated 
that the doormen, owner and PLH had no 
knowledge of first aid.

Complaint recorded, no further action.

Page 142



26/11/2015 Public Complaint of ongoing ASB in the area 
being directly attributed to the premises.  

Matter referred to Community Safety, 
complainant received visits from Caroline 
Watts (Case Investigation Officer) and from 
the Police SNT.

20/01/2016 Public Complaint of fly-tipping by the premises.  

Matter referred to Commercial Waste 
Enforcement.

01/02/2016 Public Complainant wishes to initiate a review of 
the premises.

Complainant referred to Police and 
Community Safety.  Resident did not 
initiate review

17/02/2016 Public Informing the Authority that the current 
Management had left the premises.  

Advised that we had been informed.

08/06/2016 Public Complaint that the DPS has departed the 
premises as of 31/05/2016.  The premises 
has a sign saying “Closed for 
Refurbishment”.

Advised that if the premises is closed, this 
is the correct course of action for the 
licence holder.

04/07/2016 Public Complaint that Ali Jacko is running the club 
and taking regular payments.

04/07/2016 Anon 
Complaint

From current DPS who wishes to remove 
himself from the licence.

S.41 Form provided for removal of DPS.

12/07/2016 Public Caller says that Abdul Malik, the director of 
the SEV licence holder, wants to resign.  
Tells us that Maria Guida of Fletcher Day 
Solicitors is under direct instruction from Ali 
Jacko.

Page 143



12/07/2016 Public Ongoing complaint of waste at the rear of 
the premises.  

Metter referred to Commercial Waste 
Enforcement.

20/07/2016 Public Complaint that the premises has again 
changed his name.

Complainant advised that there is no 
offence or illegality in changing the name of 
a premises.

15.2 The premises has received the following visits by the Local Authority in 
the past 24months:

Date Authority 
(TS/Lic)

Nature of visit

08/12/2014 Licensing Notice check, all ok

13/11/2015 Licensing  
and Trading 
Standards

Overt compliance visit with Police and TS.  
Licensing Officer (LO) met with Vito Marino 
who advised had commenced employment 
the previous day.  He advised that he had 
taken on the directorship of City Traders 
London Limited and that the Authority 
would be receiving applications to vary the 
Designated Premises Supervisor and 
Premises Licence.  Mr Marino gave a tour 
of the building, showing the areas where 
dances take place, the locations of the 
toilets, the rear exit and the entrance to the 
performers’ changing rooms.  At rear exit, 
LO noticed that the premises did have a 
lockable bin on the street, which was 
unlocked and overflowing with rubbish.  LO 
advised Mr Marino that this may not be 
acceptable to either the residents or 
Environmental Health.

LO went through the LBTH Standard 
Conditions. Concerns raised that the 
Authority had not received notification that 
the current licence holder or himself to 
advise that the business was changing 
hands.  Mr Marino advised Ali JACKO had 
approached him and asked him to work for 
the premises as he knew that he had 

Page 144



relevant experience in the industry as he 
had worked similarly for ‘Secrets’ in 
Hammersmith.  Mr Marino advised that he 
did not have an employment contract and 
had no written mandate from his solicitor to 
show that the company had been 
transferred into his name.

Going through the Standard Conditions, the 
LO advised disappointed to have found no 
changes to the exterior of the building.  The 
illuminated sign advertising ‘glamorous 
topless stage shows’ still outside, the logo 
of the premises of a naked woman on a 
pole silhouette was still there, despite me 
having made it clear that it is not in keeping 
with the conditions.  Mr Marino said they 
would be removed in the next three weeks.  
Concern that the premises had been 
operating under a waiver since July and 
had no effort at all to bring the exterior of 
the premises in line.  It remained very 
obvious from the outside that the premises 
was a sexual entertainment venue.

LO asked to see the Refusals Book.  Not a 
single incident had been recorded since 
22nd December 2014.  However, there was 
an invoice for every week this year from 
Public Protection Security Limited 
addressed to Ali JACKO at the premises.  
The latest statement was for 1st November 
2015.  It showed that the premises only 
ever had two door staff.  LO advised that 
the premises licence under the Licensing 
Act 2003 requires only two before 20:00hrs 
and then at least four during licenced hours.   
Therefore that was a breach of the licence.  
PC Perry advised would make a note and 
issue a Section 19 Closure Notice for the 
lack of incidence reporting and the 
understaffing of security.  It was also noted 
Abdul Malik, the current Premises Licence 
Holder and Designated Premises 
Supervisor had signed in the Incident Book 
with the security staff, having started work 
that day at 16:00hrs, however, he was not 
on the premises.  .

Whilst in the reception area, LO noted that 

Page 145



the security staff did not move from the 
front door and made no observations of the 
dance floor or performers working with 
customers in the club.

Mr Marino was unable to show Codes of 
Conducts signed by a performer.  He was 
able to show me details of the dancers and 
their real names, with copies of ID.  
However, there was no evidence of a right 
to work and an inconsistency with passport 
photocopies and driving licences.  

LO asked Mr MARINO to show me how the 
CCTV worked.  After some time, Mr 
MARINO admitted that he did not know how 
it worked.  He made a phone call for advice, 
but was unable to operate it following the 
call, advising that the password he had just 
been given did not appear to work.  

LO noticed on the desk in the office that 
there was unopened mail franked for 9th 
November 2015.  There were three letters 
addressed to Abdul ALI of 3 Vine Cottages, 
Sidney Square, London, E1 3EP and one 
letter addressed to JKO Holdings Limited 
(the Director of which is Abdul ALI), trading 
as Charlie’s Angels, 30 Alie Street, London, 
E1 8DA. 

PC Perry issued Mr MARINO with the 
Notice with various breaches under the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

24/02/2016 Health and 
Safety

Smoking enforcement visit in regards to 
compliance of the external area.  No further 
action taken.

14/04/2016 Licensing Visit with the Police to meet new DPS 
Antonio Pomarico.  Full licence check for 
both premises and SEV, all ok.

09/06/2016 Licensing SEV Notice check, all ok

28/06/2016 Licensing SEV compliance visit.  Licensing Officer 
Licensing Officer was fully satisfied that all 
conditions of the licence were met.  
Management were fully cooperative, 
records were kept in good working order.  

Page 146



However, the premises was closed to the 
public at the time of inspection and had 
been shut for some weeks; at the time of 
inspection there was no indication of when 
the venue would reopen.

15.3 The premises has been subject to the following enforcement actions:

Date Authority (TS/Lic) Nature of Enforcement

None N/a N/a

16.0 Policy - Appropriate Number of Sexual Entertainment Venues

16.1 The Council has determined that there are a sufficient number of sex 
shops, sex cinemas and sexual entertainment venues currently 
operating in the borough and it does not want to see an increase in the 
numbers of premises that are currently providing these activities.

16.2 The Council intends to adopt a policy to limit the number of sexual 
entertainment venues in the borough to nil however it recognises that 
there are a number of businesses that have been providing sexual 
entertainment in Tower Hamlets for several years. The Council will not 
apply this limitation when considering applications for premises that were 
already trading with express permission for the type of entertainment 
which is now defined as sexual entertainment on the date that the 
licensing provisions were adopted by the authority if they can 
demonstrate in their application:

 High standards of management;
 A management structure and capacity to operate the venue;
 The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for sex 

establishments.

16.3 The Council will consider each application on its merit although new 
applicants will have to demonstrate why the Council should depart from 
its policy. Furthermore if any of the existing premises cease trading there 
is no presumption that the Council will consider any new applications 
more favourably.

17.0 Home Office Guidance

17.1 The Home Office issued guidance to local authorities in March 2010 to 
assist local authorities in carrying out their functions under the Act. 

17.2 The Council can refuse applications on grounds related to an 
assessment of the relevant locality. A licence can be refused if either, at 
the time the application is determined the number of Sexual 

Page 147



Entertainment Venues, or Sexual Entertainment Venues of a particular 
kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or exceeds the number that the 
authority considers appropriate for that locality; or that a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue would be inappropriate having regard to the 
character of the relevant locality, the use to which any premises in the 
vicinity are put or the layout, character or condition of the premises. Nil 
may be the appropriate number.

17.3 The decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is a matter 
for the Council. However, such questions must be decided on the facts 
of the individual application.

17.4 Once the Council has determined the relevant locality, it should seek to 
make an assessment of the ‘character’ of the relevant locality and how 
many, if any, Sexual Entertainment Venues, or Sexual Entertainment 
Venues of a particular kind, it considers appropriate for that relevant 
locality.

18.0 Licence Conditions

18.1 Once the Council has decided to grant a licence they are able to impose 
terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of 
conditions specific to the individual licence under paragraph 8 of 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982, or standard conditions applicable to all Sexual Entertainment 
Venues, or particular types of Sexual Entertainment Venues.

18.2 Where the Council decides to produce standard conditions under 
paragraph 13 they will apply to every licence granted, renewed or 
transferred by the authority unless they have been expressly excluded or 
varied.

18.3 Most sexual entertainment venues will require a Licensing Act 2003 
licence as well as a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. Where this is 
the case, local authorities should avoid duplicating licence conditions 
and should ensure that conditions imposed on the each licence are 
relevant to the activities authorised by that licence. For example, 
conditions relating to the sale of alcohol should only appear on a 
premises licences or clubs premises certificate and should not be 
imposed on sexual entertainment venue licence. Likewise, conditions 
relating the provisions of relevant entertainment should appear on the 
sexual entertainment venue licence and not a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. Local authorities should also avoid imposing 
conditions on either licence that are contradictory.

18.4 In many cases licences granted under the 2003 Act to existing operators 
will contain conditions that relate expressly and exclusively to the 
provision of relevant entertainment. Such a condition might prohibit 
contact between a performer and customer during a lap dance. In these 
cases, in order to avoid duplication, where conditions on premises 

Page 148



licences or club premises certificates relate only to the provision of 
relevant entertainment, they shall be read as if they were deleted from 
the 3rd appointed day onwards.

18.5 In cases where conditions on a premises licence or clubs premises 
certificate are inconsistent with, and less onerous than, the conditions in 
the licence granted under the 1982 Act they shall likewise be read as 
though they have been deleted.

19.0 Sexual Entertainment Venues and Determination

19.1 Tower Hamlets Licensing Authority has received advice in relation to the 
determination of an application, Members would be wise to take a ten-
point approach and provide answers to the following:

1. Determine the extent, nature and content of the “Relevant 
Entertainment”

2. Consider the Mandatory Grounds of refusal – are these engaged? 

3. Discretionary Grounds (Internal): the ‘people’: Consider the 
suitability of the Applicant and other persons involved; are they 
suitable to hold and operate a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
licence?

4. Discretionary Grounds (Internal): the ‘premises’: Consider the 
suitability of the premises for a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
licence; is the premises suitable for the operation of the proposed 
relevant entertainment?

5. Discretionary Grounds (External):  What is the “vicinity” in respect 
of the current application?

6. Discretionary Grounds (External): What are the uses of other 
premises in the vicinity in respect of the current application?

7. Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the “relevant locality” in 
respect of the current application?

8. Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the “character” of the 
relevant locality in respect of the current application?

9. Is a Sexual Entertainment Venue of the type contemplated in the 
application appropriate having regard to (i) the premises; (ii) the 
character of the relevant locality and (iii) the use of premises in 
the vicinity?

10.a     Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the appropriate 
number – regardless of the LBTH/Policy Presumption – of Sexual 

Page 149



Entertainment Venues (collectively & by type) in the relevant 
locality of the current application?

10.b     Is the LBTH/Policy engaged by the current application? (b) 
Where the LBTH/Policy is engaged has the applicant established 
that the current application is an exception to that policy?  

19.2 A copy of LBTH Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy is produced in 
Appendix 16 for Member’s information.

20.0 Legal Comments

20.1 The Council may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a 
licence on one or more of the grounds specified below (Sch 3 para 12(1) 
LGMPA (‘the Act’), as amended by reg 47 (4), Provision of Services 
Regulations 2009):

20.2 The mandatory grounds for refusal are as follows:
(a) the applicant is under the age of 18;
(b) that the applicant is for the time being disqualified from holding a 

licence;
(c) that the person is a person other than a body corporate, who is not 

resident in the U.K. or was not resident in the U.K. throughout the 
six months preceding the date of the application;

(d) that the applicant is a body corporate which is not incorporated in 
the U.K; or

(e) that the applicant has been refused a sex establishment licence for 
the premises within the twelve months preceding the date of the 
application and the refusal has not been reversed on appeal.

20.3 The Committee has discretion to refuse the application if any of the 
following grounds for refusal apply under para. 12(3) of Schedule 3 of 
the Act.

The discretionary grounds for refusal are as follows:
(a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having 

been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;
(b) that if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred, the 

business to which it relates would be managed by or carried on for 
the benefit of a person other than the applicant who would have 
been refused a licence if they had applied themselves;

(c) the number of sex establishments exceeds the number or is equal 
to the number which the council consider is appropriate for that 
locality; or

(d) the grant or renewal of licence would be inappropriate because of:
i. the character of the relevant locality;
ii. the use to which the premises in the vicinity are put; or
iii. the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, 

vessel or stall.

Page 150



 (In relation to premises, ‘the relevant locality’ means the locality 
where the premises are situated).

20.4 There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court, as set out in para. 27 
of Schedule 3 of the Act. An appeal against the decision of a Magistrates 
Court may be brought to the Crown Court. In addition, the decision of the 
Committee may be appealed on established public law principles.

20.5 The Committee should only consider those comments within the letters 
of objection or made orally at the hearing which are relevant to the 
mandatory or discretionary grounds for refusal. Comments contained 
within the letters of objection or orally at the hearing which relate to 
moral grounds, for example, must not be considered by the Committee.

20.6 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the Hearing.

21.0 Finance Comments 

21.1 The Chief Finance Officer has been consulted on this report and has no 
additional comments to make.

Page 151



22.0 Appendices

Appendix 1 A copy of the existing SEV Licence (including the LBTH 
Standard Conditions)

Appendix 2 A copy of the existing Premises Licence

Appendix 3 A copy of the renewal application

Appendix 4 Maps of the premises showing the site location 

Appendix 5 Location plan and internal layout plans of the premises

Appendix 6 Compliance Visit Checklist

Appendix 7 Photographs of the premises

Appendix 8 Code of Conduct for Performers, Code of Conduct for 
Customers (House Rules) and Dancers Welfare Policy 

Appendix 9 Vicinity Map

Appendix 10 Ward Profile of Shadwell 

Appendix 11 Copy of Site Notice

Appendix 12 Copy of Press Advert

Appendix 13 Representations of local residents and community groups

Appendix 14 Appeal Decision of Magistrates Court 

Appendix 15 Companies House – City Traders London Limited

Appendix 16 Copy of LBTH SEV Policy

Page 152



 Appendix 1 

Page 153



LICENCE FOR A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE 

Licence Number: 

The LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS under provisions of Schedule 3 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, in relation to the licensing 
of sex establishments, as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, 
grants, in accordance to its Licensing Policy:   

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of SEV licence: 

City Traders London Ltd. (0756000) 

to use premises: 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

Club Enviee 
30 Alie Street 

Post town 

 London 

Post Code 

E1 8DA 

Telephone number 

as a Sexual Entertainment Venue. 

This licence is in force up to: 31st May 2016 or during the time that the licensee(s) is/are 
the occupier of the premises, whichever is the shorter period, or unless sooner 
surrendered or revoked. 

The hours permitted are: Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 04:00hrs (the 
following day) 

The named management responsible for this premises are 

Demir Laho – Designated Premises Supervisor and General Manager 
Antonio Pomarico – Floor Manager 

Page 154



This licence is granted subject to conditions as follows: 

1. the Standard Conditions of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets made under
paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 as revised on 23rd June 2015 and sent to the Licence
Holder as part of the Decision Notice dated 17th July 2015.  It is the duty of the
licence holder to be aware of and abide by those conditions.

Other requirements or restrictions: 

This licence must be prominently and visibly displayed inside the entrance to the 
Premises. 

This licence together with the standard conditions must be available at the Premises 
at all times. 

Signed by David Tolley
Head of Trading Standards & Environmental 
Health 

Page 155



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 

(REVISED 23
RD

 JUNE, 2015)

Definitions 

In this Licence, 

‘approved layout’ means the layout of the Premises shown on the 

attached plan.

‘authorised officers’ means officers of the Borough Council or of 

the Police

‘drinks tariff’ means a tariff showing the price of all drinks

‘entertainment tariff’ means a tariff showing the price of all 

sexual entertainment performances, displays of nudity and services 

related to the sexual entertainment performance (including charges 

for admission to any part of the Premises; for hire of rooms, booths 

or reserved areas; or for the company of performers)

‘nudity’, ‘display of nudity’  and ‘sexual entertainment’ are 

references to those terms as defined by  section 27 of the Policing 

and Crime Act 2009.

‘performers’ means persons engaged by or through the Licensee 

who provide or participate in sexual entertainment

‘premises’ includes land, buildings, stalls, structures or erections, 

and all forms of vessels or vehicles (including for the avoidance of 

doubt bicycles, motor vehicles, boats and aircraft).  It does not 

include any private dwelling to which the public is not admitted.

‘the Premises’ means the premises authorised in this Licence as a 

sexual entertainment venue and shown on the attached plan.

‘public area(s)’ means the area(s) outlined in blue on the attached 

plan, being the area within the Premises that the public are 

permitted to enter.  

‘the public’ includes customers, guests and visitors to the 

premises, but excludes performers and those employees or agents of 

the Licensee lawfully  engaged in managing or operating the 

Premises.

Page 156



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

‘sexual entertainment area(s)’ means the area(s) outlined in red 

on the attached plan, being locations where sexual entertainment is 

permitted to take place.

‘suggestive advertising content’ means photographs, sculptures, 

images,  tableaux, displays, sounds, spoken words or  writing –

including graphics, logos or trademarks-   that depict, indicate or 

suggest that sexual entertainment takes place on the Premises

General 

1. The Licensee must remain in personal control of the premises at all

times that it is trading or nominate in writing an individual over the

age of 18 with the authority to direct activities within the Premises.

2. The Licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of any change in

directors, trustees, partners or other persons concerned in the

management of the licensed activities within 14 days of such change.

3. The Licensee shall admit authorised officers to the Premises at all

reasonable times and at any time when the Premises are providing

sexual entertainment.  The Licensee shall provide in a timely fashion

copies of any documents reasonably required by an authorised officer

to prove compliance with this Licence.

4. The Licensee must give written notice to the Council if s/he wishes to

surrender the licence.

5. A suitable and sufficient number of door supervisors and trained staff

will be employed (based on a risk assessment) when sexual

entertainment is offered.  Their duties will include monitoring

customers to ensure that the Code of Conduct for Performers and the

House Rules are being obeyed.

6. The Licensee is to implement a suitable policy for the safety of the

performers when they leave the Premises.

7. The Council reserves the right to amend or alter these conditions

(provided that such change will not prevent the operators from viably

carrying on the business of the Premises) following consultation with

the licensees.

Page 157



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

Premises 

8. The approved layout of the Premises shall not be altered without

prior consent of the Council.

9. The Licensee shall ensure that the interior of the Premises where

sexual entertainment is offered shall not be capable of being seen

from the outside of the Premises, and that the exterior is maintained

with a suitable level of decorum (i.e. that it does not have anything

that depicts, indicates or suggests that sexual entertainment takes

place on the Premises).

10. Sexual entertainment shall take place only in the designated sexual

entertainment areas.

11. No member of the public shall be permitted to go anywhere outside

the public areas.  The public shall not be permitted access to the

performers’ changing rooms.

12. Without prejudice to condition 13 below CCTV shall be installed to

cover the inside and the outside of the Premises, covering all public

areas, including private performance areas and booths, entrances and

exits, but excluding the interior of toilets.  All cameras must be

maintained in working order.  All cameras shall continually record

whilst the Premises are open to the public and the recorded images

shall be kept available for a minimum of 31 days.  Recorded images

shall be made available to an authorised officer together with

facilities for viewing.  The recordings for the preceding 2 days shall

be made available immediately upon request.  Recordings outside this

period shall be made available on 24 hours’ notice.

13. CCTV cameras shall be installed and maintained at the locations

shown on the attached plan, to the reasonable satisfaction of the

licensing authority.

14. Members of the public may not enter or remain in the toilet cubicles

in the company of any performer.  Only one person at a time to enter

a toilet cubicle.

Page 158



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

Advertising 

15. The Licensee shall neither cause nor permit the display of suggestive

advertising content which is directed at or may be seen or heard by

any person from within the London Borough of Tower Hamlets:

on any public highway, street, waterway or railway;

in any place of general public use or access; or

in publicly accessible areas of premises  open to the public. 

This condition shall apply to prevent suggestive advertising content 

being displayed on the exterior of the Premises or handed out as 

flyers on the street.  It shall also apply to prevent suggestive 

advertising content being displayed on or in street furniture; 

telephone booths; hoardings, billboards, screens or projections;  as 

well as advertising displayed on or within any vehicles located on or 

near the highway.    The Licensee shall not permit any person to tout 

for business or encourage other persons to visit the Premises whilst 

on a public highway.

For the avoidance of doubt, this condition shall not be taken to 

prevent the Licensee from advertising the Premises using suggestive 

advertising content in media that restrict access to persons over the 

age of 18 years and would not reasonably be expected to be directed 

at persons in a public place (for instance, in adult magazines, 

websites or television channels).

16. All persons engaged or employed to attend to the entrance area or

exterior of the Premises must be suitably dressed and conduct

themselves so as not to indicate or suggest the availability of sexual

entertainment at the Premises.

17. Where the Council has given notice in writing to the Licensee

objecting to an advertisement on grounds that it would offend public

decency or be likely to encourage or incite crime or disorder, that

advertisement shall be removed or not be displayed.

Admission to the Premises 

18. No person under the age of 18 years shall be admitted to nor

permitted to remain on the Premises when sexual entertainment is

being offered, and a clear notice to this effect will be displayed at

each entrance to the Premises.

Page 159



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

19. Customers who appear to be under the age of 21 must be asked to

provide a Pass-scheme approved photographic card, their passport or

photographic driving licence to prove their age.  Prominent notices

must be clearly displayed to this effect at each entrance to the

Premises.

House Rules 

20. The Licensee shall prepare House Rules governing the conduct of

customers.

21. The House Rules shall be prominently and legibly displayed close to

each entrance of the Premises.

22. The House Rules must be made known to customers prior to their

admission to the Premises when sexual entertainment is provided

23. Signs must be displayed at appropriate locations advising that any

customer attempting to make physical contact with a performer will

be asked to leave.

24. No member of the public shall be admitted or allowed to remain at

the Premises if they appear to be intoxicated or under the influence

of illegal substances.

25. Customers may not be permitted to photograph, film or electronically

record any performance.

26. The House Rules must be implemented and effectively enforced at all

times when the premises are operating with sexual entertainment.

Performers 

27. Sexual entertainment will be given only by the performers engaged by

or through the Licensee and there will be no audience participation in

any performances.

28. The Licensee shall keep a record of each performer, including their

proper name and any aliases, and their residential address.  With

each record the Licensee shall keep a copy of a photographic form of

identity and proof of address of the performer. With each record the

Licensee shall keep a clear copy of an authorised document

demonstrating that each Performer and each member of the staff is

Page 160



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

entitled to work within the UK. A clear copy of this record shall be 

kept on the Premises at all times and be made immediately available 

for inspection by authorised officers.

29. On days when sexual entertainment is provided, the Licensee or their

representative shall keep a record of those performers working at the

Premises on that day in a daily record.  The daily record shall be

retained securely for at least 31 days and shall be made immediately

available for inspection by authorised officers.

Tariffs 

30. The Licensee shall prominently and legibly display the drinks tariff at

or by the bar and at the entrance.  No charge shall be made nor

payment accepted for any drink other than in accordance with the

tariff, save for clearly advertised discounts to the tariff.

31. The Licensee shall prominently and legibly display the entertainment

tariff in the entrance area and at key locations within the Premises

including entrances to any private performance areas and so far as

possible at the place(s) at which payment for any performance or

service is transacted as marked on the attached plan.  No charge shall

be made nor payment accepted by the Licensee for any services other

than in accordance with the tariff or clearly advertised discounts to

the tariff.

32. The Licensee shall so far as reasonably practicable keep such records

as are necessary to prove that the sums charged and payments taken

are for products or services advertised on the relevant tariff at the

amount shown on that tariff.  These records must be made available

within a reasonable time if requested by an authorised officer.

 Code of Conduct 

33. The Licensee shall prepare and implement a suitable Code of Conduct

for performers.

34. The Licensee shall ensure that each performer signs the Code of

Conduct in their proper name, acknowledging that they have read and

understood and are prepared to abide by the Code of Conduct, and

signed copies be kept on the premises for inspection by authorised

officers.

Page 161



Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues as revised 23 June 2015 

35. During a performance there shall be no intentional physical contact

between a performer and the customer other than the transfer of

money or token at the beginning, during and at the conclusion of a

dance into the hand or a garter worn by the performer.  For the

avoidance of doubt nothing in this condition shall prevent Performers

from acting to prevent, deter or counter any attempts of physical

contact by a customer.

36. Without prejudice to standard condition 35 above, at the conclusion

of a performance there shall be no intentional physical contact

between a performer and the customer, save for a handshake.  For

the avoidance of doubt kissing is not permitted.

37. The Licensee must not permit gratuities or any other items to be

thrown at performers.

38. During a performance there shall be no full body physical contact

between performers and they are not to touch each other’s breasts or

genitalia either with their bodies or with objects.  Any performance

shall be restricted to dancing and the removal of clothes.  There must

not be any other form of sexual activity, including but not limited to

acts or the simulation of acts of personal stimulation.

39. Performers shall be provided with a changing room to which the

public have no access.

40. Performers must remain fully dressed while on the Premises, except

while performing in the sexual entertainment areas and in the

changing rooms shown on the approved plan.  [Without prejudice to

this requirement, there is to be no display of nudity in the public

areas of the Premises, other than during the course of a

performance].

41. Performers must re-dress at the conclusion of a performance.

Page 162



Appendix 2 

Page 163



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

1

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

Signed by John McCrohan
 Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date: 10 th March 2006 

Varied 8 th September 2009 
Minor Variation (layout) 8 th January 2014 

(Charlie’s Angels) 
30 Alie Street 
London 
E1 8DA 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence  

The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of regulated entertainment  

Page 164



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

2

Part A - Format of premises licence  

Premises licence number 17717 

Part 1 - Premises details  
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

(Charlie’s Angels) 
30 Alie Street 

Post town 

 London 

Post code 

 E1 8DA 

Telephone number 

None 

Where the licence is time limited the dates  

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence  

The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of regulated entertainment  

Page 165



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

3

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  

The sale by retail of alcohol: 
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 
hours to 03:30 hours the following day 

Regulated Entertainment consisting of: 
Recorded Music: 
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 
hours to 03:30 hours the following day 

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for dancing: 
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 
hours to 03:30 hours the following day. 

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the end of normal 
permitted hours to the commencement of permitted hours on the following day. 

The opening hou rs of the premises  

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 
hours to 04:00 hours the following day. 

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the end of normal 
permitted hours to the commencement of permitted hours on the following day. 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 
off supplies 

On sales only 

Page 166



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

4

Part 2  
 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence  
 
Mr Abdul Malik 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable) 
 
Not applicable 

 
Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises sup ervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
 
Ajay Mohan Kirpil 

 
 
 

 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 
 

  
 

 

Page 167



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

5

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence 

1. 
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 
the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises; 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are 

designed to require or encourage, individuals to— 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to 

drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time 
limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for 
a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a 
particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk 
of undermining a licensing objective 

(c)provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over 
a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant 
risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters 
or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably 
be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another 
(other than where that other person is unable to drink without 
assistance by reason of disability 

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 

Page 168



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

6

 

3.   
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the 
premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 
to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 
(a) a holographic mark, or 
(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

4. The responsible person must ensure that— 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures— 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint  
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 
material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

(c)where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 
quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that 
these measures are available. 

5. 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the 
permitted price. 

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1— 

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor 
Duties Act 1979; 

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula — 
                             P = D + (D x V)  
where — 

(i) P is the permitted price 

Page 169



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

7

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply 
of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date 
of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c)“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 
there is in force a premises licence 

(i) the holder of the premises licence 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of 

such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a 

supply of alcohol under such a licence 
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 

there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of 
the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance 
with the Value Added Tax Act 1994 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price 
given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given 
by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be 
different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) 
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax 

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to 
sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the 
period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating S chedule 

Conditions Agreed with the Metropolitan Police 

1. All references to striptease in these conditions shall be deemed to apply to
all forms of striptease or nudity by male or female performers.

2. At least one Personal Licence Holder shall remain on the premises at all
times during licensed hours when the premises are open and trading.

3. At least four SIA registered Door Supervisors will remain on the premises at
all times during licensed hours when the premises are being used as a table
dancing venue.  This number may be reduced to two before 20 00 hrs.

Page 170



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

8

4. The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) will ensure that at least one
member of staff with specific obligation to ensure compliance with the
performers/dancers code of conduct, will be present at all times when the
premises are open for striptease, table or pole dancing.

5. CCTV with time and date recording facility to be installed and maintained at
the club in accordance with the advice of a Metropolitan Police Crime
Prevention Officer. Recording media to be retained for at least 30 days and
to be readily available for inspection by the Police or other statutory
authority. At least two people will be trained to operate the recording
equipment and be competent in its operation. A least one trained person
shall be on premises at all times when the club is open and trading.

6. A Code of Conduct for Performers/Dancers to be lodged with the Police and
Licensing Authority. All Performers/Dancers must sign the code of conduct
as agreed by the Police in their proper name acknowledging they have read
and understood, and are prepared to abide by the said Code of Conduct
and copies so signed should be retained by the DPS and be readily
available for inspection by the Police and Licensing Authority. Any breach of
the agreed code of conduct shall constitute a breach of condition.

7. Details of all work permits and/or immigration status relating to persons
working at the Oops Club shall be retained by the DPS and be readily
available for inspection by Police or Immigration Officer.

8. Menus and drinks’ price-lists shall be clearly displayed at the front entrance,
reception and bar in such a position and size as to be easily read by
customers. This price list should show all consumable items and any
minimum tariff including charges or fees applicable to hostesses. The
menus and drinks price-lists will also be on all tables.

9. A permanent written record will be maintained in the form of a refusals book
kept at the club. This record will be signed by the DPS/Manager on a daily
basis and record the details of any customer who refuses to pay his/her bill
giving details of the customer’s name, contact details and a detailed copy of
the bill. This is to be available to the Police and/or Licensing Authority on
demand.

10. A record will be kept at the club of the real names, addresses, stage names
of all the hostesses/dancers, which will be readily available to any Police
Officer and/or the Licensing Authority.

11. A notice outlining a Code of Conduct for the customer shall be positioned at
the entrance, reception and bar area. It shall be of an adequate size and in
such a position where it can be easily read and understood by the
customer.

Page 171



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

9

12. All hostess activity shall be conducted openly and at no time shall
hostesses entertain customers in areas of the premises that are screened
or curtained off from the view of the DPS (or other person acting with
equivalent authority).

13. An incident book will be maintained at the premises. Upon request, it will be
readily available for inspection by the police or other Licensing Authority.

14. There shall be no soliciting for custom by means of persons on the highway
or any payment made to them by or on behalf of the DPS.

15. Whilst striptease is taking place no person under the age of 18 shall be
allowed on any part of the premises and a notice shall be displayed in clear
terms at each entrance that:-

NO PERSON UNDER 18 TO BE PERMITTED 

16. On any day when the premises are open for entertainment not involving
striptease, prior to striptease becoming available, a notice shall be
prominently displayed in a conspicuous position on the premises.  This
should be displayed at least one hour before striptease performances are
due to start, advising customers when those performances are to
commence.

17. The striptease entertainment shall be given only by paid
performers/entertainers who are engaged exclusively for that purpose.

18. There shall be no physical participation by the audience and no contact
between the performer/dancer and any of the audience during
performances. There shall be no physical contact between the
performers/Dancers.

19. There shall be no striptease performance to customers seated at the bar, or
to standing customers.  Performers/Dancers shall only perform on the
designated stages, designated podiums or to seated customers at a table.

20. On each of the designated stages, there shall be no more than two
performers at any one time.

21. The VIP area on the ground floor will be under constant supervision by
either the DPS or a Door Supervisor.  This is to ensure the safety of the
Performers/Dancers and to ensure they are complying with their code of
conduct.

Page 172



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

10

22. Any performance will be restricted to dancing and the removal of clothes,
there must not be any other form of sexual activity.

23. All striptease shall take place in an area which is not visible from the street
or overlooking buildings.

24. The Performers/Dancers shall be provided with a changing room which
must be separate and apart from public facilities.

25. There shall be no sexually explicit external advertising likely to cause
offence as to the nature of the activity being held at the premises.

Conditions agreed with Environmental Health Officer:

26. First Floor: The door from the smaller VIP penthouse area to the flat roof
does not lead to a place of safety and may not be designated as a fire exit.
The door shall be provided with a security lock to prevent unauthorised use.

27. The door from the first floor leading to the upper storeys should have a
security lock to prevent unauthorised access to the upper storeys, which are
not part of the licensed premises.  A sign marked “PRIVATE” will be
provided on the door.

28. Ground Floor:  All exit doors from the ground floor at the front of the
premises shall open in the direction of escape.

29. The double doors separating the customer seating area from the private
dance area also provide an alternative escape from the ground floor and
these shall be hung to open in the direction of escape.

30. An additional fire alarm call point will be provided next to the door giving exit
to Alie Street from the enclosed staircase.

31. The door attached to the reception desk be hung to open in the direction of
escape (or may be double-swing).

32. All exit signs to be “maintained” fittings, illuminated by both mains and
emergency lighting.

33. All external windows should be obscured to prevent persons outside from
seeing entertainment of an adult nature, e.g., striptease, pole dancing or lap
dancing.

34. The external advertising to the frontage of the premises shall be limited to
that shown on Drawing “Oops 1” attached to this Licence.

Page 173



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

11

35. The Rules of Management (a copy of which are annexed to this Licence
marked “Oops 2” are required to comply with the requirements of the
Licensing Authority’s Licensing Policy.

Conditions agreed with the Fire Service: 

36. A fire alarm with smoke detection in accordance with BS5839 Part 1 (L2)
system.

37. Emergency lighting in accordance with BS5266.

38. Stairway from basement to first floor to conform to a protected stairway,
with all walls and doors or 300 mm fire resistance.

39. Kitchen to be enclosed in 30 mm fire resistant construction.

40. Fire-fighting equipment and fire signage should be in accordance with
current British Standard.

41. The safe capacity of the premises is to be as agreed with the Fire Authority.

42. Details of evacuation procedure to be made available to the Fire Authority.

External area: 

43. The external area to the front of the premises in Alie Street shall be
delineated and set out as per the Drawings in “Oops 1” attached hereto.
The external area to the front of the premises in Alie Street shall not be
used at any time for the provision of regulated entertainment and for the
sale of retail alcohol after 23.00.

Children: 

44. Any advertising or promotion at, on or in the premises for entertainment,
services or activities of an adult nature (and in particular striptease, table
dancing and pole dancing) shall be appropriate for all ages to see if or when
attending the premises at any time when such adult entertainment, services
and activities are not provided.

Annexe 3: Conditions agreed at Committee Hearing for variation on 8 th 
September 2009 

1. Noise limiters are to be employed in a separate and remote (from the
volume control) lockable cabinet and fitted to the music amplification
system.

Page 174



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

12

2. No supplementary sound system to be used.

Annex 4 – Plans 

The Plans are those Plans submitted to the Licensing Authority on 20th 
December 2013 (Ground, First and Second floors – Drawing No: 156 A001 rev2).

Page 175



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

13

Part B - Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number  17717 

Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

(Charlie’s Angels) 
30 Alie Street  

Post town 

 London 

Post code   
E1 8DA 

Telephone number 

None 

Where the licence is 
time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities 
authorised by the 
licence  

The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of regulated entertainment 

The times the licence 
authorises the 
carrying out of 
licensable activities 

The sale by retail of alcohol: 
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 03:30 hours the 
following day 

Regulated Entertainment consisting of: 
Recorded Music: 

Licensing Act 2003 

Page 176



C:\Users\andrew.heron\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\VBEYETRK\AlieSt30.doc 

14

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 03:30 hours the 
following day 

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for 
dancing: 
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 03:30 hours the 
following day. 

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue 
from the end of normal permitted hours to the 
commencement of permitted hours on the following day. 

The opening hours of 
the premises 

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 04:00 hours the 
following day. 

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue 
from the end of normal permitted hours to the 
commencement of permitted hours on the following day. 

Name, (registered) address  of holder of 
premises licence 

Mr Abdul Malik 
6 North Tenter Street 
London 
E1 8DL 

Where the licence authorises supplies of 
alcohol whether these are on and / or off 
supplies 

On sales only 

Registered number of holder, for example 
company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 

Not applicable 

Name of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol 

Ajay Mohan Kirpil 

State whether access to the premises by 
children is restricted or prohibited 

Prohibited 

Page 177



Appendix 3 

Page 178



. ·-------• 

LBTH 
TRADING STANDARDS 

~a Jtrn 2orn 
'3\ MA-'1 

.s:!. 

Application for the Gra.lrt!'R~~~nsf r or 
Variation of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence 

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

Part one of this form is open to inspection by the press and public 

Please read the following instructions first 

Before completing this form please read the associated guidance notes. If you are completing this form by hand 
please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in 
black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. Please complete all sections or the application will be deemed 
incomplete and returned to the applicant. 

Applicants are warned that any person who, In connection with the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of 
a sexual entertainment licence, makes a false statement which they know to be false In any material 
respect, or which they do not believe to be true, Is guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction 
to a fine not exceeding £20,000. 

Applicants are required to complete part one and part two of the application form, and provide any other 
documents listed In the form. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Pan: One: Details of Application 

Section A: Type of Application 
Please specify what type of application you are making: 

0New ~Renewal D Variation D Transfer 
Licence Number (If applicable): 

19955 

Section B: Premises to be licensed -·--- -- - - ·- -

Is the application in respect of (tick as appropriate): 

~Premises D Vehicle D Vessel D Stall 
Trading name and full postal address of premises to be licensed 
(If this application is in respect of a Vehicle, Vessel or Stall, then the location where it will be used) 
Name: Club Enviee (formerly known as Charlie's Angels) 
Address: 

30 Alie Street 

Post I London I Postcode l E1 BOA Town 
Premises E-mail address I Premises contact telephone number(s) 

  

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 

q • • .. • 
Page 179



Section C: A 

a) an individual or individuals 
b) a limited company 
c) a partnership 
d other 

(1): First Individual Applicant Details 

MRD MASO MISSD 

First names 

MSD 

remises licence as 
please complete box ( 1 ) 

~please complete box (2) 
D please complete box (2) 

lease com lete box 2 

Other 

I Surname 

Please do not complete if this is a private residential address - This information is provided in Part 2 

Address 

Age of applicant Over 18: YesD NoD 

(1 ): Second Individual Aoolicant Details ~Insert further oaaes if necessary for more than 2 aoolicants) -

MAD MASO MISSD MSD Other 

First names I Surname 

Address 
Please do not complete if this is a private residential address - This information is provided in Part 2 

Age of applicant Over 18: YesD NoD 

30 Alie Street 

Post Town London Postcode E1 D 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 2 
Page 180



Section D: Premises Details 

1. What is the nature of the applicant's interest in the premises (please tick as appropriate) 
a) Freehold D 
b) Leasehold D The company occupy under a management agreement from the underlessee -

please see Section J. 
2. If the applicant's interest in the premises is a leasehold one, please state whether it is a: 

a) headlease D 
b) sub lease D 

3. the name and full address of the landlord (if applicable) 

FJ~_e_holQ_~r;_  

4. the name and full address of the superior landlord (if applicable) 

~-~~ehQ!~-~~:...~JJX.~Y-~!~_!-l!n.i.~~~- of_~.Q-~.!!~-~.!!._e_~!_ '=9-.IJ~_on E_~Q.~----·---·-----·----------· 

5. Is the whole of the premises to be used under the licence? 
a) Yes D 
b) No ~ 

6. If "no" please state which part of the premises is to be used for the purpose of the licence: 

~~as~ re_!~ to_pl~~s: grou~_<!_ floo!_~!"~J.~-~.!1..9.~~-------------·--------- _ 

a) the use to which the remainder of the premises is put 

b) the name(s) of those who are responsible for the management of the remainder of the premises 

Antonio Pomarico 

7. Is the premises to be used for the purposes of the licence, so constructed or adapted as to permit 
access to and from the premises for members of the public who are disabled? 

a) Yes D 
b) No ~ 

If "No" please state the applicant's proposals for affording such access 
Ramps can be provided for access to the ground floor. Adaptations as required by the local authority 

be considered, but please note that the premises occupy a listed building. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 3 
Page 181



7. Is the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall which is to be used for the purposes of the licence, in use as 
a sex establishment at the date of this application? 

a) Yes Q 
b) No !il' 

If the answer is "Yes", please state the name and full address of the person(s) or body who operated 
the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall as a sex establishment at the date of this application, and the 
date (where known) the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall was first used as such 

Antonio Pomarico operates and manages the SEV club. The business is owned by City Traders - - . -
London Limited 

If the answer is "No" please state the purpose(s) it is currently being used for 

Section E: Current Licences 

1. Is the Premises licensed under any other Act (e.g. the Licensing Act 2003)? 
a) Yes ~ 
b) No 0 

2. If yes, please provide details of the licence(s), including the name of the Licence Holder and any 
Designated Premises Supervisor 

Premises Licence (number 17717) 
Dated 10 March 2006 
Varied 8 September 2009 

Minor Variation (change of layout) 8 January 2014 
Premises Licence Holder: Abdul Malik 

Designated Premises Supervisor: Antonio Pomarico 

Appllcallon for Sexual Entertainment Venue 4 
Page 182



Section F: Business Details 
Each person named in this section will need to complete Part 2 of the application - Personal Details Form 

1. Under what name will the business be trading? 
Club Enviee 

2. If the applicant is a company or other corporate body, please give the names of the applicants 
directors and company secretary: 

Name 
.. ~!_~~-~~~-~?lik i~_~t!_~_ s~l_~~?~pany director. There is no company secretary. 

Use additional sheets to continue if necessary 

2. Is the whole of the business owned by the applicant, and the applicant does not share the profits of 
the business with a~n ther person or body? 

a) Yes 
b) No 

If the answer is "No", please state the name(s) of those who will share in the profits of the business. In 
each case, please state the percentage share of the profits to be taken by each person or body 
involved in the ownership of the business 

Name Percentage 
share 

-------·----·--·-·---... ---------.. - ,_.., ______ _ 
---- ----------·---------- ----------
·---- _ ... ____ ._ .. ____ ... ___ .._. ______ ,. ___ ·----·---
··-·-------·---·-------------- ----+--------
·-·-·---··-·--------·-------- --------
-·---------·--------·----!-------
- .. --------------·----·------ -----·---
--------------·------·-----------·---

Use additional sheets to continue if necessary 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 5 

Page 183



Section G: Advertising Details 
When considering types of advertising in this section, please refer to the Councils Standard Conditions 
on Touting for Business and Premises Appearance, which are attached to the Sex Establishment 
Policy 
1. What advertisement(s) or display(s) are to be exhibited on the exterior of the premises? 

The club's name is displayed. 
An illuminated box is mounted on the frontage of the premises. This displays opening hours, and a 
summary of house rules (customer code of conduct) as the council is aware. 
Shopfront signage displays the club's name. 

2. Please state the size(s) of any advertisement(s) or display(s) mentioned in the above question 
1. The illuminated glass fronted box referred to above measures 
92 cm (h) x 62cm (w) 

2. Shopfront signage: 90 cm (h) x 316 cm (w) 

3. Please state any proposals for solicitation of the business in public areas. E.g. fliers, business cards, 
billboard advertising, personal solicitation or advertising on motor vehicles 

The club has a website, and markets itself via this and social media (twitter).The club does not enga~ e 
in personal solicitation, does not tout for customers on the street, and does not have a branded vehic e. 

Appllcallon for Sexual Entertainment Venue 6 
Page 184



Section H: Operation of the Premises 
- -

1. Please state the proposed opening times of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall: 
(Gives times in a 24h clock format) 

Day 1 Opening Closing 
Monday 18:30 04:00 
Tuesday 18:30 04:00 
Wednesday 18:30 04:00 
Thursday 18:30 04:00 
Friday 18:30 04:00 
Saturday 18:30 04:00 
Sunday 1 18:30 04:00 

2. What means are to be taken to prevent the interior of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall for which 
the licence is sought from being visible to passers-by? 

The interior is not visible to passers-by. The glass frontage is opaque black-out glass. The front door 
to the premises is only opened for access and egress and is not left open. 

3. Have you read and understood the Councils standard conditions for sexual entertainment venues? 
a) Yes g 
b) No 

4. Are you able to c~ly with the Councils standard conditions for sexual entertainment venues? 
a) Yes 
b) No D 

If no, please give the reasons why not: 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 7 

Page 185



5. Please give details of any additional conditions you would like to propose, or conditions you like to 
amend or remove. The Council will expect applicants to address the following factors : 

a) Preventing nuisance to residents and businesses in the vicinity 
b) Public safety 
c) Preventing crime and disorder 
d) Protecting children from harm 
e) Procedures for checking employees age and right to work in the UK 
f) Procedures for training of all staff in the Code of Conduct for Dancers, and for compliance with 

licence conditions and requirements 
g) Procedures for notifying customers of the Dancers code of conduct 
h) System for monitoring compliance with the venues policy for welfare of dancers 

The standard conditions for sexual entertainment venues have already apply and no additional conditior s 
are proposed. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 8 
Page 186



Section I: Management of the Premises 
Each person named in this section will need to comolete Part 2 of the aoo/ication - Personal details form 
1. Please give the name of the person who will be responsible for the day to day management of the 
premises. ("the Manager") 

Name: Antonio Pomarico 

Role: Manager 

2. Will this person be based at the premises and will the management of the premises be their sole and 
exclusive occupatio~ 

a) Yes l!J 
b) No D 

3. If no, then please give details of how they are responsible for the day to day management, and what 
other arrangements are in place for the management of the premises. 

4. Which person(s) will be responsible for the day to day management in the absence of the Manager 
(Use continuation sheets if necessary): 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Rosanna Valderama 

Assistant manager 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

Name: 
Role: 

5. Please confirm that at least one of the people named in this section will be at the premises at all 
times whilst it is ope~ 

a) Yes LY 
b) No D 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 9 
Page 187



Section J: Details of any further information relevant to this application 
Please state below any further information which the applicant would wish to be taken into account 
when this application is considered (This space may also be used to amplify answers to any previous 
questions) 

1. Both Antonio Pomarico (the current premises licence holder and DPS) and Rosanna Valderama 
Assistant manager) have worked at the venue for a number of years and are highly experienced in the 
management of the club as a sexual entertainment venue. 
2. Their DBS checks are in hand. Copies of the results will follow. 
3. Mr Pomarico and Ms Valderama are both personal licence holders. 
4. JKO Holdings Ltd have a management agreement from Kaushik Amritlal Mody and and Dinesh 
Amritlal Mody of Unit 22-23, The I 0 Centre, 59-71, River Rd, Barking, Essex, IG11 ODR who 
are the sub-lessees. 
5. City Traders (London) Ltd occupy and manage the premises under a licence and management 
agreement from JKO Holdings Ltd. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 10 

Page 188



Section K: Additional documentary requirements 
I 

The applicant must provide the following documentation, in addition to those documents already requested in 
prior sections of this aoolication form. 

Documents included with this aoolication lnclude.d 
1 The prescribed fee, in the form of a cheque made payable to the London Borough YesMNo LJ 

of Tower Hamlets (LBTH). 
2 Written consent of the lawful occupier of the premises or land who has control over the Yes~No LJ 

oremises or land 
3 Code of practice for dancers/performers Yes M No 
4 Policy for welfare of dancers/performers Yes llj No 
5 Code of practice for customers Yes No 
6 A personal details form (Part 2 of the application form) for each person named in the Yes !JI. No_ 

aoolication 
7 A basic CRB check for each person named in the application lb fuLLOW Yes Noll 
8 A recent passport size photograph for each person named in the application, each copy Yes LJNo ~r 

bearina the name in block caoitals of the oerson whose likeness it bears. Th Fouai"'1 
9 A site/location plan, (scale 1 :1250) to show the location of the premises YesVNo 
10 A premises plan (scale 1:100) of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of Yes k:]No"" 

which the licence is sought, showing: 
a) The internal layout of the premises including stage, bars, cloakroom, WCs, 

performance areas, dressing rooms, kitchen, and any external areas to be used 
(e.g. smoking areas). 

b) Public areas and staff/private areas to be clearly defined 
c) Uses for different areas in the premises (e.g. performance areas, reception etc.) 

I d) Any fixed structures or objects 
e) all means of ingress and egress from the premises 
f) Position of CCTV cameras 
g) The location and type of any fire safety and any other safety equipment 
h) The location of emergency exits 
i) The position of ramps, lifts or other facilities for the benefit of disabled people. 
j) Any parts of the premises that may be inaccessible to disabled people. 

Other standard metric scales may be acceptable if more practical for the size of the 
premises. 

11 A drawing (scale 1:100) showing the front elevation as existing (and as proposed if Yes~oLJ 
changes are to be made to it) of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which 
the licence is sought. Other standard metric scales may be acceptable if more practical 
for the size of the oremises. 
Evidence of public notice and service 

12 Complete copy of the newspaper advert advertising the application Yes \' No 
13 Copy of the notice displayed on or near the premises advertising the application Yes 111 No 
14 Copy of affidavit or statutory declaration that the notice of application has been 

displayed on or near the premises, in a place where the notice can be conveniently read 
Yes~ No....._ 

by the public as required by paragraph 10(10) schedule 3 to the local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended). 

15 Evidence of the due service upon the Chief officer of police as required by paragraph 
10(14) schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as 

Yes{l!No LJ 

amended), of a copy of this aoolication and its required documentation. 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 1 I 

Page 189



Section L: Correspondence and Contact Details for the Application 
Please give details of the person who may be contacted in relation to this application 

Name: Maria Guida 
Organisation : Fletcher Da'i Ltd. 
Postal Address: 56 Conduit Street London W1S 2YZ 
Telephone Number:   
Email: 

 

Position/role: Solicitor for the Applicant 
(e.g. Solicitor/Agent for the aoolicant) 

Section M: Private Information 
Is there any information on this form which you do not wish to be seen by members of the public? If so, 
state which information and the reasons why you do not wish it to be seen. Please note, any requests 
of this nature will be dealt on a case by case basis, and you will be contacted to discuss further if the 
information is considered necessary for public disclosure. 

Please do not disclose the name and address of Applicant's Solicitor so as to avoid possible adverse 
publicity for the firm and in the interests of the personal safety of the individual solicitor herself. 
Please do not disclose the names of the freeholder, leaseholder, sub-lessee and of JKO Holdings Ltc 
in the interests of prtoecting the privacy of those parties. 

Section N: Declaration and signature of applicant 
The declaration must be signed in all cases : 

a) If the applicant is an individual, by that individual 
b) If the applicant is a partnership, by all individuals who are partners 
c) If the applicant is a company, by a director or the company secretary 
d) In any other case by a duly authorised officer of the applicant 

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the standard conditions applicable to a sex 
establishment licence within the London Borough of Tower Hamlets, and declare that the information 
given within this application form, to the best of my knowledge, is true and complete in every respect. 

Please use extra pages if necessary 
Name: Abdul Malik Signature 
Position Director, City Traders London Ltd Date 

Name: 
Position 

Application for Sexual Entertainment Venue 

Signature 
Date 

12 

 
_'2:_J_ M~ _ _.?._~------·-··------·-· 

Page 190



~ lf lr®@l@fi'§ 
~w 

30 Alie Street, London El BDA 

I Abdul Malik, company director of City Traders London Ltd (the company), such company being the 
lawful occupier of the premises, hereby give consent as director of the company to an application being 
made for a sexual entertainment venue under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 in respect of the venue known as: 

Club Enviee 
30 Alie Street 
London 
E18DA 

Dated this 27th day of May 2016 

........... . 
Abdul Malik 
Company Director 
City Traders London Ltd 

-
LBTH 

TRADING STANDARDS 
3 1 ~.l .A y 2016 

LICENSING 

185291.1 

City Traders London Ltd, T /A Club Enviee, 30 Alie Street, London, El BOA, Company Reg: 8756000 
www.cclubenviee.com 

1 

Page 191



LBTH 
TRADING STANDARDS 

3 1 MAY 2016 

Application for the Grant, Ren wal, Transfer or Variat~ of a exual 
Entertainm nt Veit~(!.~ I Nu 

Schedule 3 of the Local Govern ent {Miscellaneous Provisions) A t 1982 

Part Two: Personal Details Form 

A separate form must be completed by every person named in the application, including any 
individual who will be responsible for management of the premises in the absence of the licence 
holder. Where the applicant is not an individual, then a form should be completed for each 
director or partner etc. 

This part of the application will not be made publicly available, but will be made available to 
officers of the Council, a sub-committee or committee determining the application and to other 
relevant public bodies such as the Police. 

Forename(s) Antonio Salvatore Date of Birth 
Surname Pom'lJ"ico Place of Birth _____ 
Previous Name(s) Date of becoming -- --
Gender Male a UK resident 

Permanent Residential Address: 
 

Any previous address within the last 3 years 

Position in relation to the applicant -
{e.g. Director, Partner, Manager etc) Floor Manager 

1. Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offence, whether in the UK or elsewhere? 
YesD No~ 

If yes, please complete the details below: 

Name at time of Date of conviction Place of Nature of offence Sentence 
conviction conviction 

Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary. 
2. To your knowledge, are you currently the subject of any criminal investigation? YesLJNo~ 

If yes, please provide full details: 

3. Have you ever had any civil legal action taken against you? Yes LJNo'9lJ 

If yes, please provide full details: • 

Page 192



4. Have you ever been disqualified from holding a sex establishment licence? Yes DNollJ 

If Yes, please provide details: 

5. Have you ever been involved in the management of a business, whether as a proprietor, director, 
company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise which has had any of the following types 
of licence refused, reviewed or revoked? 

Sex Establishment licence 
Licence for the sale or supply of alcohol 
Licence for the provision of entertainment, whether sexual or otheiwise. 
Personal licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

If yes to any of the above, please provide full details: 

Yes 0Nofil 
Yes 0No !il' 
YesONo~_ 
Yes 0No r;,f 

6. Have you ever been declared bankrupt or entered into an arrangement with creditors or an Individual 
Voluntary Arrangement? Yes 0No lit 
If yes, please provide full details: 

7. Have you ever been disqualified from acting as a company director? YesLJNoM 

If yes, please provide full details: 

8. Please state any further information that you wish to be taken into account when the application is 
considered. 

Please note that the name of the club has recently changed to Club Enviee and we are in the process of changing 
all codes of conduct and tariffs etc to show the new name. The name Charlies Angels may still appear on some 
of the doucmentation enclosed. 

I declare that the information on this form is true and complete. 

Name: -~ntonio Pom8[ico_______ Date 

Position Manager 

Page 193



[ == 

Application for the Grant, Renewal, Transfer or Variation of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence 

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

. Partfwo: Personal Details Form 

A separate form must be completed by every person named in the application, including any 
individual who will be responsible for management of the premises in the absence of the licence 
holder. Where the applicant is not an individual, then a form should be completed for each 
director or partner etc. 

This part of the application will not be made publicly available, but will be made available to 
officers of the Council, a sub-committee or committee determining the application and to other 
relevant public bodies such as the Police. 

Forename(s) Rosanna Date of Birth 
Surname Place of Birth _ 
Previous Name(s) Date of becoming 
Gender female a UK resident 

Permanent Residential Address: 

Any previous address within the last 3 years 

Position in relation to the applicant 
Assistant Manager -

(e.g. Director, Partner, Manager etc) 
1. Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offence, whether in the UK or elsewhere? 

YesD No~ 

If yes, please complete the details below: 

Name at time of Date of conviction Place of Nature of offence Sentence 
conviction conviction 

~ 

Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary. 
2. To your knowledge, are you currently the subject of any criminal investigation? Yes LJNoiill 

If yes, please provide full details: 

3. Have you ever had any civil legal action taken against you? Yes LJN0'9l1 

If yes, please provide full details: 

Page 194



4. Have you ever been disqualified from holding a sex establishment licence? Yes DNoilJ 

If Yes, please provide details: 

5. Have you ever been involved in the management of a business, whether as a proprietor, director, 
company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise which has had any of the following types 
of licence refused, reviewed or revoked? 

Sex Establishment licence YesONo~ 
Licence for the sale or supply of alcohol YesONo 
Licence for the provision of entertainment, whether sexual or otherwise. YesDNo 
Personal licence under the Licensing Act 2003 YesONo 

If yes to any of the above, please provide full details: 

6. Have you ever been declared bankrupt or entered into an arrangement with creditors or an Individual 
Voluntary Arrangement? Yes 0No 'M 
n yes, please provide full details: 

-
7. Have you ever been disqualified from acting as a company director? Yes LJNo M 

If yes, please provide full details: 

8. Please state any further information that you wish to be taken into account when the application is 
considered . 

• 8Ffl U=1e el::lfF9A~.Qesi9Rate:d eceOJisas SI apes:ui&GF aAel General Mtu=iegei:: Qt Gl:iar.lie•s AR9els-
We h4've 1 an Uie ve1me as a ge11tleu rau•s clab ii 1 the saffie. leeaUeR fer a flt:HttbeF-ef-yeaFS.. 

- and are ~a1313y to work wnn the lcenslng1WH101it~ eA aAy asp-est of o'=!r sh:1l3 as a·seJQ,la,( 
entertah II 1 Jfli .ii \lHI u•• 

 

I declare that the information on this form is true and complet

Name: Date 27 ~a~ 2016 

Position Assistant Manager 
- ------------- -·---

Page 195



Appendix 4 

Page 196



30 Alie Street

Map 1

Page 197



30 Alie Street

Map 2

Page 198



30 Alie Street

Map 3

Page 199



Appendix 5 

Page 200



H.M. LAND REGISTRY 

ORDNANCE SUR VEY 

PLAN REFERENCE 

ScJle . 11 1250 

GREATER LONDON 

BQROUl.tt 0 1 TOWER llAHllH 

I 
;~-

/ 

Ill ..., 

? • 
> 
JI 

; , : .. 
: .... 

\\ 

. . 
.. • ·· ·········· ······ , r PRESco: STREET 

I~ ~f---- sL_, 

I 

This official copy Is Incomplete without the preceding notes page. 

I 

TITLE NUMBER 

24u0 73 

TQ3381 AK 

.. .. 
•t 

© Crown copyright 1969. 

-(/) 
<I l ... L 

Page 201



,~ ·- .... 

....,...__r ti 

LBTH 
TR,ADING STANDARDS 

3 1 MAY 2016 

l ICENSING 

PREr.llSES LICENCE ao.c··---a. ............... ------..-.----.. ~· -------'IM ..... --~ ...... 00. .......... "' .... ..._.. ... _ _ ,.,._,_~~-11 .............. _ 
.-..------""~------~-........... ,,.__"" _ _ ..... ___ .., ____ .._ 

G. 

-1 

I .. 

ll:GlND • rJH.1.UUT 

§ 

&. ---a "" .... -.. .. --
,A. :-==.·-

~ ;;_-:=·"' 
~ll =~:-"! 
[£J3 2:0EEf::.'="" .. 
ci 
C}>~--

9 ~~':E..
rnLM ::::...~~ 

~ --.. ~ 
CiiiJ ___ _.. 

rnD---.. ·· 
·~· ---
ACTIVITY U:GIND 

--.... ,.,._._ 
--~ 
_.._ __ 
---· -J _. .. __ 

u.uu,.1 
tt.UUU3 
1uut111 -

h""""'l•Mll•ll,~-1 
flt1nli•ll •n<il lltlfvrtl~""m•nl 

... 
~-"· 

--
156 AOOl rev3 

Page 202



------\_.trf\-t 
tfi/o.DING !>.1 ~NO~f"OS 

3 \ \'A~~ ?.\l\6 

...... 

---

__ ... """ 
~ .. ,-~CiiiJ ,.. __ _, 

rn!J---... ··. hll--
~mnua• 

loo..-- .. --·o----
~-

~=:=--:' 
-~ .. ---

.r-"'"-
IL1LJM4I 
tUUtUJ 
H . 11.Hl1 l .. .. 

156 A002 rev3 J 

Page 203



SIG~AGE "•IOll-.......... ._ 

~~ 
1 

D 
I 
r DD I ~1 JI 
I ' I • i • I I 
' 1- .i 11 .. .._ I ,.. ., 

lhvM!9t • 1• 

~ ..,.~~ ~ I 
~ B 1 5 ~ I i~- · ~ r1 I 

TRADIMG STANDARDS I 
3 1 MAY 2016 

PREMISES LICENCE 
c:ii-... _ .. _°" ___ ....,.. ___ ..., _______ .. 
____ ., ___ 'TIM•-..-
-~ ...... u. ............... .......,_ ....... ...,_ , .. _,_.......,l ..... 11 .... W ... __ _____ ... _.., ___ ... _ --........ -~--..--c..-..,. .... _...... ___ .... _ 

ffi 
&h ..... ,. .. _ 
a ., .... ____ 
••• ~-.... -·-
~ --""-"""'' 
M 

__ .., __ 
-gd -~ .. --_,..,iin.,_ ---[2:~ 

__ .. __ 
-..,~_,. --CJ [=11=---

c;:i 5:7--:"7-.-= 
C!ILH :::..-;;:-1 ~ __ .. _ 
~ -~---[iii] ___ _, 

OEJ ---IMll .. 
~: J ..,.__, 

•cnvtTY UOlND 

__ _.._ --~-_...,---·-· 
i. .. J --nw 

.. N1.W.hnMrlt.UMen.Nt 
ht11\llen •n• Jt•furblltl""'"t 

..... .. _...,...,._ .. 

156 A004 

Page 204



Appendix 6 

Page 205



Date: 28 th June 2016 

Premises Name: Club Enviee 

Address: 30 Alie Street,London E1 8DA 

Persons Present: LBTH Licensing Officer: Kathy driver & Damian Doherty 

Attendees: Antonio Pomerico – Floor Manager/DPS 

Condition Check Notes 

Code of Conduct for Performers  

Each performer must sign the Code of Conduct 
in their proper name, acknowledging that they 
have read and understood and are prepared to 
abide by the Code of Conduct. 

Is there a Code of Conduct in place? 

Yes, signed copies from 
performers kept in file along with 
photocopies of passport, proof of 
address. Only have 2 or 3 
performers working at present as 
business have been struggling. 
No of clients small in numbers. 

House Rules 

The House Rules shall be prominently and 
legibly displayed close to each entrance of the 
Premises. 

The House Rules must be made known to 
customers prior to their admission to the 
Premises when sexual entertainment is provided 

Signs must be displayed at appropriate locations 
advising that any customer attempting to make 
physical contact with a performer will be asked to 
leave. 

In place at the main bar to the 
premises, along with the 
premises licence and SEV 
licence. 

House Rule cards on each table 
and on each bar of the premises 
and every booth. 

Performer Safety Policy 

There must be a suitable policy for the safety of 
the performers when they leave the Premises.  

This may take the form of a notice in the dressing 
room 

Advise given by managers of exit 
rules and Code of Conduct 

Page 206



Door Staff 

A suitable and sufficient number of door 
supervisors and trained staff will be employed 
(based on a risk assessment) when sexual 
entertainment is offered. 

Details of Door Staff would ideally be retained in 
a log.   

Folder of all SIA staff provided, 
signing in and out sheets with 
records of their ID and SIA 
number. 2-4 SIA Staff  

The Venue interior 

The interior of the Premises where sexual 
entertainment is offered shall not be capable of 
being seen from the outside of the Premises. 

Works have been done from last 
year, extended bar panelling to 
ensure there is no sight of 
premises inside.  

The Venue Exterior 

The exterior is maintained with a suitable level of 
decorum (i.e. that it does not have anything 
that depicts, indicates or suggests that sexual 
entertainment takes place on the Premises). 

Previous signage removed from 
front of premises. Nothing visible. 

Public Access 

No member of the public shall be permitted to go 
anywhere outside the public areas. The public 
shall not be permitted access to the performers’ 
changing rooms. 

What would happen if a member of public was 
found in a non-public area? 

Members of the public may not enter or remain in 
the toilet cubicles in the company of any 
performer. Only one person at a time to enter a 
toilet cubicle. 

What would happen to the performer and patron 
if they were found in a toilet cubicle together? 

CCTV covering all areas, SIA 
and manager monitor the areas 
through CCTV monitors at the 
main bar area CCTV also covers 
the outside of the toilets. 

Male and female toilets. Female 
toilets used by performers. 

SIA would escort person from the 
premises.  

Page 207



CCTV 

CCTV shall be installed to cover the inside and 
the outside of the Premises, covering all public 
areas, including private performance areas and 
booths, entrances and exits, but excluding the 
interior of toilets. All cameras must be maintained 
in working order. All cameras shall continually 
record whilst the Premises are open to the public 
and the recorded images shall be kept available 
for a minimum of 31 days. 

Check all the above.  Ask to see recordings from 
previous days from multiple cameras. 

Specifically, is there CCTV covering: 

Public Access Areas 

Performance Areas and Booths 

Entrances and Exits 

CCTV managed by premises, 
CCTV Covering all main areas, 
courtyard to the front of the 
premises and each individual VIP 
booth on upper floor including 
staircase and outside toilet 
entrance. 
Monitors all working at time of 
visit.  

Memory storage has been 
problem in past, this has now 
been increased.  

DPS and Bar manager trained to 
use CCTV.  

Premises had been closed since 
last day of operation on 27th May 
2016. Decorators working at the 
time of the visit due to roof 
leak/flood, there had been 
damage to ground floor flooring 
and some damage to ceiling in 
VIP Room.  CCTV working in the 
office.  
No indication given of when they 
were likely to reopen.  

Advertising 

The Licensee shall neither cause nor permit the 
display of suggestive advertising content which is 
directed at or may be seen or heard by any 
person from within the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets, on any public highway, street, 
waterway or railway; in any place of general 
public use or access; or in publicly accessible 
areas of premises open to the public. 

How does the venue advertise? 

If there is a website, is it compliant? 

Venue having difficulty 
advertising due to restrictions 
and required clarity whether 
advertising restricted purely in 
Tower Hamlets or elsewhere.  

Website compliant, notice for 
adults only Over 18’s.  

Page 208



Performers 

With each record the Licensee shall keep a copy 
of a photographic form of identity and proof of 
address of the performer. With each record the 
Licensee shall keep a clear copy of an 
authorised document demonstrating that each 
Performer and each member of the staff is 
entitled to work within the UK. 

These should be retained and made available for 
inspection.  Is there a copy of this log? 

On days when sexual entertainment is provided, 
the Licensee or their representative shall keep a 
record of those performers working at the 
Premises on that day in a daily record. 

Is there a copy of this log? 

All logs produced and records 
kept of passport and proof of 
address. 

If no record of proof of being able 
to work, the person is not 
employed.  

Signing in sheets kept. Some 
performers start at 6:30 some at 
20:00 hrs.  

Tarriffs 

The Licensee shall prominently and legibly 
display the drinks tariff at or by the bar and at the 
entrance. 

Are these available? 

The Licensee shall so far as reasonably 
practicable keep such records as are necessary 
to prove that the sums charged and payments 
taken are for products or services advertised on 
the relevant tariff at the amount shown on that 
tariff. 

Is there a log? 

Tarriffs stated alongside House 
Rules at main bar. 

Voucher system in place where 
vouchers are purchased at main 
bar on ground floor.  
Record of vouchers kept, monies 
all managed by the Director, 
Abdul Malik. 

Additional Notes: 

Fire alarm checked 1 month ago.  Advised on some additional fire exit signs at First 
floor level, particularly from larger VIP room to the rear of the premises. Also above 
central staircase to First Floor and signage directing people down onto escape route. 

Page 209



Appendix 7 

Page 210



• 

-~ 
I 

Page 211



Appendix 8 

Page 212



CLUB ENVIEE 
30 ALIE STREET, WNDON El BOA • Tel: 0207 481 9288 

CODE OF CONDUCT & PERFORMERS ETIOUETIE 

1. You must be over 18 years of age and legally entitled to work in the UK, Proof of age and passport, Driving 
Licence, Proof of residence or work permit or other suitable proof of right to work in the UK will be required. 

2. We will be under no liability to make PAYE deductions or tax returns on your behalf 
3. You will be fully responsible for any negligence as performers. You will arrange your own insurance to cover 

sickness, damage and loss of personal possessions etc. 

GENERAL CONDUCT 
4. You must arrive on time and be on the floor when your shift commences, otherwise you may incur a fine if 

you are late. 
5. You will not be able to leave the premises during working hours apart from in exceptional circumstances and 

with the consent of the management. 
6. You will not be able to bring your boyfriend or husband or friends to the club as a guest. If they come to 

collect you they must wait outside. 
7. You are not allowed to leave with or be associated with customers outside the club under any circumstances. 
8. You must not exchange contact information with customers at any point & you will not be able to leave the 

premises until all customers have left or unless you have arranged it with management first. 
9. The club is a drug free zone. Drugs of any kind will not be tolerated in any part of the Club. Anyone found 

using, selling, or buying drugs will be instantly dismissed and will be fined. 
10. CCTV cameras are in operation at all times in the entire club. These cameras are for your own protection. 
11. The management may ask to inspect your personal property at any time. 
12. You must disclose any medical conditions you have to the manager on duty at the start of your shift. 
13. You must inform the management if you drive into work so we can make sure that you don't drink through 

the night and drive home. 
14. Anyone found drink driving or attempting to drink and drive will be instantly dismissed. 
15 If 3/4 songs have passed (approx 15mins) and the customer you are speaking to is not having a dance you 

MUST move on and let somebody else try. "The club is quiet so I thought I'd stay with him" is not an excuse. 
If he is getting your company for free he will not pay you. 

16. If there is any doubt by the management or a customer has a dispute regarding a card payment transaction 
your money could be held for the duration of the dispute. If the monies are refunded at the end of the 
dispute then you will not receive the monies held. 

CONPUCT WHILST WORKING 
17. You must not touch or let customers touch you in any way under any circumstances even near the bar or at 

any time in the club doing a performance or not. 
18. You must not mislead the customers in any way into thinking that they will get more in VIP. 
19. The club will operate a stage Rota. You must not miss your allotted slot otherwise you may face a fine. 
20. You must always collect your dance fees in advance. Doing a 2nd Dance often results in a dispute, please do 

not do a 2nd dance without getting paid first, if you choose to do so it is at your own risk. 
21. If you have any issues or harassment from customers/colleagues, please refrain from taking matters in to 

your own hands and must inform the management immediately. 
22. You must not to put your shoes on the sofa. There may be (if you are caught) a fine of £50. 
23. Girls charging customers extra tips is not a problem for the club, however if the customer puts up a dispute 

even after few days etc. It will mean that you will have to pay back the money to him 
24. Girls must keep a record of how much money they make and how much they sign for. Please do not sign for 

an amount you have not received. 
25. Please neever tell customers that you have boyfriends, husband, or any social / domestic problems or you are 

Customers are here to have a good time and not get depressed! ...--· 
26. You must pre book your shift with the management a week before. . -

LBTH 

185256 I 

TRAD\NG STANDARDS 
3 1 MAY 2.016 

L\CENS\NG 
Page 213



27. The club will hold minimum of £100 on account at all times. This particularly applies to new girls. If you do 
not turn up for work, you will then lose your £100 security deposit. 

28. All girls must make sure that while performing for a customer he puts his hand on the either side of the 
seat. 

29. If you are spoken to by the management and you are asked to leave the customer, move away from the 
customer immediately. You can discuss the reason away from the customer and you will get an appropriate 
explanation. 

30. You must not refuse a drink from a customer, if you don't fancy alcoholic drink please arrange it with the 
waiter or the bar staff to give you a non alcoholic drink without the customer knowing. 

31. You must not wear the same dress all the time and you must also have jewelry and good make up. 
32. You are not allowed to eat or drink in the changing room. 
32 VIP Sit-down girls will not receive the vouchers at the time of transaction. The transaction will be recorded 

with floor managers who will do the transactions. The Funny Money will be given to you after the guest has 
left. This is to avoid confusion or any form of arguments in front of the customers, also for the reason it does 
not feel right at the time as even though the customer is paying for it, it should feel like they are not paying 
for it. 

33. If a customer wishes to have dance on the club floor, you must not refuse as we have a policy of dancing on 
the floor from the very first day. 

34. You are only allowed to smoke outside with or without a customer providing you have a smoking jacket 
provided by the club. 

35. Once you are in VIP, you are not allowed to come to changing room for any reason what so ever unless you 
inform the management. 

36. You are not allowed to come out to smoke If you are in VIP with a customer unless the customer wants to 
smoke himself. You must not force the customer to come and smoke. 

37. If your time is up, you must not leave your customer up in the VIP and you come down, you must bring him 
down with you. 

38. If you are caught stealing, or hiding any tips you will be asked to go home & will lose all the money we hold. 
40. You cannot take your bag & mobile phone on the floor at anytime regardless of dub being empty, you must 

not go to toilet or changing room with cash on you given by customer. If cash is found on you, you could be 
facing a fine and any money made on the night. 

41. You are not allowed to bring baby/wet wipes to the club, unless you get biodegradable wet wipes. 
42. No More than 2 girls should sit together in the club, this mean no group gossiping. 
43. House fee Is £85 week. It is the same even if you work one shift a week. 
44. You must not cancel your shift after booking. Once booked cannot be changed. 
45. If you tum up for work without booking your shift, you may incur a penalty of £50. 
46. You will not be able to chew gum whilst in the dub or anywhere in the building, if found chewing gum there 

will be a penalty of £20. 
47. No Smoking applies in all area inside the Club. 
48. You are not permitted to use or carry your mobile phone around the club. 
49. Lockers will be made available for your valuables (Subject to a £20 Security Deposit) 
50. The management will not be responsible for any loss or theft of your valuables while on the premises. We 

advise you do not leave anything of value unattended. 
51. Your dress code should always be of the highest standard including makeup. You will supply all your own 

Dress's/Costumes but they must be approved by the management. 
52. We do not encourage excessive drinking. The management reserves the right to remove you from the 
floor if they .feel you are becoming intoxicated. 

VOUCHERS 
53. Customers may purchase dance vouchers (Funny Money) if they run short of cash. They will be available to 

buy in £10, £20 and £100 funny money vouchers. (Additional surcharge will apply). 
54. The management will not tolerate abuse of credit cards in any form. Any performers found trying to obtain 

vouchers through deceit will be instantly dismissed. 
55. Vouchers must be surrendered at the end of the night and on the night you have earned them. The 

management will then pay the total of vouchers cashed on a pre arranged time (cheques or bank transfers 

185256 I 

Page 214



are also available as a form of payment. The week starts on Monday & finishes on Friday. All payments will be 
made on the following week. 

56. The performer must stay with the customer for the entire hour for sit downs if customers are paying for it. All 
sit down must be reported to the Floor Manager/House mum/or the General Manager. 

Main Recap 
57. All Dances are £20, you can dance in the main hall or in the private area. 
58. Sit down is £380per hour or 460 with champagne & 30minutes £220 or £320 with Champagne. 
59. All Sit Down money must be collected from the customer in advance by management. 
60. NO Touching the customers at all times. 
61. Be happy at all times, simply because you all are gorgeous. 
62. No chewing gum ... No gossiping ... No cat fighting ... 
63. You should only commence dancing at the beginning of a song. If in the middle of the song, wait until that 

song finishes ... 
64. Only one dance per song ... (NO TOUCHING YOUR PRIVATE PARTS WHILE PERFORMING). 
65. Please return your Funny Money to the designated management who will be the only one collecting it. 
66. For sit-downs you must notify manager before sit down commence . 
67. Girls can go outside to smoke, only with Jackets provided by the club. 
68. Eating food in the club area not allowed, and should ask management before going to the kitchen to eat. 
69. You must change to short clothing after 10pm ... 
70. YOU MUST KEEP THE CHANGING ROOM DOOR SHUT ALL TIMES. 
71. You need to get the money from the customer before you dance and exchange it for the funny money. 
72. 4pm shift finishes at 12 but if you decide to stay after then you will have to stay until the end. 
73. No strong perfumes and no instant tan. 
74. Once you are on a sit down with customers you are not allowed to come down until the time is up. 
76. You will have to do either Monday or Friday on alternative weeks plus must do a 4pm shift once a week. 
75. After Bpm you will have to go one stage in a rota and falling your turn, you will be fined. 
76. Do not approach the customers soon as they walk through the door you need to give them enough time to 

order a drink. You can make eye contact and say hello or flirt from a distance. 
77. English speaking at all times, even when the club is empty 
79. You must inform us every time you change your resident address so we can update our records. 

J8S256 I 

Page 215



DECLARATION 

I CONFIRM THAT:-

1. I am not employed by Club Enviee 
2. Club Enviee is under no obligation or liability to make PAYE or National Insurance 

deductions on my behalf. Club Enviee has offered me assistance to help if required. 
3. It is my responsibility to make a return to the Inland Revenue and pay any taxes due. 
4. I am legally entitled to work in the UK 
5. I declare that I am not VAT registered 
6. I will not hold Club Enviee's or any of its staff responsible for any acts of negligence 

on my behalf. 
7. I will take out my own insurance to cover loss of property, damage and sickness 
8. I have received, read and understood the code of conduct included with this document 

Page 1, 2 & 3. 

Please complete in block letters 

Name _____________________________ Stage Name. __________________ _ 

Full Address __________________________________________________ ~ 

___________________________ Postcode ____________________ __ 

Telephone ________________________ .Mobile 

Nationality Date of birth -------------------------- -------------------
Identification provided 1 --------------------------------------------

2 -------------------------------------------(copies of id will be made) 

Please advise of any medical condition: .................. .......................................... ............................. . 

I declare that all information I have provided in this employment form is true & correct. I also 
confirm that I am legally entitled to work in the United Kingdom & will be liable if any 
information found wrong in this form. 

I also declare that I do not have any medical condition which may prohibit me to work in a 
nightclub. 

Signature -------------------------- Date ------------------------

185256 I 

Page 216



Charlie's Angels 
CUSTOMER HOUSE RULES: CODE OF CONDUCT FOR OUR 
CUSTOMERS 

We want you to enjoy your evening at Charlie's Angels. However we have a 
few "House Rules" that are here for everyone's benefit and protection, so we 
would appreciate it if you can take a few minutes to read the following 
carefully. 

1. PLEASE DO NOT UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES MAKE ANY 
PHYSICAL CONTACT OR TOUCH ANY PERFORMER DURING 
HER PERFORMANCE. ANY CUSTOMER WHO DOES NOT 
RESPECT THIS RULE AND WHO ATTEMPTS TO MAKE 
PHYSICAL CONTACT WITH A PERFORMER WILL BE ASKED TO 
LEAVE. 

2. PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE MUST BE NO INTENTIONAL 
PHYSICAL CONTACT BETWEEN A PERFORMER AND A 
CUSTOMER OTHER THAN THE TRANSFER OF MONEY OR A 
TOKEN AT THE BEGINNING OR END OF A PERFORMANCE. 
FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT A HANDSHAKE IS 
PERMITTED, BUT KISSING IS NOT PERMITTED. 

3. PLEASE DO NOT ATTEMPT TO PHOTOGRAPH, FILM OR 
ELECTRONICALLY RECORD ANY PERFORMANCE. 

4. THERE MUST BE NO AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION IN ANY 
PERFORMANCE. 

5. NO CUSTOMER CAN BE ADMITTED OR BE ALLOWED TO 
REMAIN ON OUR PREMISES IF THEY ARE DEEMED 
INTOXICATED OR UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF ILLEGAL 
SUBSTANCES. 

6. PLEASE DO NOT THROW GRATUITIES OR OTHER ITEMS AT A 
PERFORMER. 

Page 217



Charlie's Angels 
CUSTOMER HOUSE RULES: CODE OF CONDUCT FOR OUR 
CUSTOMERS 

7. THE FRONT DOOR OF OUR PREMISES MUST REMAIN CLOSED, 
OTHER THAN FOR THE PURPOSES OF EXIT AND ENTRY. 
PLEASE ENTER AND EXIT THE PREMISES PROMPTLY TO 
AVOID US BREACHING THIS RULE. 

8. PLEASE RESPECT OUR PERFORMER'S PRIVACY AND DO NOT 
ATTEMPT TO ENTER ANY PRIVATE AREA, DRESSING ROOM OR 
CHANGING ROOM AREA. 

9. OUR PREMISES ARE MONITORED BY CONSTANT CCTV FOR 
THE SAFETY AND PROTECTION OF ALL OF OUR PERFORMERS 
AND OUR CUSTOMERS. 

IO.CUSTOMERS ARE NOT PERMITTED TO ENTER ANY TOILET 
CUBICLE IN THE COMPANY OF A PERFORMER. PLEASE 
ENSURE THAT ONLY ONE PERSON AT A TIME ENTERS A 
TOILET CUBICLE. 

11.ALL CUSTOMERS MUST BE OVER THE AGE OF 21 YEARS OLD 
AND ANYONE WHO APPEARS TO BE UNDER THE AGE OF 21 
WILL BE ASKED TO PROVIDE A PASS SCHEME APPROVED 
PHOTOGRAPHIC FORM OF l.D. 

12.0UR DRINKS MENU AND PERFORMANCE TARIFF WITH PRICES 
ARE CLEARLY DISPLAYED AT THE RECEPTION, BAR AND ON 
EACH OF THE TABLES. LAST ORDERS FROM THE BAR AT 3:30 
AM. ALL BEVERAGES MUST BE CONSUMED BY 4AM WHEN 
THE PREMISES CLOSE. 

Thank you for taking the time to read our House Rules. Your understanding 
and assistance in this is greatly appreciated. Please do not hesitate to ask a 
member of club staff if you have any queries. 
The Management, Charlie's Angels. 

CONTINUE ON THE FRONT •.. PLEASE TURN OVER 

Page 218



CLUB ENVIEE 
30 Alie Street London E1 BOA 
Tel: 0207 481 9288 

Dear Performer 

POLICY FOR WELFARE OF PERFORMERS 

--
LBTH 

TRADING STANDARDS 
3 1 MAY 20·15 

LICENSING 

Your welfare is paramount to us. The following notes will give you guidance on how we 
will endeavour to protect you from harm, in order to promote a safe, happy working 
environment for all performers, staff and management. 

YOUR SAFETY IS PARAMOUNT 

1. CCTV cameras are in operation at all times in the entire club. These cameras are 
for your own protection and safety. 

2. Please disclose any medical conditions you have to the manager on duty at the 
start of your shift so that we are aware of this. 

3. If you feel unwell at any time whilst at work, please inform one of the 
management. They assess the situation sympathetically and will discuss whether 
you should rest in the area designated for staff or, will arrange for you to be taken 
home safely. 

Drugs and Alcohol 

4. Club Enviee is a drug free zone. Drugs of any kind will not be tolerated in any part 
of the club. Any performer found using, selling, or buying drugs will be asked to 
leave and will be permanently barred from the club. 

5. Please report any customer whom you are aware is taking drugs or encouraging 
you to do so on our premises, to management. 

6. Being drunk means that you may no longer have sufficient awareness or regard 
for your safety or that of those around you. Please avoid becoming drunk and 
know your own limits in relation to alcohol. Please drink responsibly. 

7. We do not encourage excessive drinking. The management reserves the right to 
remove you from the floor if they feel you are becoming intoxicated. This is for 
your own safety. 

185297.1 
Page 219



CLUB ENVIEE 
30 ALIE STREET, LONDON E1 8DA Tel : 0207 481 9288 

Getting Home Safely 

8. To avoid drunkenness p,lease use your discretion and arrange with the waiter or 
the bar staff to give you a non-alcoholic drink. 

9. You must inform the management if you drive into work so we can make sure 
that you do not drink through the night and drive home. If we deem it 
necessary will arrange transport for you for your own safety. 

10. Please inform us if you are being collected when you leave work. We would ask 
that any one collecting you waits outside for you. 

11. Please inform us of your mode of transport home and your method of getting 
home. If necessary we can arrange suitable transport for you so that you can 
get home safely, at any time. Please ask management 

Your Conduct with Customers - Safety First 

12. We put your safety and welfare first. You must not to leave with or be 
associated with customers outside the club under any circumstances. 

13. Do not exchange contact information with customers at any point. You will not 
be able to leave the premises until after all customers have left (unless you 
have arranged it with management first}. 

14. You must not touch or let customers touch you in any way, under any 
circumstances, even near the bar or at any time in the club whether you are 
performing or not. 

15. If you have any issues or experience harassment from customers or 
colleagues, please refrain from taking matters in to your own hands and inform 
the management immediately. 

16. While performing for a customer he must place his hand on the either side of 
the seal 

17. For your own safety, if you are spoken to by the management and you are 
asked to leave the customer, move away from the customer immediately. You 
can discuss the reason away from the customer and you will get an appropriate 
explanation. 

185297.1 

.. 

Page 220



• 

CLUB ENVIEE 
30 ALIE STREET, LONDON E1 8DA Tel: 0207 481 9288 

Security 

18. We have lockers available for your valuables (Subject to a small Security 
Deposit). 

19. We advise you do not leave anything of value unattended - please use the 
lockers provided. 

Finally ... 

20. Finally if you have any issues and you do not feel comfortable discussing this 
with one of the floor managers, please do not be afraid to speak to your "house 
mum." We employ our house manageress to look after your welfare and 
protect your interests. Please feel free to raise anything with her, as she is there 
for your protection and well-being. She is there to help you. 

The Management 
Club Enviee 
(Updated) 30 May 2016 

185297.1 
Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 9

P
age 223



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 10 

Page 225



P
age 1 

W
h

itech
ap

el 
W

ard
 P

ro
file 

C
orporate R

esearch U
nit 

M
ay 2014 

Page 226



P
age 2 

C
o

n
ten

ts 
P

opulation
 ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3

E
thnicity

 .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4

R
eligion

 ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4

H
ousing

 ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5

H
ealth - Lim

iting illness or disability
 ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 7

U
npaid care provision

 ................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7

Labour m
arket participation

 ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8

S
ocio econom

ic groups
 ................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 9

Q
ualification levels

 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1
0

In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

 

T
he w

ard profiles have been produced for all 20 w
ard s in T

ow
er H

am
lets. T

hey provide the social, econom
ic and dem

ographic characteristics 
of each w

ard in the borough developing a broad picture of the area and help describing local differences.   

In M
ay 2014, the num

ber of w
ards increased from

 17 to 20. T
he changes w

ere m
ade by the Local G

overnm
ent B

oundary C
om

m
ission for 

E
ngland, in order to ensure that every councillor in T

ow
er H

am
lets represented roughly the sam

e num
ber of residents.  T

he changes m
ean that 

no w
ard w

ill have a population variance of greater than 10 per cent. A
s a result of the changes, the average population per councillor w

ill be 
4,029 in 2014, rising to 4,417 by 2018, according to projected population grow

th.   

D
ata from

 the 2011 C
ensus has been used throughout this w

ard profile as this still provides the single best source of statistics w
hich are 

available at geography sm
all enough to be aggregated up in to the new

 w
ards. W

hile m
ore recent estim

ates of the resident population are 
available for the borough and old w

ard boundaries, these cannot be used to infer the current population according to the new
 w

ard 
boundaries.    

Page 227



P
age 3 

P
o

p
u

latio
n

 

A
g

e S
tru

ctu
re 

F
igure 1: P

roportion of population by age

( S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

103E
W

 - A
ge by single year) 

•
A

t the tim
e of the 2011 C

ensus, the population for the W
hitechapel

w
ard 

w
as 

14,190 
w

hich 
accounted for 

5.9 
per 

cent 
of 

the total
population of T

ow
er H

am
lets.

•
T

he w
ard had 6,682 m

ales and 6,203 fem
ales providing a gender

split in the w
ard of 51.9 per cent m

ale and 48.1 per cent fem
ale.

•
T

he population density in this w
ard w

as 148 people per hectare,
higher than the borough average of 129 people per hectare.

•
T

he W
hitechapel w

ard had a low
er proportion both of residents aged

65+
 and aged 0-15 years old than the borough average.

T
able 1: N

um
ber and proportion of residents by age range 

R
esid

en
ts b

y A
g

e 
0-15 

16-64 
65+ 

T
o

tal 

W
h

itech
ap

el 
2,245 

11,215 
730 

14,190 
W

h
itech

ap
el %

 
15.8%

 
79.0%

 
5.1%

 
100%

 
T

o
w

er H
am

lets %
 

19.7%
 

74.1%
 

6.1%
 

100%
 

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

103E
W

 - A
ge by single year) 

6
.0

%
4

.0
%

2
.0

%
0

.0
%

2
.0

%
4

.0
%

6
.0

%

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0
+

W
h

ite
c
h

a
p

e
l

LB
T

H

Page 228



P
age 4 

E
th

n
icity 

F
igure 2: E

thnicity

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

201E
W

 - E
thnic group) 

R
elig

io
n

F
igure 3: R

eligion

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

208E
W

 – R
eligion) 

•
A

t the tim
e of the 2011 C

ensus, 8,416 residents in the w
ard w

ere B
M

E
(59 per cent). T

his proportion w
as higher than the borough average of

54 per cent.
•

R
esidents 

of 
B

angladeshi 
origin 

accounted 
for 

38 
per 

cent 
of 

the
population 

(5,421 
residents), 

a 
higher 

proportion 
than 

the 
borough

average.
•

T
here 

w
ere 

3,718 W
hite 

B
ritish 

residents 
in 

the W
hitechapel 

w
ard.

T
here w

as a higher proportion of residents w
ho are W

hite B
ritish in the

w
ard com

pared to the borough average.
•

T
he 

three 
largest 

ethnic 
groups 

in 
the 

borough 
(W

hite 
B

ritish,
B

angladeshi and W
hite O

ther) accounted for 79 per cent of all residents
in this w

ard.

•
T

he proportion of residents w
ho identified them

selves as C
hristian w

as
19.3 per cent – the second low

est proportion of residents out of the
borough’s 20 w

ards. A
t 40.4 per cent of the population, the proportion of

M
uslim

 residents w
as significantly higher than the borough average.

•
2,742 residents in the W

hitechapel w
ard explicitly stated that they had

no 
religion, 

this 
equated 

to 
19.3 

per 
cent 

of 
the 

w
ard 

population,
com

pared to the borough average of 19.1 per cent.
•

T
ow

er H
am

lets had a significantly higher proportion of residents w
ho did

not state their religion on the census form
 w

hen com
pared to London

and the rest of E
ngland. In the W

hitechapel w
ard there w

ere 2,460
residents w

ho did not state their religion – accounting for 17.3 per cent
of the w

ard’s population, higher than the borough average.

2
6

%
3

3
%

4
7

%

8
1

%
1

4
%

1
2

%

1
3

%

5
%

5
%

3
8

%
3

2
%

4
%

7
%

1
3

%

1
3

%
1

1
%

1
9

%
8

%

0
%

2
0

%

4
0

%

6
0

%

8
0

%

1
0

0
%

W
h

ite
c
h

a
p

e
l

LB
T

H
Lo

n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

A
ll O

th
e

r

B
la

c
k

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
sh

i

M
ix

e
d

W
h

ite
 o

th
e

r

W
h

ite

B
ritish

1
9

.3
%

2
7

.1
%

4
8

.4
%

5
9

.4
%

5
.0

%
4

0
.4

%
3

4
.5

%

1
2

.4
%

5
.0

%
1

9
.3

%
1

9
.1

%
2

0
.7

%
2

4
.7

%
1

7
.3

%
1

5
.4

%
8

.5
%

7
.2

%

0
%

2
0

%

4
0

%

6
0

%

8
0

%

1
0

0
%

W
h

ite
c
h

a
p

e
l

LB
T

H
Lo

n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

R
e

lig
io

n
 n

o
t sta

te
d

N
o

 re
lig

io
n

O
th

e
r re

lig
io

n

S
ik

h

M
u

slim

Je
w

ish

H
in

d
u

B
u

d
d

h
ist

C
h

ristia
n

Page 229



P
age 5 

H
o

u
sin

g
 

T
en

u
re

1

F
igure 4: T

enure of households

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

405E
W

 - T
enure – H

ouseholds) 

H
o

u
seh

o
ld

 size

•
T

ow
er 

H
am

lets 
as 

a 
w

hole 
had 

a 
significantly 

low
er 

proportion 
of

households w
ho w

ere ow
ner-occupier com

pared to the London average
(26.6 per cent com

pared to 49.5 per cent).  T
he proportion of socially

rented households in the borough w
as alm

ost double that of the London
average. 

 
T

here 
w

as 
also 

a 
higher 

proportion 
of 

privately 
rented

households com
pared to the London average.

•
T

here w
ere 5,707 households in the W

hitechapel w
ard.  C

om
pared to the

other 
w

ards, 
W

hitechapel 
had 

a 
higher 

than 
average 

proportion 
of

households com
pared to the borough average, accounting for 5.6 per

cent of the w
hole.

•
22.7 per cent of households in the w

ards w
ere ow

ner-occupied, a low
er

rate than the borough average of 26.6 per cent.
•

T
here w

ere a low
er than average proportion of socially rented properties

in 
this 

w
ard 

but 
a 

higher 
than 

average 
proportion 

of 
private 

rented
properties.  T

ogether, the proportion of renters (76.1 per cent) w
as low

er
than the borough average (72.2 per cent).

F
igure 5: T

enure of households

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

405E
W

 - T
enure – H

ouseholds) 

•
T

he proportion of households in the W
hitechapel w

ard w
ith three or m

ore
people accounted for 34 per cent of the total households in the w

ard. T
his

proportion w
as just below

 the borough average of 35 per cent.
•

O
n C

ensus day, 680 households w
ere recorded as having five or m

ore
people living in them

.  T
his equates to 11.9 per cent of the households in

the w
ard and w

as low
er than the average for T

ow
er H

am
lets (12.3 per

cent).
•

T
he average household size in the 

w
ard 

w
as 2.49 com

pared to the
borough average of 2.51.

1
T

e
n

u
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
s in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t w

h
e

th
e

r a
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 re
n

ts o
r o

w
n

s th
e

 a
cco

m
m

o
d

a
tio

n
 th

a
t it o

ccu
p

ie
s a

n
d

, if re
n

te
d

, c
o

m
b

in
e

s th
is w

ith
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t th

e
 ty

p
e

 o
f la

n
d

lo
rd

 w
h

o
 o

w
n

s o
r m

a
n

a
g

e
s th

e
 

a
cco

m
m

o
d

a
tio

n
.

2
2

.7
%

2
6

.6
%

4
9

.5
%

6
4

.1
%

3
1

.3
%

3
9

.6
%

2
4

.1
%

1
7

.7
%

4
4

.8
%

3
2

.6
%

2
5

.1
%

1
6

.8
%

0
%

2
0

%

4
0

%

6
0

%

8
0

%

1
0

0
%

W
h

ite
c
h

a
p

e
l

LB
T

H
Lo

n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

Liv
in

g
 R

e
n

t F
re

e

P
riv

a
te

 R
e

n
te

d

S
o

cia
l R

e
n

te
d

O
w

n
e

r O
ccu

p
ie

r

3
5

.4
%

3
4

.6
%

3
1

.6
%

3
0

.2
%

3
0

.5
%

3
0

.1
%

2
9

.0
%

3
4

.2
%

1
3

.1
%

1
3

.1
%

1
6

.1
%

1
5

.6
%

9
.0

%
1

0
.0

%
1

3
.5

%
1

3
.0

%
5

.0
%

5
.5

%
6

.0
%

4
.7

%

0
%

2
0

%

4
0

%

6
0

%

8
0

%

1
0

0
%

W
h

ite
c
h

a
p

e
l

T
o

w
e

r H
a

m
le

ts
Lo

n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

8
+

 p
e

o
p

le

7
 p

e
o

p
le

6
 p

e
o

p
le

5
 p

e
o

p
le

4
 p

e
o

p
le

3
 p

e
o

p
le

2
 p

e
o

p
le

1
 p

e
rso

n

Page 230



P
age 6 

H
o

u
seh

o
ld

 co
m

p
o

sitio
n

 
F

igure 6: H
ousehold com

position - percentage of households by type

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

113E
W

 - H
ousehold com

position – H
ouseholds) 

F
igure 7: H

ousehold com
position: percentage of residents that live in each household type

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

112E
W

 - H
ousehold com

position – P
eople) 

•
A

t the tim
e of the C

ensus, 39.3 per cent of all residents in the
w

ard lived in fam
ily households w

ith dependent children; this
proportion w

as low
er than the borough average of 46.2 per

cent.
•

H
ow

ever, 
fam

ilies 
w

ith 
dependent 

children 
occupied 

20.7
percent of the households in the w

ard, low
er than the borough

average of 26.6 per cent.
•

S
ingle adult households accounted for 35.4 per cent of all

households in the w
ard; how

ever 14 per cent of the w
ard’s

residents live in this type of household.
•

O
lder people living alone (65+

) accounted for 4 per cent of
households w

hich w
as low

er than the borough average of 6
per cent.

•
T

able 
3 

show
s 

the 
proportion 

of 
households 

that 
w

ere
overcrow

ded, had the required num
ber of bedroom

s, or w
ere

under-occupied at the tim
e of the C

ensus.  18 per cent of
households 

in 
the 

w
ard 

(1,026 
households) 

w
ere

overcrow
ded – higher than the average for the borough.

T
able 2: A

verage household size
 

A
verag

e resid
en

ts p
er 

h
o

u
seh

o
ld

 
W

h
itech

ap
el

T
o

w
er 

H
am

lets 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 

E
n

g
lan

d
 

H
o

u
seh

o
ld

s w
ith

 
d

ep
en

d
en

t ch
ild

ren
 

4.65 
4.30 

3.89 
3.78 

H
o

u
seh

o
ld

s w
ith

 n
o

n
-

d
ep

en
d

en
t ch

ild
ren

 
1.88 

1.81 
1.84 

1.78 

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

406E
W

 - H
ousehold size) 

T
able 3: O

ccupancy ratings 

A
rea 

O
vercro

w
d

ed
 

(-1 o
r less) 

R
eq

u
ired

 
B

ed
ro

o
m

s (0) 
U

n
d

er O
ccu

p
ied

 
(+1 o

r m
o

re) 
W

h
itech

ap
el 

1,026 
18%

 
3,146 

55%
 

1,535 
27%

 
T

o
w

er H
am

lets 
16,605 

16%
 

51,058 
50%

 
33,594 

33%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
370,531 

11%
 

1,282,883 
39%

 
1,612,759 

49%
 

E
n

g
lan

d
 

1,024,473 
5%

 
5,885,951 

27%
 

15,152,944 
69%

 
(S

ource: C
ensus 2011 Q

S
406E

W
 - H

ousehold size) 

4
3

.9
%

3
1

.5
%

1
6

.6
%

4
.1

% 4
.0

%
O

th
e

r h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s w

ith
o

u
t

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t ch
ild

re
n

S
in

g
le

 a
d

u
lt u

n
d

e
r 6

5

O
th

e
r h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s w
ith

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t ch
ild

re
n

Lo
n

e
 p

a
re

n
t fa

m
ily

 w
ith

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t ch
ild

re
n

S
in

g
le

 a
d

u
lt 6

5
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r

4
0

.6
%

3
8

.1
%

7
.6

% 8
.5

%

5
.2

%
O

th
e

r h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s w

ith
o

u
t

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t ch
ild

re
n

O
th

e
r h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s w
ith

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t ch
ild

re
n

S
in

g
le

 a
d

u
lt u

n
d

e
r 6

5

Lo
n

e
 p

a
re

n
t fa

m
ily

 w
ith

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t ch
ild

re
n

S
in

g
le

 a
d

u
lt 6

5
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r

Page 231



P
age 7 

H
ealth

 - L
im

itin
g

 illn
ess o

r d
isab

ility 

T
able 4: Lim

iting illness and disability 

A
rea 

D
ay-to

-d
ay 

activities 
lim

ited
 a lo

t 

D
ay-to

-d
ay 

activities lim
ited

 a 
little 

D
ay-to

-d
ay 

activities 
n

o
t lim

ited
 

W
h

itech
ap

el
808 

887 
12,495 

W
h

itech
ap

el (%
)

5.7%
 

6.3%
 

88.1%
 

T
o

w
er H

am
lets (%

) 
6.8%

 
6.7%

 
86.5%

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (%
) 

6.7%
 

7.4%
 

85.8%
 

E
n

g
lan

d
 (%

) 
8.3%

 
9.3%

 
82.4%

 

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

303E
W

 - Long-term
 health problem

 or disability)  

•
O

n 
C

ensus 
day, 

around 
808 

residents 
(5.7 

per 
cent) 

in
W

hitechapel had a long term
 health problem

 or disability lim
iting

the persons day to day activities a lot, w
hile 6.3 per cent (887

residents) had a long term
 health problem

 or disability lim
iting

the persons day to day activities a little.

•
In W

hitechapel, 
the 

rate 
of 

people 
w

ith 
a 

long 
term

 
health

problem
 or disability lim

iting day to day activities a lot w
as below

the T
ow

er H
am

lets (6.8 per cent), London (6.7 per cent) and
E

ngland rates.

•
T

he rate of people w
ith a long term

 health problem
 or disability

lim
iting day to day activities a little of 6.3 per cent w

as also
below

 the T
ow

er H
am

lets (6.7 per cent), London and E
ngland

averages.

U
n

p
aid

 care p
ro

visio
n

 

T
able 5: U

npaid care provision  

A
rea 

P
ro

vid
es 

n
o

 
u

n
p

aid
 

care 

P
ro

vid
es 1 

to
 19 h

o
u

rs 
u

n
p

aid
 care 

a w
eek 

P
ro

vid
es 20 

to
 49 h

o
u

rs 
u

n
p

aid
 care 

a w
eek 

P
ro

vid
es 50 

o
r m

o
re h

o
u

rs 
u

n
p

aid
 care a 

w
eek 

W
h

itech
ap

el
13,073 

680 
209 

228 
W

h
itech

ap
el (%

)
92.1%

 
4.8%

 
1.5%

 
1.6%

 
T

o
w

er H
am

lets (%
) 

92.4%
 

4.3%
 

1.4%
 

1.9%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (%
) 

91.6%
 

5.3%
 

1.3%
 

1.8%
 

E
n

g
lan

d
 (%

) 
89.8%

 
6.5%

 
1.4%

 
2.4%

 
(S

ource: C
ensus 2011 Q

S
301E

W
 - P

rovision of unpaid care)  

•
A

round 7.9 per cent of residents in W
hitechapel provided unpaid

care. 
T

he 
W

hitechapel 
rate 

w
as 

slightly 
above 

the 
T

ow
er

H
am

lets average (7.6 per cent) but below
 London (8.4 per cent)

and E
ngland (10.2 per cent) rates.

•
F

rom
 1,117 residents in W

hitechapel w
ho provided unpaid care,

around 209 residents provided care for 20 to 49 hours a w
eek,

w
hile 228 residents provided care for 50 or m

ore hours a w
eek.

•
T

he proportion of those providing care for 50 hours or m
ore of

1.6 
per 

cent 
in 

W
hitechapel 

w
as 

slightly 
below

 
the 

T
ow

er
H

am
lets rate of 1.9 per cent.

Page 232



P
age 8 

L
ab

o
u

r m
arket p

articip
atio

n
  

•
T

able 6 show
s a sum

m
ary

of labour m
arket participation of 

residents in the w
eek before the 

C
ensus 2011.  

•
T

he table sum
m

arises
econom

ic activity and inactivity of 
the 16 to 74 population in 
W

hitechapel and com
parator 

areas.  
•

T
he W

hitechapel w
ard

had a rate of 59.7 per cent 
residents in em

ploym
ent, slightly 

above the T
ow

er H
am

lets rate (57.6 per cent), but below
 London (62.4 percent) and E

ngland (62.1 per cent) averages.  
•

T
he proportion of econom

ically inactive residents, including those looking after hom
e &

 fam
ily (6.3 per cent) and long term

 sick (3.6 per cent) w
as

low
er in W

hitechapel. H
ow

ever, the proportion of econom
ically inactive students (10.5 per cent) w

as above the borough average. 
•

A
 total of 660 residents w

ere unem
ployed in W

hitechapel. W
hile the rate of 5.7 per cent w

as below
 the T

ow
er H

am
lets (6.7 per cent) rate, it w

as
above London (5.2 per cent) and E

ngland (4.4 per cent) averages. 

T
able 6: Labour m

arket participation - E
conom

ic active (E
A

) and E
conom

ic Inactive (E
I) (totals and %

) 

A
rea 

E
A

: In
 

em
p

lo
ym

en
t 

E
A

 
U

n
em

p
lo

yed
 

E
A

: 
F

u
ll-

tim
e 

stu
d

en
t  

E
I: 

R
etired

 
E

I: 
S

tu
d

en
t 

(in
cl. 

fu
ll-

tim
e) 

E
I: 

L
o

o
kin

g
 

after 
h

o
m

e / 
fam

ily 

E
I: 

L
o

n
g

-
term

 
sick o

r 
d

isab
led

 

E
I: 

O
th

er 

W
h

itech
ap

el 
6,940 

660 
713 

436 
1,224 

738 
423 

495 
W

h
itech

ap
el (%

) 
59.7 

5.7 
6.1 

3.7 
10.5 

6.3 
3.6 

4.3 
T

o
w

er H
am

lets (%
) 

57.6 
6.7 

5.5 
4.7 

9.9 
7.0 

4.5 
4.0 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (%
) 

62.4 
5.2 

4.1 
8.4 

7.8 
5.2 

3.7 
3.2 

E
n

g
lan

d
 (%

) 
62.1 

4.4 
3.4 

13.7 
5.8 

4.4 
4.0 

2.2 
(S

ource: C
ensus 2011 K

S
601E

W
 to K

S
603E

W
 - E

conom
ic activity by sex, P

opulation 16 to 74) 

U
n

em
p

lo
ym

en
t rate o

f 16 to
 64 (eco

n
o

m
ic active p

o
p

u
latio

n
 o

n
ly) 

F
igure 8: U

nem
ploym

ent rate of 16 to 64 – econom
ic active population only 

•
F

igure 8 on the right show
s the unem

ploym
ent rate based on the

econom
ically active population only. T

his m
easure is the better

unem
ploym

ent m
easure but it is in general higher com

pared to the
rate based on the proportion of all residents in the 16 to 74 age
group as show

n above.

•
W

hitechapel had the 6
th low

est unem
ploym

ent rate in the borough
w

ith 10.1 per cent, nearly 2 percentage points below
 the T

ow
er

H
am

lets rate.

•
O

n C
ensus day, the highest unem

ploym
ent rate w

as recorded in
Lansbury (18.8 per cent) and the low

est in S
t K

atharine’s and
W

apping w
ith only 4.9 per cent.

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011: Q
S

601E
W

 - E
conom

ic activity) 

18.8

16.8

16.8

16.6

16.0

15.7

15.6

15.1

13.9

13.8

12.2

11.0

10.4

10.2

10.1

8.4

8.2

8.2

6.6

4.9

12.0

8.9

7.6

0 2 4 6 8
1

0
1

2
1

4
1

6
1

8
2

0

%

Page 233



P
age 9 

S
o

cio
 eco

n
o

m
ic g

ro
u

p
s 

F
igure 9: S

ocio E
conom

ic groups

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 Q
S

607E
W

 - N
S

-S
eC

) 

•
A

t the tim
e of the C

ensus, there w
as 41.3 per cent of w

orking aged residents w
orking in m

anagerial and professional occupations.  T
his

w
as higher than the borough average of 36.1 per cent.

•
A

t 16.3 per cent, the w
ard had a higher proportion of residents w

ho w
ere students than the borough average (14.9 per cent).

•
T

he w
ard had a slightly low

er proportion of w
orking aged residents w

ho w
ere classified as long term

 unem
ployed / never em

ployed
com

pared to the borough average of 13.5 per cent (1,506 residents).

4
1

.3
%

1
3

.0
%

1
6

.5
%

1
3

.0
%

1
6

.3
%

0
%

5
%

1
0

%

1
5

%

2
0

%

2
5

%

3
0

%

3
5

%

4
0

%

4
5

%

H
ig

h
e

r &
 lo

w
e

r m
a

n
a

g
e

ria
l &

p
ro

fe
ssio

n
a

l

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 o

ccu
p

a
tio

n
s, sm

a
ll

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs &
 o

w
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
t w

o
rk

e
rs

Lo
w

e
r su

p
e

rv
iso

ry
 &

 te
ch

n
ica

l, se
m

i

ro
u

tin
e

 &
 ro

u
tin

e
 o

c
cu

p
a

tio
n

s

Lo
n

g
 te

rm
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 &

 n
e

v
e

r

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d

 S
tu

d
e

n
ts

W
h

ite
ch

a
p

e
l

T
o

w
e

r H
a

m
le

ts
Lo

n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

Page 234



P
age 10 

Q
u

alificatio
n

 levels 
T

able 7: H
ighest qualification of residents aged 16 to 64 

A
rea 

N
o

  
q

u
alificatio

n
 

L
evel 
1 

L
evel 
2 

A
p

p
ren

tice-
sh

ip
 

L
evel 3  

L
evel 4 an

d
 

ab
o

ve 
O

th
er 

W
h

itech
ap

el
1,328 

893 
868 

78 
1,263 

5,596 
1,189 

W
h

itech
ap

el 
(%

)
11.8 

8.0 
7.7 

0.7 
11.3 

49.9 
10.6 

T
o

w
er 

H
am

lets (%
) 

15.6 
9.8 

9.2 
0.8 

10.8 
43.6 

10.2 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (%
) 

12.4 
11.5 

12.6 
1.4 

11.5 
40.5 

10.0 
E

n
g

lan
d

 (%
) 

14.8 
15.2 

17.1 
3.1 

14.5 
29.8 

5.6 
(S

ource: C
ensus 2011 LC

5102E
W

 - H
ighest level of qualification by age) 

F
igure 10: R

esidents aged 16 to 64 w
ith N

o qualification and Level 4 plus qualification 

(S
ource: C

ensus 2011 LC
5102E

W
 - H

ighest level of qualification by age)

•
T

he population aged 16 to 64 in W
hitechapel show

ed a
slightly different qualification structure to T

ow
er H

am
lets

as a w
hole w

ith a higher proportion of highly qualified
residents.

•
T

he proportion of those w
ith a level 4 qualification w

as
above the average in W

hitechapel (49.9 per cent) w
hen

com
pared to T

ow
er H

am
lets (43.6 per cent) and London

(40.5 per cent).

•
A

round 1,328 residents or 11.8 per cent aged 16 to 64
did not hold a form

al qualification. T
his rate w

as
substantially below

 the T
ow

er H
am

lets average (15.6
per cent), London (12.4 per cent) and E

ngland rates
(14.8 per cent).

•
T

he proportion of W
hitechapel residents w

ith no form
al

qualification w
as the 6

th low
est out of all 20 w

ards in
T

ow
er H

am
lets.

•
T

he low
est proportion of residents w

ith no qualification
w

as recorded in S
t K

atherine’s and W
apping w

ard (6.8
per cent) w

hile the highest proportion w
ith no

qualification w
as in the Lansbury w

ard w
ith 25.6 per

cent.

•
T

he proportion of W
hitechapel residents w

ith a level 3
qualification w

as 11.3 per cent, a rate slightly above the
T

ow
er H

am
lets average.

25.1

32.2

29.9

31.3

31.7

31.2

32.9

33.3

43.1

45.4

46.9

37.5

46.7

44.9

49.9

54.5

56.9

61.4

60.1

65.9

43.6

40.5

29.8

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

%

N
o

 q
u

a
lifica

tio
n

s

Le
v
e

l 4
 q

u
a

lifica
tio

n
s a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

Page 235



 

P
age 11 

S
tatistical A

reas 

T
he m

ap (right) show
s w

hich C
ensus O

utput A
reas 

have been included in the sum
m

ary statistics for this 
w

ard, and w
hich areas have been assigned to other 

w
ards.  C

ensus O
utput A

rea (O
A

) data has been 
aggregated on a best fit basis to m

atch the new
 T

ow
er 

H
am

lets w
ard boundaries as closely as possible. T

his 
has been done in accordance w

ith m
ethodology 

em
ployed by the O

ffice for N
ational S

tatistics (O
N

S
) in 

producing census statistics for non-standard 
geographies. D

etails of this m
ethodology can be found 

on the O
N

S
 w

ebsite at: http://w
w

w
.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-

m
ethod/geograph

y/geographic-policy/best-fit-

policy/index.htm
l. 

Page 236



P
age 12 

F
u

rth
er in

fo
rm

atio
n

 

T
he data used in this docum

ent has been sourced from
 the O

ffice for N
ational S

tatistics C
ensus 2011 and specific C

ensus 2011 data tables 
are quoted in the docum

ent.  

C
o

n
tact th

e C
o

rp
o

rate R
esearch

 U
n

it: cru
@

to
w

erh
am

lets.g
o

v.u
k 

F
or m

ore inform
ation, see the B

orough P
rofile page on the council’s internet.  C

ensus 2011 data tables can be obtained from
 the O

ffice for 
N

ational S
tatistics official labour m

arket statistics w
ebpage.  

Page 237



Appendix 11 

Page 238



~ 
TOWER HAMLETS 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 
(as amended) 

Notice of Application for the .!:Grant I Renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
*delete as appropriate 

TAKE NOTICE THAT ON: 3\s~ MAY 20lG 

(insert name of applicant) 

Of: (insert address of applicant) 

Made application to London Borough of Tower Hamlets for the *grant I renewal of a licence 
to use the premises named below as a Sexual Entertainment Venue. 

Address of 
Premises: 

Description 
and detail of 
sexual 
entertainment 
to be provided 
including 
times of 
operation: 

CL.LtB r:=N\t \EE 

3o A LI i: S.11<..s=T 
L~DDN El gpA 

C4E~Tle-MAN's Cul& ~IOIN<; POLE oANc..tNCf, 
LAP ~c.tNG k S~l?TBE BE\""1~ 

11-\E""" HD\.\~ oF b ·-SDPM To 4- . C)O A,.._., 
M.o~DAY - S.uN'DA~ 

Any objections to this application shall be made not later than 3o / 0 £. / 2.~f4 which is 28 
days after the above date of the application. Objections must be made in writing, stating in 
general terms the grounds for objection to: 

The Licensing Section, London Borough of Tower Hamlets, 6th Floor, Mulberry Place, 
London E14 2BG or licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk Website: www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 7364 5008 

Please note: Objections must be made in writing and shall contain the name and address of 
the objector. Such objections will be sent to the applicant and will become public documents, 
however, personal details such as name, address and telephone number will be removed. 

Page 239



Appendix 12 

Page 240



PUBLIC NOTICES 

Legal and Public Notices 

Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management 

Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
NOTICE UNDER ARTICLE 14 OF 
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING 

PERMISSION 
Proposed dc:velopmcnt -at: Land ;U Chrisp 
Street Market Poplar. London, E14. Planning 
applicalion made by Savill)!. on behaJf of Te lford 
Homes :rnd PopbrH A RC A, for .. Comprche.nsi\•e 
redcvcloprnent of the site (includi11g cxhting 
c;ar p;irk) comprising the demolition of aisling 
buildingii. with lhc exception of the Fe)!.tival of 
Britain buildings.. Clod, T<m:er and Idea Store: 
erection of 19 new buildings ranging from 3 to 25 
stort)'!t providing 649 fC')!.idcnti al unil!> (C3 UM: 
Clas.~) (including re-provi.sioo of 124 <1ffordlblc 
residential units): existing market enhancement, 
indudjng new canopy and service building: 
refurbishmeni of retained Festival of Britain 
buildings: rceortftgurntion and rcplaccmcm of 
c,..: isting and provision of new com.mcJ"Cia.1 uses 
includjng new ciocma (02 L'sc Class): alteratioru. 
and addilions to existing Idea Store for community 
u.se and mu l ti~func1ion space (01 Use Class); 
flexible wori(.'li.pace (BI \;~ Cl~s): retail 11oor 
sp;1cc (A l -AJ Use Cla~s). indudin£ A I food ."Slorc~ 
public house (A4 Use a~s): hot food takeaway 
ftoori.pace (A5 Vse Class): upgrndc and provil>ion 
of new public open space including child play 
spa<.·e: new public realm, kindscaping "'orks and 
new liJ;hling:: cycle parking spm.~e.s (indud ing ne\\ 
visitor cycle parking): and provision of d.is:Jblcd 
car parking spacci.." Applica1ion submiued co 
London Horough of Tower HamlelS. Town Hall, 
M ulberry Place,, 5 Clove Crescent.. E 1-1 2BG. 

Any owner or the land or tenant " ho Wi.!>hc:i. 
to make representation~ about this applil~:ition. 

sbouJd write to the council within 21 days of Lhc 
dare of this notice_ 

Statement of owners' rights: The gram of planning 
permiss ion does not affect O\\'ners· right~ to r'Ctain 
or dispose of their propcrl)'. unless thero is some 
pro\'isio11 to the rontrary in an agrccmc.nt or lease. 

Statement of agrtcuhurJI lcJ1ants" rights: The 
grant of planning pcnnissiou for non-agriculmrJI 
development may affect agricullural tenants· 
security of tenure. 

'Owner" mean~ a pet"l>on having a freehold intcres1 
or a lca...chold inlc:rc)).t the uncJ.pircd tcnn of whkh 
is not less Uum seven years. "Tenant' means a 
1cnant of a.n ag1icultural holding any pa.rt of which 
is comprised in the land. 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
A PREMISES LICENCE 

ri;~.,, h ghf"n th:..! Clip1~r \'rnt•rft 1'1..C h-s 11i1.oplicd lo 
l..oftdoo BlirotJ;h U( To~tr lla1t1~t.li l..i« 11sh,. Am hork ) fOf' a 
l'tTmi.<;tS Lk t'lk"r undrr tJw U~in& Al"t 2003. 
l'mfflso: St Kadii1nnoe l>ocb .. de attas koc....,,. n 1'.larbk ~y. S1 
K:'.1tl1<i1t ineo ',.Wd} . R1\~J.R1\c'fl'.iJeld1.JP1ian~ 

1lw lttt1-blf 1K1il-ilin artd rimi~ a,..: 
OtuN1ay 28 Ju.ly S111n..b) JI Jul)' 
llcliccfl~•src«Qfti!C'.,.~°"111bc:~n(mon ! (IOO 
ZWOd.llly, ,..ill1occai,io::M\;tJ X'\l'K.k-tl.Rl"luJU1t. 
I . l'nJ\bJii11 ol tilm~ flnfo1'fl1:1li'tot J1u1u..,. die e\"bll) 

1. Prono11!f! ~ ra:t.-ded mus..: fBrla:~ C'·cms owirn:> 
l. f\v\Mrnl ul li~e flou~i.;'\..ho)ll W1~' .i.idl n,,oi;ot n\*""·'~'"' pl•) 
'6 Pr11v1~ •'I peri°(lrroaoi.."C:' .-.{ d <1Kt (ll\"e 111M:mnioet11: colUH"".r.l 
Vt\XlJdancc lll.U) 

A")"nl:IC "''""' .,.. ••li,ci. IQ m;ik.e rqorocnl.llM.~ 1ci;anl1"$ th1' 
lflf'licMiutil O\lbl gi\c R<.ilJI..~ 11"1 "'lllJ•C to Theo Lll"enN1~ Stttiun. 
I AM\duo Bun.MIJ!h ul 1\rotu 11 .... u1n..., Mulhttr) l,:M:e. S (.;knt 

Crntttll. t.o..do n. [1 4 l 8li 
WC'thitl."; v. 'lir•.t~ eot11a.nllc:«.r;v~.uk Ti'I: UI 7J6:' 5(l(Mj 

Rf ptt'$C'n&.alion<i ntuM be tte:rh~ no la1rr th:.in t .W71b.116 
ThtAPf>ltcalloo ltec<lfll MJ Re£1Slcrma)'lx ~-·c..1 ~ttn tu.am 
llfld '4rm M.-:by IO rn,1.;iy~lunq IW.lfmal office ho:oUI\ .11 * .bc:n"t 
aJ.lrt,S. 
It u "" t'ffettrt1 tmtkr- S«tillff I .M ttf tlu: I.ii fllL>;.~ ,kl ZOOJ, 

k-·11tglrv,-1tt:tl#"sJ,\M~u}aht5/akl'k""i"n_.-.:liQff 

l!lfh UJf..,,,,il('(Jtlfftl r.mt/tlw '""-'''"""" finr{ttr"'"« .• t,l/}'Cn'Qll II 
iu1bl<' Off $..;ltut"'.'t' O->ttt"Klt•" I /Of' tlw roffi:~'.f' IJ ~IQ k•-t'I 5 '"' llit 
srood.111#.ll:ulcfl.jflOUA 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
A PREMISES LICENCE 

N<Hkt is i;hen th,;al H2C En1erprises t.1...1' has applied 
to London BorouJ:h or To,_·er Ham.Jets Licensin~ 
Au 1horit~' ror a Prtiniscs l.Jcence under lhe LittinSini: 
Act 2003. 
Pn"mi~: L'ni! G 04, New Loom I louse, I 0 I B~kchl11"Ch 
Laoc, London Bl ILU 
The lk'tnslilble .1tc,1hities and liminb'S :1.re: 
S Ul)l)ly of Aloobol. Sulld:.iy-Wcdocsday 11.00.23.00. 
Thwsda}-Sarnf"day 11.00.00.00. Provision or recorded 
mu~k Sunda) -Wcdi~) 07.J0.23 .00, Thuhd.lil) · 
Salunl.ay 07 . .30-00.00. Ptm i;;ion t)f filmslprm 1!.i( Jfl of li,·c. 
music Mc:md:.iy-Sunclay 10.<Xl-lJ.OO. 
Anyooc "'ho \1:ishcs 10 m:1kc rq:,,-cscn1:i1ions regard ing 
this !!.pphc:a11on 1mJ$t ghc llOl icc in wri1ing 10: llte 
IJctnsing Seclton. London Horoutti orl'own H ... mkls, 
!'tl.ulberTy Pl:Ke, 5 Clo,·e Crtittnl~ London , E IJ 21JC 
Website: www.to~n.rhamlet.s.r;:ov.uk Tel: 020 7364 500M 
Reprt"Senta 1ion..1; m us l be rtt(-iu.--d no fat.tr tha n 
O:W7/20 16, 
The App!icot1ion RC("Ol"J aOO Rc.g.istcr •mi) be 'ic~oo 
bct1A:cc11 JOJ.m aOO 4pm Monday 10 Frida) during normal 
oflkc hoors :ii 1hc above addrtss 
fl is di! ojf1m; e unPet SetfilNf I SJJ of 1he l.kt·nsing 1'N 
l.(~J. kl~rirrg/I or rrdl#"n'I) ll.I maki! "fells~ su11e111en1 
in tYNrncrtion iritlt an applirution a11J the ma.1.imum fine 
(Of' wl1id1 a /1erwn ; , fiablt! on ~wmnan• com·fr·1itm far 
the offenre 11 "f' ,,, fn~I 5 on tfie staillfmtl rmle I {S(}(XJJ. 

LOCAL OOVEKSMENT (M ISCELLANEOUS 
PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 (as amended) 
l'iolicc of Application for 1he Granl of a 
Sexual Entertainment \"enue Lkenct 

TAKE~OTICE TIIATO~: ) Jg ~lay 1016 Wt City Tridm LMdon 
Limiotd of 319 Ro:ol0<J Road l....x.i El 91lA made •l'!':i<auon 10 

U.00> Bo:oup ofTo"er Haml~• f0< thc gr.ml of• u= io"" ii>: 
rm=~ otoo! btlow 11 a Sm>JI En:<minmml \'001, A<llr"" rl 
Prrnm<>: Cll:b En•iet (formerly koo.n" Chslies Angds~ JO Abt 
Strt<t London El >DA. ~"d detail of 1m•l m<Jl!inn<111 
IO bt p10>id<d induding 1m of opm11on: G"tkm.in• dub 
I'"' iding pole ibocil!g, "i> d:u:cing •lid "'1pl<l!t h<tl mi lbt hows 
of ~)Opm and 4,()(bm Mondoy IO SundJy, Any objlct!oltl kl this 

'Jll'liOltlOO lh>ll bt •..&"" la:.1 thin '~Ol>'lfll6 ·~·· • 21 dl)1 
af.ei et dJte of obt appli<atioit Obj0-mi. ll\Uil bt made m •Titilg, 
w.in1 on gmal tmTIS th< grourJs fo1 lbc cbjectooo IO: Th< Lktn;ing 
St<tk-... Loodoa BorougfoofT"'" Ha1il>R 6th Fkxr, Mibmy Pbc< 
Londcdi Ell lllG"' li<...,•fe.l"''umleis.:oul:. \\',b<rl<. 
nw1ow<rllaml<1S~01'.uk Td: 11107 J6l i-001, Pim• M:t' 

Obj«l!OOl mus1 bt mad< m "1it:ll! md ;hall 1ootaio ti!< "'"" and 
a&nss of lb: ~ Soch objtaooos '<ill bt sOll lo thc appl""1! 
arJ •ill beromr pibli: &.11111<111s, lw•mr fl'l'OO'l .;.,,1i. >uch ai 

na:ne. adiire.ss and tekphooe number ,,11 ~ remcwtd. rr,111°' 

SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCES 
NOTICE IS GIVEN TllAT Rudi Field&"'" has 
:1pplicd to 1he London Borough ofTQ\\·er 11:1.in lct fOf' 
Radt0 Frequency. Mcsothcrapy. LED. l'ecls. 
Licence for the- premise: E P. Medispo1.. 1 Scot1s 
House. Admir.:ill> W;Jy, Man.h \Va.ti. Lon.don E14 
IJUG. 

Anyone wishing to OppO~ the apphcu.110n must 
g_ivc notice in \Hieing. to David Tolley. Mead of 
Consumer and Business Rcsulations Service. (ith 

Floor. Mulben·v Pl3CC. 5 CJovc Crescent. London 
El~ 21lG WITillN ll'IREE WEEKS >p<:C>fying oh< 
grounds or oppos11ion. Persons objecting 10 the gran1 
of a licence must be. prepared to altend in person :it a 
hearing before a Committee of tht> Council. 

LICEXSISGACT 2003 
~OTICF. OF APPLICATION FOR A PRE\llSf.S l.lct~ct 
'-Olll~lilEBYGlllllWIERR.lliO\Ull~•l.coblkr,,.P~T"~ 
11.aioi"'' fm;o Lc:r< 1 "'l'';lilirl"""" bE • .\\J"Ull ~N B!J, 
jjJ(\.Y.3RJlXll!Wlll()\DlO\WE!i\fJ6'1'.r.t~!.'°"'u'"". 
llrAi~..aliikd.i«il<~-fr.mllJl~[ll{l·llm)•'~ 
- 1taum~ 11to. r:myc15oi1..,_.: .. 1~11.~J!llco fr.ll)'a:>I~. 

\1)1"'1t*ij M .:lt"""'"""'1~ilflltilot•l>lltiay~•~ 
•Tli:i•ltllr~~!Pa..>:;ltllrr•lun..,l"°"l!n) 
(l>,,CJ.-.::1l4'!!El!lli(jl)1!l\UK l"l'!ofli<F""''~ ' 
ll;l~~~A~llt~localmBm'?o'f,.•~Jll!z 
l!l.~mi11>,; c;.,r"""'""""m~Ikn""~l"''*ld: 
@l"J!!'<lll. llr¢•mm1b<nmlM>:dly•F""1l!.ll'.E• 4!!1Ro.~ 
&:ot~tl••&lWi·~~·"'tloi\~=,rn-. .... -
riiliis lljl.ionlw•na••""'""""'ln<l•111l~G.01 
\llCtiil! 

Thursday June 9, 2016 25 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 

MAJOR APPLICATIONS UNDER ARTICLE 15(4)) OF THE 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT 

MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE) ORDER 2015 AND OTHER 
SIGNIFICANT APPLICATIONS. 

Notice i.s hereby given that the L-Ondon Bor.ouih l)f Tower Hamlet~ i1' 
considering the follo\\·ing applications: 

42-44 T homas Road, London , EJ4 78J PN J6/0J041 
Demolition of cJ: is:ting building and redevelopment of the .s ite to prnvidc new 
buildings ranging ff()m fi\:e ti) twelve storeys comprising 220 residemial uniL~ 

(Use Class CJ) and 139.5sqm commertial ~pa(.,-e (Use Cl a~s Al. A2. A3 or 
01), together \\ith as.sooiated car parl..ing. l:.tn~ca.pi ng and infr.tstructurc 
works. 

1nc app lica1io1J and sup(X)rting drJwings may be viewed electmnically al 
the Planning Office between 9am and I pm Monday.!. to Fridays. However. 
paper fil~ :ire available for major appl ieation~ only. You c::in visit between 
these times without mak ing an appoimmenl and a planner will be available 
to help with any gener.:il enquiries. The i nfonnaJion will aho be <Wa il:,t.blc 
on che Councirs web ~itc at hupsJ/developrnenuowerhamlcts .gov.uk, lf you 
respond hy email. plea!i>e teJI Ult. your pos.tal address . 

Any person Y.ho wi.!ohC'l> to rnake representat ions relacing to any or these 
applicmio ns should do so, in writing, wi1hjn a pcricxt of 14 day~ from the date 
of publica1 ion of this no1icc 10 the Devclormcm Comrol ManJg_er at : 

Tower Hamlets P1anning Department. f\folbcrry P1ace.5 Clo\'C Crc~cn1. 
London E 14 2BG email developmcntcontro l@towcrhamlets.gov.uk 

D:11ed: 9th J une 2016 

OWEN WHALLEY 

HEAD 01' PLANr>.11\G & BUILDING COr>.TROL 

I lcen )jnc Ad 200J 
.\ppUuO•n lo ""•'1'..bt'atisd Unnt~ ()«tio11 31) 
~ u f\mtl\• g1,"en tN:t St J oltn R.ejlauil.nl C..mpADy 
U m H cd ~ ljlpt:td to \'If}' thC" llortm:ws Uctn.:::t m rnpt\1' oi 
St J eoh lre:a4 ud Whit, 9f-% Cormntt1.Jal Suttt. I °'~" 
[ I 61Z an4 11\ICTl\b tu \"1'T tJ~ T'n.'l!USU l,i{):'!Jo..'.C w p.!lllJJl I OI..""'" 

mtmwl 11)'\!Ul il!ld tht oomumptian of ikohol b)· pmons W11hm 
1 !imlled fronugt d 1hc p•tmlltlo. Tht apptK;iwon "emrig 001 Ult 
full J ctaJIS llfl bt '~"(d at tl\( o01(n of ti\( IM."tn.Sm& authvnty at 
!JUTI.Sl?IJ ion.non, tith ''°""' Mulbrny PlilK'"f, S (Jo\·e C:cscml; 
l.J)1\G<)l'1 t 14 2.IG d\.lnna l'W)l'.UWJ otfu:t Murs ftin,: ifl 1dH1~""t 
t;:1 <h«t,). forthct lnformauc:m in;iv t>t ii\'tllilbk at 
11..,.""'.lO'\~ilmkb.J:ova;l .\rry' n:y.CSC"r.UOons by a Raponl1hle 
Au:lk!lllJ' 01 anr \>l!:ltr pmon 61\&St t!e ~ ln 1111i1in1 to TQ\Oo't:f 
Ha111lt(j (.ou11('11 by 411:! July 2016 AD rq:JIC'§CntaUOOS must 1.11: 
m.l<km 111't1tmg It nanoffm«widnS«txm ts&oflMLKTm1ni 
Art 2003 kll anyorw t i) rr.::l1essl)• or b)o)Wingly ri1ih a fal5<t 
$UIC1'nenl in tt).11!1t(11on Wll h • 11...tnslng applk " OOIJ n\t 
n:.nuuum I.I~ on .wmm:uy C\1f1\tction t!i CS/lf'(} 

Olfton Du>in Consultancy Limited 

LICENCES FOR SPECIAL TREATMENT 
f\' <H_ke i!! gi\•en that MIKKI MCGAU(iHAAN h:is 
a.pphcd to l.ondoo Dorough of TO\\cr llamlcu for 
Manicure, Pcilicun!. Mas~c. Sunlxd<i, Sauna. !lairs. 
Reau1k1an. 

lkcncc~ for 1hc pn,;mio;cs,: 1hc llC1Jvcns Salon l.ul. 19 
White Church Lane. London El 7Q R. 

Aynonc wishing to oppo"C tbc applkalion mu:s1 gi\'l" 
nut ia: in ~'nllng lo l);i\ id Tolley. llc:ad of Co11Y.u111cr and 
Business Regul3tions Stt\•icc. 6lh Floor. MulbelT)' Place. 
5 Clo\'C Crescent. Londoo E.14 lBG wm-llN TH REE 
WEEKS ~1fying the gr'l'ltmd;: o( oppos1oon . 

J\.---rsons objecting 10o 1he , ran1 oralkcnce must bcprcp.al\...-d 
lll ancod in person at a hearing before a Connmlll~c of 1hc 

Find it at 
jqQ~~~-~o~~ lo.<>J!Too 

ld i4i !li4!'<cl . .:1~.L1j· .f l'\1 Council. 

drive24 
1n paper, online and now on your mobile 

visit o ur mobile site today mobile.drive24.co.uk 

Page 241



Appendix 13 

Page 242



1

Andrew Heron

From:

Sent: 14 June 2016 14:18

To: Licensing

Subject: Objection to the renewal of sexual entertainment licence - Club Enivee, Alie Street

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

To whom it may concern 

I strongly object to the renewal of the sexual entertainment licence for Club Enivee on Alie Street E1. 

I live within the immediate vicinity of this venue and I'm repeatedly woken up on weekdays during the early hours of 

the morning due to their customers leaving this premises, parked mini cabs sitting outside on the street until 3am 

and and also due to the noise of their staff as they leave the premises.   As a result there is a lot of anti social 

behaviour in the area, for example my door is often used as a urinal or as a place to be sick. This is unacceptable and 

most inconvenient as I and most of my neighbour's are professional who have responsible jobs and careers. I don't 

believe this premises should be allowed to operate in its current location due to the high volume of residential 

accommodation within the immediate vicinity. I have lived here for over 10 years, even before this premises existed 

and the frequency of the anti social behaviour has increased due to the constant flow of people attending this 

premises. The police have also been very ineffective in dealing with this and have failed to support the victims.  

This premises is currently closed at weekends, however I noted that on the notice it states Monday to Sunday. I 

further object to this premises extended their opening schedule to include Saturday and Sunday. These are the only 

2 days that I'm able to get any sleep due to being woken up every day Monday - Friday, consistently every week.  

This premises may have been suited to this location when it initially opened as 'Oops'. However, as you know the 

residential accommodation in this part of the borough has increased significantly, as a result this premises is on the 

door step of many professional tax paying residents who have professional jobs and lifestyles. Why should we be 

woken up at unreasonable times in the morning or not be able to have peace and rest time on our own homes? It's 

no longer appropriate to have a late venue like this here.  

Submitted for your consideration 

Thanks 

Page 243



1

Andrew Heron

From:

Sent: 21 June 2016 14:08

To: Andrew Heron

Subject: Fwd: Your complaint about Dumping Waste on Alie Street E1 (ref: 4558665)

Hi Andrew, 

I'm just forwarding this email onto you regarding the licensed premises Enivee. 

The contents speaks for itself, can you please add this along with my objection to their licence renewal. 

Regards 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: 
Date: 18 May 2016 at 14:03:20 BST 
To: Neil Crump <icx@towerhamlets.gov.uk> 
Cc: Corporate Complaints <Corporate.Complaints@towerhamlets.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Your complaint about Dumping Waste on Alie Street E1 (ref: 4558665) 

Hi Neil, 

Thanks for the reply, much appreciated. 

There is one ongoing issue which hasn't been resolved yet though, hopefully you can help 
with this too. Each time Veolia empty their commercial waste bin, I think on Tuesday and 
Saturdays, they unlock it in order to empty it however they don't re-lock it again so over the 
weekend other residents dump their waste in that bin. Then on Monday, staff from the 
premises empty the bin onto the street because it doesn't belong to them. I've challenged 
them about doing this and asked them to stop and contact the council to make sure the bin 
gets locked after being emptied. But they don't care. They think they have a legitimate right 
to scatter the waste onto the street because other people have used their bin.  

Staff at a licensed premises shouldn't be acting in this way, they should have more respect for 
the local community. I do understand their point that no one else should be using their bin, I 
totally agree with that but it's their responsibility to ensure their bin is locked so this doesn't 
happen in the first place. 

I have a number of videos of the staff doing this if you need to see them. 

I would appreciate if the premises can be spoken to about this as well. 

Many thanks 

On 18 May 2016, at 12:57, Neil Crump <neil.crump@towerhamlets.gov.uk> wrote: 

Page 244



2

 

Dear 

Your complaint 4558665 about Dumping Waste on Alie 
Street E1  

Thank you for your recent complaint received on 4 May 2016 

I have reviewed the information available and Mr Crawfords 
actions with regard to the issues at the location.  
Mr Crawford has monitored the location and taken appropriate 
action based on the evidence obtained. I can confirm that the 
commercial waste bin at the rear of the premises is being 
monitored approximately 4 times per week which has 
confirmed it is being used correctly. I understand that 
previously there was some waste deposited by the live in staff 
at the premises but that has now ceased. 
The other domestic waste issues in the location have been 
referred to the Street Care team whom have issued letters 
outlining the regulations and collection days to assist the 
matter and whom will take further action as needed. 
We have raised the waste issues in the location with our 
contractor whom is making extra efforts to clear waste 
and to clean the location promptly as needed.  
We will continue to monitor the location and will take 
appropriate action where there is evidence to support it. 
We do take all complaints seriously, however, if you are 
dissatisfied with the outcome please provide details of why my 
response has not resolved your complaint and what action you 
would require as a resolution. 

If you have any queries, please contact me 
at neil.crump@towerhamlets.gov.uk or on 020 7364 6978 

Yours sincerely 

Neil Crump 
Commercial Waste Enforcement Manager 

Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, 
Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
logo

Page 245



1

Kathy Driver

From:

Sent: 28 June 2016 08:15

To: Andrew Heron; Mohshin Ali

Subject: FW: OBJECTION to Enviee Club licence renewal

To Whom It May Concern 

Please accept this email as my formal objection to the renewal of the licence for the above. A female friend 
of mine no longer visits me in the evening after an incident concerning verbal abuse from men attending this 
club and Whites. Aside from this there is a junior school just around the corner and the area is now home to 
families living in the new developments in Alie St and its environs. 

Tower Hamlets’ residents should not be subject to having to walk past abusive men waiting to go into a sex 
encounter club in the heart of a residential district. 

In addition the gate just outside my front door is used as a toilet on a regular basis. This is highly unpleasant 
as well as extremely unhygienic. 

I object to the renewal of this licence. 

Page 246



1

Andrew Heron

From:

Sent: 27 June 2016 12:19

To: Licensing

Subject: Re: Objection to renewal of licence for Enviee

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear Sir/Madam 

I wish to object in the strongest possible terms to the renewal of the licence for Club Enviee. The club is open until 

the early hours of the morning and attracts customers who leave (and often arrive) drunk as well as minicabs which 

take parking spaces, which are at a premium these days, and cause noise nuisance. The club is a few metres away 

from a junior school and I have seen what are presumably employees hanging around outside the club/smoking in 

what appears to be their work outfits. This is highly inappropriate when children from the school walk past on their 

way home. 

Since the arrival of this club (in its former guise) and Whites I (and neighbours and visitors) have been subjected to 

harassment whilst passing the club and our gateway is regularly used as a urinal overnight. This never happened 

before LBTH deemed it reasonable to allow sex encounter clubs next to our homes.  In the past couple of years the 

area has changed from primarily business to primarily residential with hundreds of people living in the 26 storey 

Altitude Tower and the other new developments that now litter this area.  

It is highly inappropriate to have this type of club in a residential/school area and, so I understand, contrary to 

LBTH’s policy. 

Please refuse this application. 

Faithfully 

Page 247



Re: Objection to renewal of licensing of Club Enviee

I'm writing as a director of The Old German School residents and flat owners association. 

It has come to our attention that the so-called gentleman's clubs 'Whites Club' in Leman Street and 'Club Enviee' in 
Alie Street, both just a stone's throw away from our building, are both seeking renewal of their alcohol and 
entertainment licences, including an opening time until 4am. 

We seriously object to their licence being renewed. 

The area has undergone a marked change from business fringe to residential area. Therefore, any potential argument 
in favour of the licence, as was argued before, i.e. "there are no local residents who would be disturbed, offended, 
intimidated or inconvenienced", holds no longer true. 

We have had problems with harassment of our female residents walking past; noise and nasty misbehaviour from the 
‘gentlemen’ leaving in the early hours and - totally dosgusting and unacceptable - the regular use of our gateway as a 
urinal! 

Our previous protests have not been heard (as voiced in your survey in October 2011), but now is the time to close 
the two establishments and let them re-locate in a more commercial area where they don't inconvenience anybody.

We understand that it is Tower Hamlet's licensing policy not to permit sex encounter establishments, certainly not in a 
residential area. We therefore urge you to stop the operation of the two above named sex clubs, enforcing your own 
policy. 

We object herewith to the renewal of both licenses. 

Page 248



LB Tower Hamlets Licensing Section 

8th June 2016 

Dear Madam/Sir, 

Sex Encounter Club in Alie Street 

Club Enviee 

We are the owners and Trustees of St George’s German Lutheran Church, Alie Street, a 
registered place of worship in Alie Street less than 100 metres from Club Enviee in Alie 
Street. It has come to our attention that the above sex encounter club is currently both 
seeking renewal of their alcohol and sexual entertainment licences and wish to continue 
to remain open to 4am. 

I understand that when the establishment was first licensed the Tower Hamlets 

Licensing Committee considered them acceptable - despite vocal objections from nearby 

residents - because the surrounding area was considered commercial in character.  As 

you will know, the area has changed massively in the last three years, and nobody can 

now claim it is residential 

With the completion and ongoing construction of high-rise apartment blocks resulting in 

a great increase residential population, including many students, and a budget hotel 

popular with families. The nature of the environment adjacent to these sex encounter 

premises is overwhelmingly residential (measured by square footage) and densely 

Page 249



 occupied. This is a trend that will continue with the building out of further consented 

schemes. 

Both residents and visitors must pass by these premises daily, often in late evening, to 

reach Aldgate & Aldgate East Stations and bus routes. Historic Chapels Trust also need 

to consider the impact on our visitors, especially women, to the evening and other 

events including marriages, held in our church during the day and evening, and on the 

volunteers who support our work as a charity. 

We read that it is the Borough’s licensing policy not to permit sex encounter premises, 

anywhere in Tower Hamlets, let alone in densely occupied residential areas. We are 

therefore at a loss to know why the present premises are permitted to continue 

operation. 

We therefore request that these concerns and in particular the degree of change in the 

character of the area should be taken into account when considering whether it is in the 

public interest to renew these licences.  

Historic Chapels Trust objects to the renewal of the license. 

Yours sincerely, 

Page 250



27 June 2016 

FAO: Tower Hamlets Licensing Section 

Re: Objection to the Renewal of SEV Licence Club Enviee, 30 Alie Street, E1 8A. 

To whom it may concern,  

We act as Management of the Building at Central Square and represent the residents of 29 Flats in 
the building on St Mark Street, located around the corner from Club Enviee. 

We wish to lodge an objection against the licence renewal for the above premises on the following 
grounds: 

� The club is in an area with a high proportion of residential units, the demography of the
area has changed with significantly more residents than when the original club obtained a
licence at this address, and therefore the nature of the business is not appropriate to the
location .

� Proximity to a primary school, place of worship and residential areas frequented families
and children.

� Noise, antisocial behaviour and public nuisance, particularly late at night, with people
leaving the club walking down St Mark Street.

� Significant numbers of taxis waiting to collect patrons of the club late in the evening
causing noise and disruption.

Yours sincerely, 

Page 251



1

Andrew Heron

Sent: 18 June 2016 09:37 

To: Licensing 

Subject: Objections  

Dear Sirs, 

I am writing to express my objections to the renewal of a sexual entertainment license for 'Enivee' - 30 Alie Street, 

E1 8DA. 

I live only metres away from this club and I feel the constant flow of people coming and going from here is creating a 

lot of noise and anti social behaviour into the early hours of the morning, when my family and I are trying to sleep. 

Patrons of this premises seem to think that my basement flat window is a toilet.  

I have reported this many times to the police and the council, however they don't seem to be taking my concerns 

seriously. There are also mini cabs sitting outside the club constantly with their engines running, which is also 

causing noise and severe levels of pollution. I have reported this to the club manager but he doesn't care. However, 

when my neighbour contacted the manager of Whites bar, they were extremely professional and worked with the 

local residents to help improve the situation. The manager of club Eniveee should be more like the manger of 

Whites.  

I think it's wholly inappropriate to have a venue with a late license in this location due to the amount of families 

living nearby.  

I strongly urge you to reject this application. 

Yours Sincerely, 

Page 252



1

Kathy Driver

From:

Sent: 27 June 2016 11:20

To: Licensing

Subject: Licensing renewals

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I write to object to the renewal of licenses for Whites 32-38 Leman Street and also Club Envie at 30 Alie 
Street. 

As the landlord of  I object most strongly to these applications. The area has 
become increasingly residential and no longer exhibits the characteristics conducive to enable these kind of 
businesses to operate. 

As more and more high density residential apartments are erected these clubs will begin to create even 
greater social problems than currently exhibited and I would ask you , in line with your own policies, to 
refuse applications for licenses for these businesses. 

Yours faithfully, 

Page 253



Appendix 14 

Page 254



0 

0 

IN THE EAST LONDON MAGISTRATES' COURT 

APPEAL UNDER LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) 
ACT 1982 

BETWEEN: 

CITY TRADERS LONDON LIMITED Appellant 

and 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS Respondent 

This is an appeal by City Traders London Limited against a decision by the 

extraordinary Licensing Committee of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets to 

refuse an application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence made under 

Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act. The original hearing took place on 12 May 2015. The 

decision of the committee was communicated to the appellants on 17 July 2015. 

There is a premises licence granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the 

premises now known as Charlie's Angels at 30 Alie Street, London El 8DA. From 1 

June 2014 it became necessary for this business and others in the borough providing 

sexual entertainment also to apply for an SEV licence under the 1982 Act to enable 

those businesses to continue to provide that form of entertainment which had 

previously been allowed by virtue of the premises licence alone. The application was 

made in the name of the company rather than in the name of the individual, Abdul 

Malik, holding the premises licence. The consequence of this was that the LA 

declined to treat this company as an 'existing operator' for the purposes of the 

application but accepted that 'exceptional circumstances existed' to depart from the 

council's policy to issue no additional licences to new applicants for similar premises 

within the borough and to allow the application to be considered by the committee. 

The reasons for the refusal to grant the licence are summarised at page 13 of the 

committee's decision (page 186 of the bundle). The finding under the Act was under 

Schedule 3, paragraph 12 (3) a): 

1 
Page 255



'That the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been 

convicted of an offence or for any other reason.' 

It is that decision that is appealed. On appeal the magistrates' court 'may make such 

order as it thinks fit ' under paragraph 27(7) of Schedule 3. 

Both parties summarise the law to be applied at such an appeal. There is no 

disagreement as to the principles to be applied that derive from case law, much of it 

relating to appeals under the Licensing Act 2003. 

On appeal the court has to consider all of the evidence before it and determine 

whether, after considering that evidence, the decision of the committee was wrong. 

The task of the court on appeal is summarised by Lindblom J in paragraph 36 of the 

judgment in Townlink: 

'What the District Judge had to do was to consider the evidence before him with 

the relevant principles in mind. Those principles included the necessity that the 

licensing objectives be promoted, and proportionality. Bearing in mind the 

decision of the Council's licensing sub-committee and the significance of that 

decision as the result of the democratically elected members having applied their 

minds to the issue, the District Judge nevertheless had to adopt the approach 

approved by the court in Joffe. Sagnata, and Hope and Glorv. He had to do this 

by considering "whether, because be [disagreed] with the decision below in the 

light of the evidence before him, it [was] therefore wrong". 

It is for the appellant to persuade the court that it should reverse the decision. 

Case for the Appellant 

The case for the appellant company is set out in the skeleton argument dated 23 

December 2015. In addressing the court Mr Butt draws attention to the fact that there 

was no opposition to the grant of the licence by any of the appropriate authorities such 

as the police, the fire service or trading standards when the application was before the 

committee. Five businesses applied to LBTH for SEV licences. AU of those 

2 

0 

0 

Page 256



0 

0 

businesses already provided this fonn of entertainment. All applications for licences 

save for this was granted, some with conditions in addition to the standard conditions 

required by the LA. 

The decision for this court to detennine is whether the licensing committee was 

wrong to conclude that the applicant, a limited company, is 'unsuitable' to run this 

business. Neither the company, nor either of its directors, Mr Malik and Mr Martino, 

has convictions. It is accepted that it is open to the court to consider whether the 

second sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph 12 also applies. 

Mr Malik remains the premises licence holder as he was at the time this application 

was considered by the LA. At that time he was also the Designated Premises 

Supervisor (DPS) and was responsible for running the premises. At that time he was 

also the sole director of the appellant company. The other person named on the 

original application who would be responsible for management in the absence of Mr 

Malik was the floor manager, Antonio Pomerico, who continues to be employed in 

that role. He also holds a personal licence. The committee was told that Abdul Ali 

also continued to be involved in the running of the premises at that time although he 

was not named on the application fonn. 

The connection with JKO Holdings was disclosed on the application form (p56) -

'City Traders London Ltd occupy and manage the premises under a licence and 

management agreement from JKO Holdings'. It was the involvement of one of the 

directors of that company, Abdul Ali, (also known as Ali Jacko), who was present at 

the hearing in May that was of considerable concern, and remains a concern, to the 

LA. Mr Ali made a statement in support of the application and spoke at the licensing 

committee but has played no part in the appeal proceedings. He has a conviction in 

2011 that resulted in a fine for an offence under the Licensing Act although the detail 

has not been provided. He has not held the premises licence since that time and it is 

now said he no longer has any role in the management of the premises. It seems from 

his statement to the licensing committee that he continues to hold a personal licence 

despite that conviction. The only evidence at the appeal about the relationship 

between JKO Holdings and the appeIIant company was that of Mr Marino who gave 

evidence that there was a contract between the two companies for the use of the 

3 
Page 257



premises. He said that "we have to pay JKO Holdings a flat rate to the best of my 

knowledge". He conceded that JKO Holdings could terminate the agreement but said 

that "there is a contract that both parties respect". Without any acceptance that he is 

necessarily an unsuitable person to hold the licence, the appellant company offers a 

condition on the licence that Abdul Ali must not work at the premises in any capacity. 

Mr Ali did however have some part in the employment of the new manager and DPS, 

Vito Marino. Mr Ali introduced him to Mr Malik but did not then take part in further 

negotiations between the two. Mr Marino was the only witness to give evidence in 

person at the appeal. He is now a director of the applicant company and became DPS 

in December 2015. He was appointed a director on 11 November, was employed as 

manager on 12 November and was present at the premises when a licensing visit took 

place on 13 November. He is a personal licence holder and a man with considerable 

relevant experience as set out in his CV. 

It is accepted that it was unsatisfactory that Mr Marino had been left alone in charge 

of the premises by Mr Malik on 13 November. He was not up to speed and accepts 

that was the case. There was no-one on the premises who could operate the CCTV 

and there were only two security staff when the licensing conditions requires there to 

be four from 8pm onwards. It was also evident that a number of concerns raised 

during an earlier visit in April had not been addressed. Mr Marino however, to his 

credit, within hours of that visit, contacted the LA by email to identify the 

inadequacies that had been apparent and his proposals to address them. He had the 

offending signs and logos removed promptly. He revised the website. He reviewed 

and amended the house rules and codes of conduct for staff. Mr Marino gave evidence 

that these were already in place but he chose to revise them as part ot his duties as 

DPS. He said that "it is better to be over-preventive. I may be a bit more pedantic." 

He reviewed security and CCTV training. He bought long coats for the performers to 

wear in the screened smoking area outside the premises. Unfortunately the newly 

raised screen that was installed in response to expressed concerns has led to problems 

with the 'smoke-free' legislation and is the subject of ongoing revision in cooperation 

with the LA. Mr Marino was very clear that "I do not answer to anybody for 

management". He presented as an efficient and experienced manager who knows his 

4 

0 

0 

Page 258



. - . 

0 

0 

trade well. I formed the opinion that he was a man in whom one could have 

confidence as the manager of such a business. 

Mr Marino was not prepared to disclose the terms of his employment contract with 

the company, nor his remuneration other than to say that he has a basic salary and a 

bonus based on a percentage of turnover. Mr Malik still has a role in the management 

of the premises if only as the co-director of the appellant company and as the 

premises licence holder. He has run the licensed premises for a number of years 

without any cause for a review of the premises licence. None of the relevant 

authorities were sufficiently concerned about the management of the premises to 

oppose the application for the SEV licence. It is fairly accepted on behalf of the 

company that there were inadequacies in his management-perhaps complacency 

about maintaining standards. A warning was properly given, and deserved, following 

the 13 November visit for breaches of the conditions of the premises licence. At that 

time Mr Malik was still the DPS. That position changed in December. The appellants 

offer a similar condition that Mr Malik should not work at the premises. That appears 

to be unrealistic and unnecessary in the circumstances that Mr Marino remains as the 

general manager in overall control. 

Case for the Respondent LA 

The case for the LA is set out on the skeleton argument of Mr Charalambides. 

Paragraphs 16 - 22 describe the three specific concerns of the LA that are said to 

demonstrate 'why the decision of the Respondent was correct and remains correct'. 

They are: 1. The spectre of Abdul Ali/ Ali Jacko. 

2. The enigmatic involvement of Abdul Malik. 

3. The eleventh hour intervention of Vito Marino. 

At the time of the committee hearing it was said that Mr Ali and Mr Malik had run the 

premises since 2007. Mr Ali had been present during the site visit on 8 April 2015. He 

was not named on the application form for the SEV licence. It was said at the meeting 

that he was a part-time manager with a consultancy role. The decision of the LA 

Licensing Committee notes the fact that Mr Ali rather than Mr Malik gave evidence 

about issues arising in respect of the premises and appeared to be instructing counsel 

at the hearing rather than Mr Malik. The decision is also critical of an e-mail sent by 

5 
Page 259



the appellant's solicitor on 13 May describing it as 'the 11th hour e-mail' that 

'confirmed the view that the management was vague and disorganised and not to the 

standard expected by the council'. The Licensing Committee took 'the view that the 

named managers on the application form were not in sole control of the premises'. 

Despite an assertion that the sole beneficiary of the premises was Mr Malik, the 

committee concluded that 'Mr Abdul Ali played a significant and potentially 

controlling influence over Mr Abdul Malik and that his part-time managerial and/or 

consultancy role was central to the operation of the premises'. It was further 

determined that the applicant 'demonstrated lax and poorly considered standards of 

management, the management structures were vague, confused and lacked clarity'. 

The conclusion was that the applicant company was 'unsuitable' as it 'did not 

demonstrate the ability to adhere to the revised Standard Conditions nor the high 

standards of management expected of it'. 

In addressing the court, Mr Charalambides made much of the licensing visit on 13 

November when it was apparent that there were inadequacies found that were 

important in the management of the business. This supports the conclusion of the 

committee about the management. Criticism is fairly made of the fact that Mr Malik 

had left Mr Marino in charge of the premises on that day. It is conceded that 

subsequently Mr Marino had done a lot to rectify the situation. Mr Malik remains 

responsible to some extent as the premises licence holder, director of the company 

and responsible for the remuneration of Mr Marino as the manager. There was 

criticism of the failure to produce documentary evidence such as his contract of 

employment or the documents that show the relationship between JKO Holdings and 

London City Traders and whether it is 'at arm's length'. It remains the case that the 

LA asserts that Mr Ali is in control of the business. Reference is made to post for Mr 

Ali being sent to Mr Malik's home address and then left in the office at the licensed 

premises. Oddly, the LA does not provide any information about the detail of the 

conviction of Mr Ali that is principally relied upon to demonstrate his unsuitability to 

have any role at these premises. The 2011 conviction will become 'spent' at some 

time in 2016. 

Mr Heron, the Licensing Officer, has made two statements that are relied upon. He 

prepared the report following the visit on 8 April and visited the premises again on 13 

6 

. .. . 

0 

0 

. , 

Page 260



. . . 

November. Pc Perry attended with him on that day and issued the closure notice to Mr 

Marino. It seems to be the case that that the remedial action that was required was 

taken as no further sanction followed. Mr Ali was not present at the premises during 

the November visit. The statement of Peter Golds. who sat as the Chair of the 

Licensing Committee on 12 May. concludes as follows: 'The overall feeling was that 

whilst the applicant was willing to make some concessions and to offer up further 

conditions that overall the applicant had not demonstrated the high standard of 

management that Members would expect to see' . 

The submission of the respondent LA is that 'however competent Mr Marino is', that 

it is the company that is the applicant and that the court should conclude that it 

0 remains 'unsuitable' to hold the licence and that the decision of the Licensing 

Committee should be upheld. 

0 

Decision 

I have not been able to conclude from the infonnation before the court that, as 

suggested by the LA, this is all a 'front' for the benefit of Abdul Ali who it suspects to 

be the real driving force behind this enterprise. He is obviously a long time colleague 

of Abdul Malilc and has had involvement in running the business over many years. He 

may well have a financial interest in the premises continuing to trade through his 

company JKO Holdings Ltd but that is not the same as concluding that it is being run 

for his benefit and that the licence would be refused if Abdul Ali applied for it 

himself. I note that, despite his conviction, he still holds a personal licence. There is 

no detail of that conviction provided. Without any acceptance that he is necessarily an 

unsuitable person to hold the licence, the appellant company offers a condition on the 

licence that Abdul Ali must not work at the premises in any capacity. 

So far as Mr Marino is concerned, I formed the opinion that he was a man in whom 

one could have confidence as the manager of such a business. He has an impressive 

CV and I do not accept that he is lilcely to allow himself to be treated as the 'puppet' 

of anyone else. He has clearly taken control of the business and is someone who gives 

the impression that he can maintainJhe high standards of management that the LA 

expects of these businesses. When giving evidence he was clear that he is in charge. 

7 

. ,, 

Page 261



He is a director of the appellant company. It might have assisted the court had the 

company considered it appropriate to disclose documentary evidence to show the 

relationship between the companies and individuals concerned. 

The criticism of Mr Malik as a manager relates primarily to the visit on 13 November 

that came after the decision of the committee. He has however run these licensed 

premises for a number of years without any cause for a review. The role of Mr Ali 

does not previously appear to have been a cause for concern. Mr Malik has appointed 

Mr Marino as the manager and a director of the company. Any management 

deficiencies are being addressed. 

The situation has changed considerably since the decision of the Licensing Committee 

in July with the arrival of Mr Marino. It is a changed business that is now presented at 

appeal with a new manager in place who has the experience necessary to ensure that 

high standards are met. An important feature of the legislation regarding SEY licences 

is that they are subject to annual review. That will ensure that there is a clear 

motivation to maintain standards in those circumstances. 

I have come to the conclusion that, in view of the changed circumstances, the decision 

of the Licensing Committee is now wrong and that the appellant company is suitable 

to hold such a licence. 

The appeal is allowed. 

Alison Rose 

District Judge (Magistrates' Court) 

1 February2016 

.. "' 

8 

. ~ . 

0 

0 

Page 262



Appendix 15 

Page 263



CITY TRADERS LONDON 
LTD File for this company 

Company number 08756000 

Overview Filing history People 

Registered office address 
30 Alie Street, Aldgate, London, England, E1 SCA 

Company status 
Active 

Company type 
Private limited Company 

Accounts 

Next accounts made up to 31 October 2015 
due by 31 July 2016 

Last accounts made up to 31 October 2014 

Nature of business (SIC) 

56301 - Licensed clubs 

Incorporated on 
31 October 2013 

Confirmation statement 

Next statement date 30 June 2017 
due by 14 July 2017 

Last statement dated 30 June 2016 

14:38 
29/07/20 16 ~ 

Page 264



• Jml https l~Ui.~.gov.~·c~~'Oa75600J/officers Pi] A c~sHousc [G8} +t &,;l cmTRADERS L~LTD ... LJ 

CITY TRADERS LONDON 
LTD 
Company number 08756000 

Overview Filing history People 

Officers Persons with significant control 

Filter officers D Current officers 

1 current officer I 2 resignations 

NAIR, Santosh mii'D 

Correspondence address 
30 Alie Street, Aldgate, London, England, E1 8DA 

Role 
Director 

Nationality 
British 

Date of birth 
October 1983 

Country of residence 
England 

Appointed on 
21 June 2016 

Occupation 
Company Director 

File for this company 

14:39 
29/07/2016 ~ 

Page 265



MALIK, Abdul lilimlm!lJ 

Correspondence address 
3 Vine Cottages, Sidney Square, London, United Kingdom, E1 3EP 

Role 
Director 

Nationality 
British 

Date of birth 
December 1968 

Country of residence 
United Kingdom 

MARINO, Vito lilimlm!lJ 

Correspondence address 
30 Alie Street, Aldgate, London, England, E1 SCA 

Role 
Director 

Nationality 
Italian 

Date of birth 
August 1978 

Country of residence 
England 

Appointed on 
31 October 2013 

Occupation 
Business Exexutive 

Appointed on 
11 November 2015 

Occupation 
Manager 

Resigned on 
22 June 2016 

Resigned on 
12 February 2016 

Page 266



Appendix 16 

Page 267



1

Appendix One 

Tower Hamlets Council 

Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 

Introduction 

This policy sets out Tower Hamlets Council’s proposed approach to regulating sex 

establishments and the procedure that it will adopt in relation to applications for sex 

establishment licences. 

The policy of the Council is to refuse applications for sexual entertainment venues. 

This policy is intended to be strictly applied and will only be overridden in genuinely 

exceptional circumstances. Such circumstances will not be taken to include the 

quality of the management, its compliance with licence conditions, the size of the 

premises or its operating hours. 

The policy is intended as a guide to applicants, licence holders, people who want to 

object to applications and members of the Licensing Committee who are responsible 

for determining contested applications. It also aims to guide and reassure the public 

and other public authorities, ensuring transparency and consistency in decision 

making. 

When the decision making powers of the Council are engaged each application will 

be dealt with on its own merits but this policy gives prospective applicants an early 

indication of whether their application is likely to be granted or not. It also provides 

prospective applicants details of what is expected of them should an application be 

made. 

The legal controls for sex establishment premises are contained in the Local 

Governmental (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing 

and Crime Act 2009.  

There are 3 types of sex establishments which fall into the licensing regime:- 

Page 268



2

Sex shops 

Sex cinemas 

Sexual entertainment venues 

The role of the Council in its position as Licensing Authority is to administer the 

licensing regime in accordance with the law and not in accordance with moral 

standing. The Council recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex 

establishment and such businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure 

industries. 

Policy Rationale 

The policy has been developed that sets out how the legislation will be administered 
and applied. The policy identifies how the Council would exercise the licensing 
regime in relation to sexual entertainment venues. 

The policy has been developed to reflect and complement existing Council plans and 
strategic approach, namely:- 

• Tower Hamlets Community Plan.
• Tower Hamlets Crime & Drug Reduction Partnership Plan.
• Tower Hamlets Enforcement Policy.
• Tower Hamlets Core Strategy.
• Tower Hamlets Town Centre Spatial Strategy.
• Tower Hamlets Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003).
• Tower Hamlets Statement of Licensing Policy (Gambling Act 2005).

The policy has also been prepared with regard to: 

• Consultation responses
• Human Rights Act 1998
• Equalities Act 2010

The policy seeks to contribute to the “One Tower Hamlets” principle by fostering  
community cohesion, reducing inequalities and empowering communities. 
The public consultation that was undertaken concerning the adoption of a nil policy 

did not have overwhelming support. Therefore careful consideration has been given 

to the policy response, given the balance that the consultation returns did not give 

overwhelming support. 

Page 269



3

Policy Considerations 

Existing Licensed Premises 

The Council has had the ability to licence sex shops and sex cinemas under the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 for many years. 

There are no licensed sex shops in Tower Hamlets. 

The businesses that hold premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003 with 

permissions that will be affected by the adoption of the sexual entertainment venue 

licensing regime are as follows:- 

NAME ADDRESS 
THE BEEHIVE 104-106 Empson Street, London, E3 3LT 
EONE CLUB 168 Mile End Road, London, E1 4LJ 
NAGS HEAD PUBLIC 
HOUSE 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1DU 
THE PLEASURE LOUNGE 234 Cambridge Heath Road, London, E2 9NN 
WHITE SWAN 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 7JD 
ASTON'S CHAMPAGNE 
AND WINE BAR 
BASEMENT & 1ST FLOOR 187 Marsh Wall, London, E14 9SH 
CLUB PAISA 28 Hancock Road,London, E3 3DA 
OOPS 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA 
WHITE'S GENTLEMANS 
CLUB   32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW 
SECRETS 43-45 East Smithfield,London,E1W 1AP 
IMAGES 483 Hackney Road, London, E2 9ED 

Tower Hamlets Council has adopted schedule 3 Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 1st June 2014 so that it can: 

• set a limit on the number of sexual entertainment venues

• determine premises that are appropriate for the borough and

• licence sexual entertainment venues

Sexual entertainment venues are those that regularly provide lap dancing and other 

forms of live performance or live display of nudity. 

Page 270



4

Establishments that hold events involving full or partial nudity less than once a month 

may be exempt from the requirements to obtain a sex establishment licence and 

applicants are advised to contact the Licensing Team for advice. 

Limits on the number of licensed premises 

The Council has determined that there are a sufficient number of sex shops, sex 

cinemas and sexual entertainment venues currently operating in the borough and it 

does not want to see an increase in the numbers of premises that are currently 

providing these activities. 

The Council intends to adopt a policy to limit the number of sexual entertainment 

venues in the borough to nil however it recognises that there are a number of 

businesses that have been providing sexual entertainment in Tower Hamlets for 

several years. The Council will not apply this limitation when considering applications 

for premises that were already trading with express permission for the type of 

entertainment which is now defined as sexual entertainment on the date that the 

licensing provisions were adopted by the authority if they can demonstrate in their 

application: 

• High standards of management

• A management structure and capacity to operate the venue

• The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for sex establishments

The Council will consider each application on its merit although new applicants will 

have to demonstrate why the Council should depart from its policy. Furthermore if 

any of the existing premises cease trading there is no presumption that the Council 

will consider any new applications more favourably. 

Location of premises 

Page 271



5

The Council’s policy is that there is no locality within Tower Hamlets in which it would 

be appropriate to license a sex establishment. Accordingly, the appropriate number 

of sex establishments for each and every locality within Tower Hamlets is zero. 

As previously stated in the policy the Council will treat each application on its own 

merits however applicants should be aware that the Council will take into 

consideration the location of the proposed premises and its proximity to: 

• residential accommodation,

• schools,

• premises used by children and vulnerable persons

• youth, community & leisure centres,

• religious centres and public places of worship

• access routes to and from premises listed above

• existing licensed premises in the vicinity

Impact 

In considering applications for the grant of new or variation applications the Council 

will assess the likelihood of a grant causing impacts, particularly on the local 

community. 

The Council will take the following matters into account: 

• the type of activity

• the duration of the proposed licence

• the proposed hours of operation

• the layout and condition of the premises

• the use of other premises in the vicinity

• the character and locality of the area

• the applicant’s previous knowledge and experience

• the applicant’s ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any evidence of the operation of existing /previous licences held

by the applicant

Page 272



6

• any reports about the applicant and management of the

premises received from residents, Council officers or the police

• the ability of the proposed management structure to deliver

compliance with licensing requirements, policies on staff training

and the welfare of performers

• crime and disorder issues

• cumulative impact of licensed premises, including hours of

operation

• the nature and concerns of local residents

• any evidence of complaints about noise or disturbance caused

by premises

• planning permission and planning policy considerations

In considering applications for renewal the Council will take into account 

• the applicant’s ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any reports about the licensee and management of the premises

received from residents, Council officers or the police

• whether appropriate measures have been agreed and put into

place to mitigate any adverse impacts

• any evidence of complaints about noise or disturbance caused

by premises

In considering applications for transfer the Council will take into account: 

• the applicants previous knowledge and experience

• the applicants ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any evidence of the operation of existing /previous licences held

by the applicant

• any reports about the applicant and management of the

premises received from residents, Council officers or the police

Page 273



7

• the ability of the proposed management structure to deliver

compliance with licensing requirements, policies on staff training

and the welfare of performers

Applicants 

Where appropriate the Council expects applicants to: 

• demonstrate that they are qualified by experience

• have an understanding of general conditions

• propose a management structure which will deliver compliance

• with operating conditions for example through

• Management competence

• Presence

• Credible management structure

• enforcement of rules internally – training & monitoring

• a viable business plan covering door staff, CCTV

• policies for welfare of performers

• demonstrate that they can be relied upon to act in best interests of performers

through remuneration, facilities, protection, physical and psychological welfare

• have a transparent charging scheme with freedom from solicitation

• a track record of management compliant premises or employ individuals with

such a track record

New applicants may be invited for interview by the Licensing Officer and /or Police 

Officer prior to the application being referred to the Licensing Committee for 

determination. 

Applications from anyone who intends to manage the premises on behalf of third 

party will be refused. 

Premises appearance and layout 

The Council expects premises to:- 

• have an external appearance which is in keeping with the locality

• prevent the display outside the premises of photographs or other images

which may be construed as offensive to public decency

Page 274



8

• adequate lighting to allow monitoring of all public areas

• surveillance by CCTV

• surveillance by CCTV of all private booths

Conditions 

The council will prescribe, and from time to time revise, standard conditions which 
will apply generally to licences that the council will grant or renew. 

Through standard conditions the council seeks to ensure that sexual entertainment 
venues are well managed and supervised, restrict the sexual entertainment 
activities and the manner in which they are permitted to be provided, protect 
performers, and control the impact of the venue and its customers in relation to its 
locality. 

Specifically, standard conditions could include measures which are found in the 

appendix of this policy. 

The Application Process 

Making a new, renewal, transfer or variation application 

The Act requires the Council to refuse all application if the applicant: 

• Is under the age of 18 or

• Has had their licence revoked in the last 12 months or

• Is not resident in the UK, or has not been a UK resident for the last 6months

or

• Has been refused an application in the last 12 months or

• Is a corporate body which in not incorporated in the UK

Applications forms and details of current fee levels are available: 

• on the Council’s website (www.towerhamlets .gov.uk)

• from the Licensing Team on 020 7364 5008

• by email to licensing@towerhamlets .gov.uk

The Council prefers to receive electronic applications and offers a choice off 

payment options the details of which are contained in the application pack. 

Page 275



9

The Council expects the premises to have planning consent for the intended use and 

hours of operation, or otherwise have lawful planning status before making an 

application for a new licence. 

In order for the application to be valid the applicant must: 

• Submit the completed application form

• Pay the application fee

• Submit a floor plan, drawn to scale showing the layout of the premises( new

applications only)

• Submit a location plan (1;1250) showing the location of the premises(NB.

plans will not be required for transfers nor renewal applications)

• 2 passport size photos of the applicant where the applicant is an individual

rather than a limited company

• 2 passport size photos of the manager if applicant is a limited company(NB:

photos will only be required if there has been a change of applicant or

manager since the last application)

• Display an A4 notice at the proposed premises for 21 days following the date

that the completed application is submitted setting out the application details.

The notice must be in a prominent position so that it can be easily read by

passers-by. A notice template will be provided with the application form.

• publish a notice on at least one occasion in a local newspaper, during the
period of ten working days starting on the day the application was given
Council. The advert can be any size or colour but must be readable.

Applicants who wish to advertise the application in another local newspaper are 

advised to contact the Licensing Team beforehand, to confirm that it is acceptable. 

On receipt of a valid application the Council will consult: 

• The Police

• The Fire Brigade

• Building Control

• Health and Safety

• Ward Councillors

For new and variation applications the Council will also consult: 

Page 276



10

• Development Control Team

• Local residents living within 50m of the premises

Authorised Officers from the Council, Fire Brigade and Police may choose to inspect 

the premises and require works to be carried out to bring the premises up to the 

required standard before the premises can be used for licensable activities. 

The Council will not determine an application for a licence unless the applicant 

allows an authorised officer reasonable opportunity to enter the premises to make 

such examination and enquiries as may be necessary to determine the suitability of 

the applicant and the sex establishment. 

Representations 

Anyone wishing to object to the application must submit a representation, in writing, 

within 28 days of the date that the valid application was received by the Council.  

Representations can either be submitted via 

• Our website:www.towerhamlets .gov.uk

• Email to:licensing@towerhamlets .gov.uk

• Post to: Consumer and Business Regulations, Licensing Team, 6th Floor,

Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG.

A person making a representation must clearly state their name, address, and the 

grounds for objecting to the application and indicate whether they consent to have 

their name and address revealed to the applicant. Copies of representations will be 

made available to the applicant 14 days before the committee hearing. 

The Council will not consider objections that are frivolous or vexatious or which 

relate to moral grounds (as these are outside the scope of the Act). 

The Council prefers to receive electronic representations. 

Late representations may be admissible at the discretion of the Council if there’s 

sufficient reason to indicate that applicants will not be significantly prejudiced by the 

Page 277



11

decision to allow a late objection to be considered. In making such a decision the 

Council will take into account: 

• The length of the delay

• The amount of time that the applicant has to consider the

representation before the hearing date

• If other representations have been received before the deadline

Determining an application 

Applications with no representations will be approved under delegated authority to 

officers. 

Applications with representations recommending that conditions be attached to the 

licence and which are acceptable to both the applicant and person making the 

representation can be approved under delegated authority to officers. 

All other contested applications will be referred to the Licensing Committee for 

determination. The applicant, anyone making a representation and the ward 

Councillors will be notified the date, time and venue of the hearing and invited to 

attend to address the committee in person. 

Applications can take up to 14 weeks to be determined. If an application is likely to 

take longer than 14 weeks to determine the Council will notify the applicant in writing 

before this deadline. Applications for sex establishment licenses are exempt from the 

tacit consent provisions of the EU Services Directive on the grounds of public 

interest and the legitimate interests of third parties. 

The applicant will be notified in writing about the outcome of their application 

within 5 working days of the decision being made. 

Page 278



12

Sex Establishment licences are usually issued for 12 months, but can be issued for a 

shorter period if deemed appropriate. 

In order to continue operating as a sex establishment the licence holder must make 

a renewal application prior to the expiry of the existing licence. 

Appeals 

Any applicant who is aggrieved by a decision to refuse an application or by the 

imposition of any conditions can appeal to the Magistrates Court within21days of 

receiving the decision in writing. 

Grounds for refusing an application 

1. The applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having been convicted of

any offence or for any other reason 

2. That if the license were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to

which it relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other 

than the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a 

license if he made the application himself 

3. That the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time the

application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority consider is 

appropriate for that locality 

4. That the grant or renewal of the license would be inappropriate, having regard:-

a. to the character of the relevant locality

b. to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

c. to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall

in respect of which the application is made. 

Page 279



13

Transitional Arrangements 

Broadly speaking, those existing sexual entertainment venues (lap dancing clubs 

etc) with a premises licence  under the Licensing Act 2003,under which it is lawful 

to provide such entertainment, will continue to be able to operate for one year 

after the Council adopts the 2009 Act provisions or, if later, the determination of 

any application submitted during that year. 

The ‘transitional period’ will last for 12-months beginning with the date that the 

Council resolves that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 Act will come into 

force in their area (‘the 1st appointed day’). Six months following the 1st 

appointed day will be known as the ‘2nd appointed day’ and the day on which the 

transitional period ends will be known as the ‘3rd appointed day 

Existing Operators  

To allow time to comply with the new regime, existing operators, who, 

immediately before the 1st appointed day, have a 2003 Act licence and lawfully 

use premises as a sexual entertainment venue under that licence or are 

undertaking preparatory work to use the venue in that way will be allowed to 

continue to provide relevant entertainment until the 3rd appointed day or the 

determination of any application they have submitted before that time (including 

any appeal against the refusal to grant a licence), whichever is later 

For the purposes of the Transition a “2003 Act Licence” means a premises 

licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 under which it is 

lawful to provide relevant entertainment. 

“Preparatory work” refers to work carried out by an operator, such as a 

refurbishment or refit, in order that they can use the premises as a sexual 

entertainment venue in the future. The operator will have been granted a 2003 

Act licence before the 1
st
appointed day but will not have used the premises as a 

sexual entertainment venue by that date. It is likely that such operators will be 

known to the Council. However, where a dispute arises between the Council and 

Page 280



14

a licence-holder over whether the licence-holder qualifies as an existing operator 

by virtue of this provision the Council will need to seek evidence from the 

licence-holder to demonstrate that they clearly intended to operate a sexual 

entertainment venue in the future and work had been done to achieve this end.  

For the purposes of the Transition a “2003 Act Licence” means a premises 

licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 under which it is 

lawful to provide relevant entertainment. 

Appointed Days 

1st Appointed Day 

The day on which the Sexual Entertainment Venue regime comes into force in 

the Borough and the beginning of the transitional period (1st June 2014) 

2nd Appointed Day 

The day 6 months after the 1st appointed day (1st December 2014) 

3rd Appointed Day  

The day 6 months after the 2nd appointed day and the end of the transitional 

period (1st June 2015) 

New Applications 

New applicants are people who wish to use premises as a sexual entertainment 

venue after the 1st appointed day but do not already have a premises licence or 

club premises certificate to operate as such under the 2003 Act or do have such 

a licence but have not taken any steps towards operating as such. After the 1st 

appointed day new applicants will not be able to operate as a sexual 

entertainment venue until they have been granted a sexual entertainment venue 

licence 

Determining Applications Received On or Before the 2nd Appointed Day 

Page 281



15

Applicants will be able to submit their application for a sexual entertainment 

venue from the 1st appointed day onwards.  

As the Council is able to refuse applications having regard to the number of sex 

establishment they consider appropriate for a particular locality, all applications 

made on or after the 1
st
appointed day but on or before the 2nd appointed day 

shall be considered together. This will ensure that applicants are given sufficient 

time to submit their application and all applications received on or before the 2nd 

appointed day are considered on their individual merit and not on a first come first 

serve basis. 

No applications shall be determined before the 2nd appointed day. After the 2nd 

appointed day the appropriate authority shall decide what if any licences should 

be granted. If a new applicant is granted a licence it will take effect immediately. 

If an existing operator is granted a licence, it will not take effect until the 3rd 

appointed day, up to which point they will be allowed to continue to operate 

under their existing premises licence or club premises certificate.  

Determining Applications Received After the 2nd Appointed Day 

Applications made after the 2nd appointed day shall be considered when they 

are made but only once all applications made on or before that date have been 

determined. However, reference to determination here does not include 

references to the determination of any appeal against the refusal of a licence.  

As with applications received on or before the 2nd appointed day, licences 

granted to new applicants shall take effect immediately and licences granted to 

existing operators shall take effect from the 3rd appointed day or, if later, the 

date the application is determined.  

Outstanding Applications 

The Council will attempt where possible to determine outstanding applications 

made under the 2003 Act, which include an application for the provision of 

Page 282



16

relevant entertainment, before the date that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 

Act comes into force in their area.  

Where it has not been possible to determine application before the 1st appointed 

day, applicants will need to submit an application for a sex establishment licence 

as set out in Schedule 3 if they wish to provide relevant entertainment. From the 

1st appointed day onwards outstanding applicants shall be dealt with as though 

they are new applicants 

Additional information and advice 

Please contact: 

Consumer and Business Regulations 

Licensing Team 

6th Floor, 

Mulberry Place,  

5 Clove Crescent,  

E14 2BG. 

licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

020 7364 5008 

Page 283



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	2 RULES OF PROCEDURE -  LICENCES FOR SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES
	3.1 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for White Swan (Majingos), 556 Commercial Road, E14 7JD
	3.1b White Swan app

	3.2 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Club Enviee (Flamingos), 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA
	3.2b Club Enviee app 1 - 8
	3.2c Club Enviee app 9
	3.2d Club Enviee app 10 - 16




